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1916 AMERICAN-LAFRANCE FIRE ENGINE
“W.B. WHITTAKER”
Morristown’s First Motorized Fire Truck

Pictured with the truck are (L to R) Roy Kelley, J.O. Phillips, Bill Blair, Shell Burger, Sam Kelley,
W.B. Whittaker, Jim Mathes, Perry Burger (at wheel), J.E. Burke, Austin Fanning, Ross
Barnette, Jim Corey, Ellis Carey, Bob Lowe, Sullins Dosser, Oscar Graham, and Bob LaPrade.

In 1916, the City of Morristown purchased its first motorized fire engine, a 1916 American-
LaFrance type 75 at a price of $9.000 This truck replaced a horse drawn truck. Most
departments named their trucks after a horse that the truck helped replace, presidents, or
people in the community. Morristown chose to name the tuck after W.B. Whittaker who was
serving as Mayor at the time of the purchase of this Fire Truck.

Prior to the purchase of the engine, the three horses did dual duty for the City; they pulled the
water wagon for street washing, and also the City’s only fire truck. Upon ringing of the fire bell
over city hall, the driver, Mr. Buchanan, would quickly unhitch the trio, hurry to the fire hall,
and hitch them to the fire truck.

On June 21%, 1916 the Morristown Gazette reported:

City Purchases Auto Truck

Last week the city closed a deal for a new automobile fire
truck which is to be one of the most modern makes. it was
bought from the American-LaFrance Fire Engine Co., and the
price paid was $9,000. The Truck has a six ¢ylinder, four cycle
motor with a 5 1/2 inch bore and a six inch stroke furnishing
100 horsepower, which is one of the most powerful engines
made. It is sold as a type 75, triple combination pumper,
chemical engine and hose motor car. The truck is to be
delivered in about 60 days and will be one less of a long list
of necessities that the city has needed for a good while.

After its retirement, the truck was moved to Cherokee Park and placed in the playground area so
children could play and experience the feeling of being a firefighter. It remained there until
1995, when it was deemed a health hazard. It was moved to a spot near Cherokee Lake where it
remained for years facing the toll of time. In March 2010 the Morristown Citizen Tribune ran an
article about the remains of the historic engine. Reading the story, members of the Fire
Department have taken up the challenge of restoration of the engine in order to return it to the
Morristown Fire Department. The First Fire Truck Fund has been established to help support
this effort with the goal of completing restoration by 2016, the truck’s 100t birthday. Learn
more about this effort and how you can assist at their Facebook page.

https:/ /www.facebook.com/MorristownsFirstFireTruckFund
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City of Morristown

Incorporated 1833

December 4, 2015
To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the Governing Council, and Citizens of the City of Morristown:

State law requires that all gencral-purpose local governments publish, within six months of the close of
each year, a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted
Rccounting principles (GAAP), audited in accordance with generally accepted anditing standards and in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants,
Pursuant to that requirement, we hereby issue the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the
City of Morristown for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015,

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of Morristown.
Consequently, manapement assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the City of Morristown has established a comprehensive infernal contro] framework that is
designed both to protect the government’s assets from Joss, theft, or misuse and compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the City of Morristawn’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP.
Because the cost of intemal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Morristown’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute
asgurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstaiement. As management, we assert
that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in ail material

respects,

The City of Morristown’s financial statements have been audited by Craine, Thompson, and Jones, PC, a
firm of licensed certified public accountants, The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements of the City of Morristown for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015,
are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation,
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering
an unmodified opinion that the City of Morristown’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the
first component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Morristown was part of & broader, federally
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies, The standards
governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls and legal
requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in the

compliance report section of this CAFR.
GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to

accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmiittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
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conjunction with it. The City of Morristown’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of
the independent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The City of Morristown was incorporated in 1855 and operates under a council-administrator form of
government. It is located between two major Tennessee Valley Authority lakes approximately 40 miles
northenst of Knoxville on Interstate-81 and approximately 60 miles southwest of the Tri-Cities area on the
same highway. The City currently occupies a land area of approximately 22 square miles and serves a
population of approximately 29,000, The City is authorized by state statutes to levy a properly tax on both
real and personal properties located within its boundaries. It is also empowered by state statute to extend
its corporate limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed approptiste by the Council,

Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in the Mayor and Council members consisting of the
mayor and six other members. The Couneil is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances,
resolutions, adopting the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the City Administrator, City Aftorney,
Police Chief, and Fire Chief. The City’s Administrator is responsible for carrying out the policies and
ordinances of the Council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City and for appointing the heads

of various departments,

The City of Morristown provides a full range of services, including police, fire, street construction and
maintenance, planning and zoning, parks and recreation, cultural events and general administrative services.
In addition, water, electric, broadband, sewer service, and storm water collection are provided under an
enterprise fund concept with user charges established by the Council to ensure adequate coverage of

operating expenses and payments on cutstanding debt,

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Morristown’s financial planning and centrol.
All departments of the City of Morristown are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City
Administrator. The City Adminisirator uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed
budget, The City Administrator then presents this proposed budget to the Council for review by May 15.
The Coungil is required to hold a public hearing on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no later
than June 30, the close of the City of Morristown’s fiscal year. The appropriated budget is prepared by
fund, function, and department. The City Administrator may make transfers of appropriations within a
department. Budget-to-actual comparisons are provided in this report. The general fund comparison is
presented on page 28 as part of the basic financial statements for the City’s fund.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is considered from
the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of Morristown operates,

Lacal economy

The economy continues to have an impact on every segment of Morristown's largest taxpayers, especially
the automotive industry, Morristown has many manufacturers that are tied to the automotive indusiry.
They produce automotive products for many different type of brands but principally Toyota,
Manuficturing continues to make up the majority of property tax assessments for the City of Morristown,
The breakdown between commercial and residential is 71% and 29% respectively, The City of Morristown
continues to be a regional employer. The City of Morristown has been experiencing a significant amount




of retail development, This development has been attributed to a major retail chain locating a second store
in the City, This has resulted in national retail chains interested in locating stores in Morristown. Several
retail developments are under construction. As a result of the retail development, local option sales tax is

projected to increase by 4.6% in the 2015-2016 fiscal year.

Major Initiatives

Morristown’s industry continues to sce improvement and plans for expansion. Three additional expansions
have been scheduled to go with the expansions of three plants in the previous year. The City of Morristown
and the Industrial Development Board continue to recruit new industry and support expansion of oor
existing industry. One main effort is the acquisition of property for the East Tennessee Progress Center to
provide available Jand for possible expansion for business recruiting,

Awards and Acknowledgment

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to City of Morristown for its
comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. This was the second
consecutive year that the government has achieved this prestigious award, In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achicvement, a government must publish an casily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting

principles and applicable legal requirements,

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We belicve that our cutrent
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The City of Morristown also received the GFQA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation award for its annual
budget documented for the 2014-2015 fiscal year. To qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award, the City’s budget document had to be judged proficient as a policy document, a financial plan, an
operations guide, and a communications device.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efforts and dedication of the
staff of the Department of Finance. We would like to express our appreciation to the Finance staff and
other personnel from various departments, agencies, and authoritics that assisted in the preparation of this
report. Also, we would like to thank the Mayor and Council for their support for maintaining the highest
standards of professionalism in the management of the City of Morristown’s finances.

Res tfully submltted

Tony Cox Clark
City Administrator dmlmstratxve Services Director
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CRAINE, THoMPsON & JonEes, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
228 WEST FIRST NORTH STREET
P.O. BOX 1779
SUITE 300, MILLENNIUM SQUARE
MORRISTOWN, TENNESSEE 37816-1779
423-586-7650

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Morristown, Tennessee

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
aclivities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Morristown, Tennessee, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City of Morristown, Tennessee's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial stalements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control refevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinicns on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the
financial statements of Morristown Utllitles Commission, which represent 96 percent, 97 percent, and 98 percert,
respectively, of the assets, nel position, and revenues of the business-lype activities. Those statements were
audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates fo the
amounts included for Morristown Utilities Commission, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, hut not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaltating the overall
presentation of the financtal statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinicns

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, In all matertal respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Morristown,
Tennessee, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash
flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparlson for the general fund and solid waste fund for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles genserally accepted in the United States of America.

JAMES W, CRAINE, CPA
HirAM H. JONES, CPA

GLENN B, THOMPSON, CPA FERTAN M. JonES, oA
MIRA J. CRAINE, CPA , WIN :
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the Uniled States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in net pension fiability (asset) and related ratios and schedule of
contributions based on participation in the public employee pension plan of TCRS, Morristown Utilities
Commission schedule of funding progress and schedule of employer contributions for Morristown Utilities Retiree
Benefit Plan, and OPEB schedule of funded status and funding progress and schedule of employer contributions
on pages 9-21 and 96-100 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We and other audilors have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statemenis.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance an the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the City of Morristown, Tennessee’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual
nonmajor fund financial statements, nonmajor fund budgetary schedules, stalement of changes in assets and
fiahilities — LAMTPO agency fund, schedule of state financial assistance, and statistical section are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U. S, Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audifs of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and
is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, nonmajor fund budgetary schedules, statement
of changes in assels and liabilities — LAMTPC agency fund, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and
schedule of state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly fo the underlying accounting and other records used {o prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjecled to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed
as described above, and the report of the other auditors, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements, nonmajor fund budgetary schedules, statement of changes in assets and liabilities — LAMTPO —
agency fund, schedule of expenditures of federal awards, and schedule of state financial assistance are fairly
stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 4, 2015, on
our consideration of the Cily of Morristown, Tennessee’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with cerlain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is fo describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering Cily of Morristown, Tennessee's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

(iainw, Shompuons Hores, P

Morristown, Tennessee
December 4, 2015



Management’s Discussion & Analysis

As management of the City of Morristown, Tennessee, we offer readers of the City of Morristown’s
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of
Morristown for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with additional information that is furnished in our letter of transmittal,
which can be found on pages 1- 3 of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the City of Morristown exceeded its liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year by approximately
$168.6 million (net position). Of this amount, $33 million represents unrestricted net position,
which may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

¢ The City of Morristown’s total net position decreased by approximately $4.2 million. While total
net position increased by approximately $8.3 million from operating activities, a prior period
adjustment related to the implementation of an accounting standard for the recording of
retirement liability decreased total net position by approximately $12.5 million.

s  As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Morristown’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of approximately $27.4 million, an increase of almost $1.3
million in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 26% of this amount is available for
spending at the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).

o At the end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the City of Morristown’s
General Fund was approximately $7.1 million, or approximately 21.8% of total General Fund
expenditures.

e The City of Morristown’s total outstanding long-term debt increased by $9,052,271 during the
current fiscal year because of additional funding for the wastewater and power system.

Overview of the FFinancial Statements

This discussion and analysis provided here is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of
Morristown’s financial statements. The City of Morristown’s basic financial statements consist of three
components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the
financial statements. This report also includes supplementary information intended to furnish additional
detail to support the basic financial statements themselves,

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the City of Morristown’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City of Morristown’s assets, liabilities,
and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as nef position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the City of Morristown is improving or deteriorating.




The statement of activities presents information showing how the Cily of Morristown’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, and earned, but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Morristown that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Morristown include general
government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, economic development, and culture and
recreation. The business-type activities of the City of Morristown include the power, water, storm water,
broadband, and wastewater systems, Of the business-type activities, the Morristown Utilities
Commission is responsible for water, power, wastewater, and broadband. The Morristown Utilities
Commiission is an administrative unit of the City and therefore has been included as a business-type
activity of the primary government. The Morristown Ultilities Commission issues a separate
comprehensive annual financial report and information from that report is used in this report. Readers
should consult the Morristown Utilities Commission’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for more
detailed information on their finances.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 22-23 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of Morristown, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Morristown can be divided into three
categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to accouni for essentially the same functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-ferm
infloves and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at
the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a governmentl’s near-term
financing requirements,

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for govermmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmenial fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental finds and governmental activities.

The City of Mowristown maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund and the solid waste fund, both of which
are considered to be major funds. Data from the other two governmental funds are combined into a
single, aggregated presentation, Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.
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The City of Morristown adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 24-27 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City of Morristown maintains two different types of proprictary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-fype activifies in the
government-wide financial statements. The City of Morristown uses enterprise funds to account for its
water, wastewater, storm water, broadband and power systems. Infernal service funds are an accounting
device used to accumulate and allocate costs interpally among the City of Morristown’s various functions.
The City of Mormristown uses an internal service fund fo account for its self-insured employee health
insurance program, Because the services predominately benefit governmental rather than business-type
functions, they have been included within governmmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for wastewater,
water, power and broadband systems, all of which are considered to be major funds of the City of
Morristown, The storm water system is not considered to be a major fund; however it is presented
separately in the proprietary fund financial statements because it is the only other proprietary fund.

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 52-56 of this report.

Fiduciary funds, Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
of the government. Fiduciary funds are nof reported in the government-wide financial statements because
the resources of those funds are nof available to support the City of Morristown’s own programs. The
accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The City of Morristown maintains two types of fiduciary funds. The City of Morristown uses an agency
fund to account for the Lakeway Area Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization (LAMTPO)
funding. LAMTPO is the metropolitan planning organization for Morristown’s region encompassing {wo
counties and four cities. LAMTPO’s board consists of members from these localities consisting of
Mayors and City Administrators. The City also maintains a trust fund for the OPEB obligation. The
administration of the fund assets is contracted out to USI Advisors, Inc.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 57 and 58 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 59-95 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Morristown’s progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension and OPEB benefits to its employees. A table of contents has
been provided to locate this information.

Govermment-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the government’s financial
position. In the case of the City of Morristown, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded
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liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by almost $168.6 million at the close of the most recent fiscal
year.

City of Morristown's Net Position

Governmental activities Business-1ype activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Cument and otherassels $ 41302629 § 38593133 $ 58,303,008 $ 62,378,884 § 99,605,637 § 100,972,087
Capital assets 53,939,753 54,203,414 196,057,074 175,127,598 249,996,827 229,331,012
Total assets $ 95242382 § 92,796,547 § 254360082 $ 237506482 § 349602464 $ 330,303,029
Total deferred outflows of resources § 2009259 § 50,289 8§ 2651918 8 2381351 S 4,661,177 & 2432640
Long-term Habilities oulstanding $ 22,252,609 S5 E9.86E979 S 105,670,270 % 97,938,574 5 132922879 & E17,R00,553
Othe liabilities 4,592,613 2,608,408 33,384,548 28,796,156 37,977,181 30,804,564
Total liabifities $ 31845242 & 21,870,387 S 139054818 § 126,134,730 $§ 170,900,060 § 148,605,817
Totak deferred inflows of resources 514401080 5 11,113,425 8 325191 % 182455 % 14,726,281 § 11,300,380
Net position:
Net investment in capilal assets $§  MB875277 5 33965440 5 98316369 $ 88,050,533 3 133194646 § (22015973
Restricted 2,420,193 1,080,576 U] [t} 2,420,193 1,680,576
Unrestricied 13,709,845 24,213,008 19,315,616 24,920,115 33,625,461 49,133,123
Total net position $  SE005315 § 59,859,024 $ E17,631,985 § 112970648 § 168637300 $§ 1728294672

By far the largest portion of the City of Morristown’s net position (78.9%) reflects its investment in
capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and infrastructure); less any related
outstanding debt that was used to acquire those assets. The City of Morristown uses these capital assets
to provide a variety of services to citizens, Accordingly, these assets are nof available for future
spending. Although the City of Morristown’s investiment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources used to repay this debt must be provided from other sources,
since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City of Morristown’s net position (1.4%) represents resources that are subject
to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of $33,025,461 is unrestricted
and may be used to meet Morristown’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Morristown is able to report positive balances in all

reported categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
governmental and business-type activities. The same sitnation held true for the prior fiscal year.
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City of Morristown
Net Position
June 30, 2014 and 2015

Net Investment in Capital Asscts

Restricted

Unrestricted

- 40,000,000 80,000,000 120,000,000

m2014 W2015

However, the City of Morristown’s overall net position decreased by approximately $4.2 million from the
prior fiscal year. The reasons for the overall decrease are discussed in the following sections for
governmental activities and business-type activities.

Governmental Activitics. During the current fiscal year, net position of the governmental activities
increased by $3.4 million. This increase is attributed to the economic expansion that the City of
Morristown is currently experiencing. Economic growth was spurred by the completion of a major road
project and the fact that a large retailer located a second store within the City. Because of this retail
development, the City of Morristown realized local sales tax growth that exceeded budgeted amounts by
approximately 7.0%. The beginning net position was restated due to implementation of an accounting
standard that measures and recognizes liabilities, deferred inflows/outflows, and expenses/expenditures.
Because of the implementation of this standard, beginning net position decreased by approximately $12.3
million. Overall, net position for the governmental activities decreased approximately $8.9 million when
considering current year activity and the prior period adjustment. See pages 78, 79, and 96 of the notes to
the financial statements for more details about the implementation of this standard.
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City of Morristown's Changes in Net Position
Gaovernmental Activities Business=Type Activities Totul
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Revemutes:
Pn)granl revenues:
Charges for services $ 2,205,770 % 2,562,520 F 103,325 749 S 103,491,254 % (06,231,519 § 106,053,774
Opermting grants &
contributions 3.01R,ROE 1,454,535 2,586,526 2,580,025 5,605,327 4,034,560
Capital grants &
conltributions - - 151,200 524,286 151,200 524,286
Geneml revenues: - -
Property laxes 9,216,198 9,313,995 - - 9,916,198 9,313,995
Sales tax 10,793,398 FOOGETIR - B 10,793,398 10,061,738
Intergovernmental 4,32F,104 4,476,998 - - 4,321,504 4,476,998
Other 4,082,625 4,227,573 GUAT7R 225,086 4,043,003 4,452,659
Tolal revenues ¥ as5.037.896 | 32,007,359 ¥ 106,123,853 7 106,820,651 141,161,749 13R,91R,010
Expenses:
General govermment 4,726,075 2,837,464 - - 4,726,075 2,837,464
Public safety E3L EGR 464 14,634,316 - - 14,068,464 14,634,316
Public works HIADALG87 6,831,898 - - HEA93,687 6,831,898
Econontie developiment 487,774 296,060 - - 417,774 296,060
arks & recreation 1,867,804 2,056,499 - - 1,807,804 2,056,499
Civie support 932,834 1.0H1.941¢ - - 942 834 o) 941
Transportation - - - - - -
Retirce health insurmnce AR2,VIG 306,363 - - 382910 306,363
Interest an long-tenm debt 263,167 286,676 - - 263,167 286,676
Water - - 6.117.002 6, 2RT.R6S 6,117,002 & 2HR7 . H65
Wastewaler - - 0,385,294 9,067,056 9,385,294 9,067,056
Storm water - - 994,148 832,132 99k 148 832,132
Power - - 75.855,798 75,270,529 75,855,798 75.270,529
Broadband - - 2,330,637 6,945,100 7,330,637 6,965, 1010
Total espenses 33,202,721 28,261,217 99,682,879 98,402,682 T 132,885,600 126,663,809
Increase (decrease) in net
position before trans fers 1,835,175 3.R36G.142 6,430,974 R,417,969 R,276,149 12,254,811
Transfers 1,597,848 t.452.361 (E, 597 BIB) €1,452,361) - -
Increase (decrease)} in net
position 3.433.023 5 288502 4,843,126 6,965,607 8,276,149 12,254,109
Net position - July 1, 2014 59,852,024 54,6R6,910 112,970,648 106,005,041 172,829,672 160,691,951
Prior period adjustiment (12,286,732} (116,388) {181,789) - (12,468,521) (116,388)
Net position - June 30, 2015 % 51,005,315  § 59,859,024 $ 117,631,985 $112970,648 $ 168,637,300 § 172,829,672
Revenues on the government-wide Statement of Activities are broken into two major categories, program
and general revenues.
Program revenues are three types: charges for services (arise from charges to customers), operating
grants and contributions (restricted for a specific purpose), and capital grants and contributions (restricted

for a specific purpose).

General revenues are all revenues that do not qualify as program revenues and by far are the largest
revenue source. The largest single revenue sources within this major category are property taxes and
local option sales tax. Property tax continues to be a stable revenue source for the City of Mortristown.
During the current fiscal year, property tax collections increased by approximately $600,000 or 6.5%
compared (o the previous fiscal year, The graph below presents the major sources of revenues for
governmental activities.
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Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities

Property Taxes
28%

Local Sales Tax
31%

Intergovernmental
elgo;.f;:% nenta Other
12%

Capital grants &
contributions Charges for services
4% Operating grants & 4%,
contributions
8%

Public Safety expenses of $14,168,464 and Public Works expenses of $10,493,687 are the largest
expenses of the City of Morristown, which when combined total $24,662,151 and are 75% of total
expenses. Of this amount, $1,722,122 was recovered by charges for services and $1,091,409 from
operating grants/contributions. For additional details, see illustrations below.
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Program Expenses - Governmental Activities

Public Safety
43%
Public Works
32%

Parks & Recreation
5%

Economic
Development

- L 1%
General Government Long-term Debt Civic Support ~
E 0,
14% Expense B
1% Retiree's Health
Insurance
1%

The following illustration shows the “net (expenses)” from the Statement of Activities as a percentage of
the total. Unlike the preceding illustration, this one not only shows the percentage of total costs, it shows
the impact the program had on the local citizens’ tax base, as a percentage. Net expense is all program
expenses less all program revenues.
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Expenses by Governmental Activities

Public Safety
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Public Works
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Business-type Activities. For the City of Morristown’s business-type activities, the results for the
current year were positive in that overall net position increased to reach an ending balance of
approximately $117.6 million. The total increase in net position for business-type activities was $4.8
million or 4.3% from the prior fiscal year. The increase in net position is attributed to rate increases in the
broadband system. As a result, revenues from broadband activity charges for services increased by
approximately $786,000.

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Morristown uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Morristown’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is
useful in assessing the City of Morristown’s financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund
balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for discretionary use as
they represent the portion of fund balance which has been limited to use for a particular purpose by either
an external party, the City of Morristown itself, or a group or individual that has been delegated authority
to assign resources for use for a particular purpose by the City of Morristown’s Council.
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At June 30, 2015, the City of Morristown’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances
of $27,399,299 an increase of $1,500,355 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 25.8% of
this amount ($7,062,313) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government’s discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is either nonspendable, restricted, or
assigned to indicate that it is 1) not in spendable form or legally/contractually required to be maintained
intact ($11,716,611), 2) restricted for particular purposes ($2,420,193) or 3) assigned for particular
purposes ($6,200,182).

General Fund
Components of Fund Balance
June 30, 2014 and 2015

Nonspendable

Restricted

Assigned | ————————

Unassigned

Millions

m2014 m2015

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Morristown. At the end of the current fiscal
year, unassigned fund balance was $7,062,313, while total fund balance increased to $27,014,574. As a
measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and
total fund balance to total general fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance represents approximately
21.8% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents 83.2% of that same amount.
City of Morristown Council has formally adopted a financial policy stating that the City’s general fund
will maintain an unassigned fund balance of at least 15%, but not to exceed 40% of annual general fund
expenditures.

The fund balance of the City of Morristown’s general fund increased $1,478,660. As discussed earlier
with governmental activities, the increase can be attributed to economic growth and retail development
resulting in local sales tax growth that exceeded budgeted amounts by approximately 7.0%. Additionally,
a conservative budgeting approach is utilized in projecting estimated revenues to ensure that actual
revenues meet or exceed the projected amount.

The solid waste fund is used to account for the City’s sanitation and recycling operations. The solid
waste fund’s operations are funded by user fees. During the current fiscal year a transfer from the general
fund was necessary to provide funds for operations. The solid waste fund balance increased in the
amount of $26,706. The user fee funding the solid waste fund, as well as additional funding alternatives,
will be evaluated to determine a long-term funding plan.
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Proprietary Funds. The City of Morristown’s proprictary funds provide the same type of information
found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail,

The unrestricted net position of the Cify’s business-type activities increased by $4,843,126. The
unrestricted net position of the City’s storm water fund increased $258,107 for the cwrent fiscal year.
Unrestricted net position of the Morristown Utilities Commission, which operates power, wastewater,
water, and broadband service for the City, at the end of the year, amounted to $15,955,446, a decrease of
$4,633,516. Morristown Utilities Commission’s debt increased by $10,436,894. For a more thorough
discussion of the Morristown Utilities Commission’s finances readers should consult the Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report issued by the Commission for the current fiscal year ended.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the fiscal year, amendments were necessary to increase estimated revenues and original budgeted
appropriations.  Additionally, there were amendments made to reallocate appropriafions between
departments without increasing the total appropriations. The original budget ordinance approved
appropriations totaling $36,980,908. Budget amendments were approved by Council during the year
increasing total appropriations to $38,784,211, an increase of $1,893,303 or 5.1%. Significant differences
between the original budget and the final amended budget for the current fiscal year can be briefly
summarized as follows:

e  $500,000 increase attributed to a Greenway Grant issued by the State of Tennessee.

e $371,900 increase attributed to grant funds from the State of Tennessee for improvements made
to the farmers’ market,

e $300,000 to transfer funds to the solid wasie fund for operations.

At the close of the fiscal year, actual expenditures were $5,625,578 less than budgetary estimates. This is
attributed to the timing of capital projects being started as anticipated and the conservative management
by depariment heads.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Morristown’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-
type activities as of June 30, 2015, amounts o $54 million and $196 million, respectively (net of
accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements
other than buildings, equipment, vehicles, park facilities, infrastructure, and construction in progress. The
total increase in capital assets for the current fiscal year was approximately 9%.
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City of Morristown's Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2044

Eand % 7,785,639 % 7.839.719 $ - k3 7,785,639 % 7.839.719
Buildings 11,914,275 12,291,359 11,914,275 12,291,359
Improvements other
than buildings 1,224,855 1,094,389 £,224,855 £,094,389
Machinery &
equipment 4,490,129 3,327,338 - 4,490,129 3,327,338
Infrasiructure 26,751,856 28,835,331 - 26,751,856 28,835,331
Litility plant and
equipment - - 178,546,840 167,284,097 178,546,840 167,284,097
Constyuction in
progress 1,772,999 815,278 £7,510,234 7,843,501 19,283,233 8,658,779
Fotal $ 53939753 $ 54203414 $ 196057074 $ 175127598 249,996,827 $  229,331.012

Additional information on the City of Morristown’s capital assets can be found in Note 4.C on pages 67-

68 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Morristown had total bonded debt
outstanding of $135.5 million; of this amount, $19.1 million comprises net direct debt of govermmental
activities. The remainder of the City of Morristown’s debt represents bonds secured by specified revenue
sources and the full faith and credit of the government.

The City’s breakdown of variable and fixed rate debt is 55% and 43% respectively.

The following is a brief summary of the City’s long-term debt by fund:

General fund

Solid waste fund

Sewer system
Storm water system
Electic system
Walersystem

Telecom system

Total Dcbt

City of Morristown's Long-Term Debt

Governmenlal activities

Total governmental activities

Business-type aclivities

Total business-type activilies

Balance Balance

July 1, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015
$ 19,885,568 % - % 1,147,443 § 18,738,125
352,406 - 26,035 3§ 326,351
20,237,974 - 1,173,498 19,064,476
56,493,784 14,478,032 3,361,311 67,610,505
4,863,257 - 211,125 4,652,132
18,725,025 1,477,707 1,079,034 19,124,298
14,409,471 - 856,783 13,552,688
11,024,874 - 221,717 11,403,157
106,117,011 15,955,739 5,729,970 116,342,780
126,354,985 § 15,955,739 % 6,903,468 $ 135,407,256
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The City of Morristown’s total debt increased by $9,052,271 (7.2%) during the current fiscal year. The
reason for the increase was attributed to continued ongoing construction projects to upgrade and enhance
the infrastructure of the wastewater plant, sewer lines, and pumping stations.

Additional information on the City of Morristown’s long-term debt can be found in Note 4.7 on pages 80-
85 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The following economic factors currently affect the City of Morristown and were considered in
developing the 2015-2016 fiscal year budget.

» As previously discussed, the continued retail development that the City of Momistown is
currently experiencing. Several major developments are under construction that will continue to
bring regional sales tax dollars to the City of Morristown. The State of Tennessee has projected
revenue growth at 3% for fiscal year 15-16. Based on data gathered, it appears reasonable that
the City of Morristown will receive at least an additional $167,000 of new revenues from the
development of a major retail chain. These new revenues are attributed to stopping the leakage
that had been occurring into a neighboring county. It is realistic to estimate the modest growth
equating to approximately 4.6% in 15-16 budgeted amount compared to 14-15 actual collections
or 7.8% increase when comparing 15-16 budgeted amount to 14-15 budgeted amounts, The
modest growth estimate will allow actual collections to meet or exceed budgeted amounts barring
any unforeseen economic downturn.

¢ The unemployment rate for the City of Morristown as of June 30, 2015, was 6.9%, which
continues to show improvement compared to 7.7% a year ago. This can be attributed to the
economic activity that the City of Mormistown is experiencing with expansions by current
manufacturing companies and several retail developments. The state’s average unemployment
rate  as  of June 30, 2015, was 6.3% and the national average was
5.5%.

o The property tax rate for tax year 2015 was adopted at the same effective rate as the 2014 tax
year.

During the current fiscal year, the assigned fund balance in the General Fund was $6,200,182. The City
of Morristown has appropriated $1,407,096 of this amount for spending in the 2015-2016 fiscal year
budget. This action was taken to address the need for improving the City of Morristown’s capital assets
without having to issue long-term debt, and is not spent on reoccuiring operating expenditures.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Morristown’s finances for
all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for addition financial information should be addressed to the City of
Morristown, Office of Finance, P.O. Box 1499, Momistown, Tennessee 37816-1499,
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ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash shoriags

Recelvables {net of allowance for uncoflectibles}
Irventories

Internal balances

Due from others

Other cureent assels

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Capltal assets (net of accumulated depreciation):

Land
Buiidings
Improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Utility plant and equipment
Construction In progress
Real esfale - non-operating
Due from other funds
Other assels
Plant acgulsition adjuslments
Total assets

DEFFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Penslon other deferrals
Accrual for unbilled revenue

Total deferred outflows of rescurces

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Uneamed revenus
Due to others - bonds and deposits
Internal balances
Customer deposils
Dug {0 other funds
General bonded debt
Due within one year
Due In more than one year
Capitat lease obligation
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Contractual liability
Due within one year
Due in mere than one year
Accrued post relirement benefit obligation
Compensated absences:
Estimated to be pald within one year
Estimated to be pald after cne year
Net penston liability
Total liabilitles

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCURCES
Pension changes - experience
Pension changes - investment eamings
Unearned revenue
Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Nat Investment in capital assels
Restricted for:
Community development
MNarcotics
Gas Tax
Public health and weifare
Soctal, eultural, and recreaticnal
Public works
Other oparations
Unrestricted {deficit)
Total net positlon

City of Morristown, Tennessea

Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2015
Primary Government
Governmental Businass-Type
Activitles Activities Total
$ 16,620,297 $ 23,466,996 $ 38,987,293
500 - 500
13,920,026 8,739,866 22,659,802
47,869 1,650,205 1,698,074
114,517 - 114,517
1,028,959 1,028,958
30,678 142,487 173,165
186,551,340 16,551,340
7,785,639 7,785,639
11,814,275 11,914,275
1,224,855 1,224,855
4,480,129 4,490,128
26,751,856 26,751,856
178,546,840 178,546,840
4,772,890 7,510,234 19,283,233
11,668,742 11,668,742
6,044,728 6,044,728
369,060 369,060
309,367 309,367
95,242 382 254,360,082 348,602,464
1,953,008 29,132 1,982,140
56,251 2,622,786 2,679,037
2,009,259 2,651,918 4,661,177
1,068,074 10,763,358 11,831,432
914,581 3,055,179 3,069,760
976,921 976,921
50,825 50,825
114,517 114,517
3,880,338 3,880,338
6,044,728 6,044,728
1,211,530 6,096,840 7,308,370
17,852,946 105,633,343 123,386,289
18,877 18,877
42,296 42,296
150,527 150,527
2,450,161 2,450,161
767,727 767,727
370,702 370,702
864,970 8,815 873,785
8,534,683 128,112 8,662 805
31,845,242 139,054,818 170,900,060
421,366 6,325 421,691
3,632,773 54,530 3,687,303
10,348,845 264,342 10,611,287
14,401,084 325,197 14,726,281
34 875,277 98,316,369 133,191,646
71,418 71,418
83,285 83,295
950,086 950,086
857,150 857,150
57,013 57,073
45,667 45,667
355,504 355,504
13,709,845 19,315,616 33,025 461
$ 51,005,315 $ 117,631,985 $ 168,637,300

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Statement of Activities
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Net (Expense} Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position
Operating Capital Primary Government
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Expenses Service Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Eunctions/Program
Primary government
Governmental activities
General govemment $ 4,726,075 $ 1,183,648 % - 8 - $  (3542427) $ - $ (3,542,427}
Public safety 14,168,464 365,498 187,874 - {13,615,094) - (13,615,084}
Public werks 10,493,687 1,356,626 903,535 - {8,233,526) - (8,233,528)
Parks and recraation 1,807,804 - 560 - (1,807,244) - (1,807,244)
Economic development 417,774 - 1,884,884 “ 1,467,110 - 1,467,110
Civic support 942,834 - 41,848 - (900,886) - {800,886)
Retiree heaith insurance 382,916 - - - (382,916) - (382,916)
Long-term debt expense 263,167 - - - (263,167) - {263,167)
Total govemmenta! activities 33,202,721 2,805,770 3,018,801 - (27,278.150) - {27.,278,150)
Business-type activities:
Water 6,117,002 6,411,681 32,807 99,800 - 427,286 427,286
Wastewater 9,385,294 12,247,129 808,636 51,400 - 3,721,871 3,721,8M
Storm water 994,148 1,276,062 - - - 281,814 281,914
Pawer 75,855,798 75,151,759 1,434,086 - - 730,027 730,027
Broadband 7,330,637 8.233.118 311,017 - - 1,219,498 1,219,498
Total business-type activities 99,682,879 103,325,749 2,586,526 151,200 - 6,380,596 6,380,596
Total primary government $ 132,885,600 $ 106,231,519 $  5805,327 $ 151,200 (27,278,150) 6,380,696 (20,897,554)
Property taxes 9,916,198 - 9,916,198
Franchise taxes 728,174 - 726,174
l.ocal sales tax 10,793,398 - 10,793,398
Alcohol beverage tax 1,316,273 - 1,316,273
Business and gross receipts tax 958,795 - 958,795
Hotel¥motel tax 565,490 - 566,480
Litigation tax 12,908 - 12,9086
Other revenue 502,987 60,378 563,365
Intergovernmental (unrestricted) 4,321,104 - 4,321,104
Total governmental fund revenue 29,113.325 60,378 29,173,703
Transfers 1,597,848 (1,597,848) -
Total general revenues and transfers 30,741,173 (1,537,470) 29,173,703
Change in ret position 3.433,023 4,843,126 8,276,149
Net position - beginning 59,859,024 112,970,648 172,829,672
Prior period adjustment (12,286,732) (181,789) (12,468,521)
Net position as adjusted - beginning 47,572,292 112,788,859 160,361,151
Net position - ending $ 51005315 $ 117,631,985 $ 168,637,300

The notes to financial staternents are an integral part of this statement,




Clty of Morristown, Tennessee

Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
Junae 30, 2015

Total
Sofld Waste NonMafor Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 14,198,512 $ 209,802 $ 240,304 $ 14,648,618
Cash shortage - - 500 500
Recelvables {net of alfowance 13,681,577 135,052 36,463 13,863,002
for uncollectibles)
interfund loans receivable - current 114,517 - - 114,517
Inventories 47,869 - - 47,869
Real estale - non-operating 11,668,742 - - 11,668,742
Tolal assets 39,721,217 344,854 277,267 40,343,338
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESCURCES
Accrued unbilled revenue - 56,251 - 56,251
Total assels and deferrod outfiows of resources $ 39,721,217 $ 401,105 $ 277,267 40,399,589
LIABILITIES b
Accounts payabla $ 626,460 $ 78,361 $ 6,157 $ 711,018
Due to others-bonds 50,825 - B 50,825
Accrued expenditures and other current liabiities 914,581 . - 914,581
Uneamed revenue 913,250 36,481 27,180 976,921
Total ffabliitles 2,505,116 114,842 33,387 2,653,345
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred revanus 10,201,527 56,251 89,167 10,346,945
FUND BALANGES
Nonspendable
Inventories 47,869 - - 47,869
Real estate - non-oparating 11,666,742 - - 11,668,742
Restricted
Narcotics - 83,295 83,285
Community development - . 71,418 71,418
Gas tax 950,088 - 950,086
Public health and welfare 857,150 857,150
Social, cultural, and recreationat 67,073 57,073
Public works 45,867 45,687
Other operalions 355,504 355,504
Assigned
Solid waste 230,012 - 230,012
General government 584,505 - 584,505
Flnance 62,106 62,108
Public safaty 18,019 - 18,018
Public works 21,248 21,248
Social, culteral, and recreational 12,273 12,273
Agrculture and natural resources 605,276 605,276
Other operations 2,771 2,71
Capital projects 3,156,876 - 3,156,876
Other purposes 1,507,006 - 1,607,096
Unassigned 7,082,313 - 7,062,313
Total fund balances 27,014,574 236,012 154,713 27,398,299
Yaotal ligbilities, defarred Inflows of resources, and fund balances § 39,721,217 $ 401,105 § 277,267

Amounts reported for governmenial aclivities In the statament
of net position are different bacause:
Capital assets used In governmental
activities are not financial resources and,
thersfore, are not reported in the funds, 53,639,753
Ciher long-lerm assets are not avallable to pay for current
pariod expenditures and thezefore are reported as defarred
Infiows of resources in the funds. (12,588,832}
Long-term Habiltles, Including bonds payable, and deferred
outflows of resources are not due and payable In the current
period and therefore are nol repuried In the funds. (18,347,140}
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the
costs of cerfaln acthities, such as insurance, to Individual
funds. The assets and llabilities of the intemal service fund
&re Included In governmental activities in the statement of

net position. 602,235
Net position of govermnmental activities $ 51005315

The notes to financlal statements are an integra part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Total Total
Solid Waste Non Major Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
Revenues:
Faxes:
Property $ 9,916,198 $ - $ - $ 9,916,198
Franchise 726,174 - - 726,174
Local sales tax 10,793,398 - - 10,793,398
Alcoholic beverages 1,316,273 - - 1,316,273
Business and gross receipts 958,795 - - 958,795
Hotel/motel tax 565,490 - - 565,490
Litigation tax 12,906 - - 12,806
Total taxes 24,289,234 - 24,289,234
Licenses, permits and fines 287,287 - 78,209 365,496
Cther revenue 502,987 - - 502,987
Service charges and fees 1,183,648 1,356,626 - 2,540,274
Intergovernmental 6,866,289 - 473,616 7,338,805
Total revenues 33,129,445 1,356,626 551,825 35,037,896
Expenditures:
Current:
General government:
Mayor and council 150,070 - - 150,070
Council elections 16,814 - - 16,814
City administrator 483,567 - - 483,567
Finance 757,713 - - 757,713
Purchasing 72,245 - - 72,245
Computer operations 507,561 - - 507,561
Human resources 281,486 - - 281,486
l.egal services 202,303 - - 202,303
Community and economic affairs 1,512,977 - - 1,512,977
Codes enforcement 178,208 - - 178,206
Community development - - 488,008 488,008
Engineering 228,660 - - 229,660
Gis 250,941 - - 250,941
Inspections 420,123 - - 420,123
Total general government 5,063,666 - 488,008 5,551,674
Public safety:
Police 7.543,238.00 - 552,046 8,095,284
Fire 7.579,278.00 - - 7.579,278
Total public safety 15,122,518.00 - 552,046 15,674,562

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Total Total
Solid Waste Non Major Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
Public works 7,127,460 1,585,705 - 8,723,165
Parks and recreation 2,024,368 - - 2,024,368
Civic support 756,937 - - 756,937
Library 257,000 - - 257,000
Economic development 328,040 - - 328,040
Retiree health insurance 382,916 - - 382,916
Debt service:
Bond principal 1,147,537 26,023 - 1,173,560
Bond interest 161,713 8,192 - 169,905
Bond expense 93,262 - - 93,262
Total debt service 1,402,512 34,215 - 1,436,727
Total expenditures 32,465,415 1,628,920.00 1.040,054.00 35,135,389
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 664,030 {273,284.00) (488,229.00) (97,493)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1,597,848 300,000 483,218 2,381,068
Transfers out (783,218) - - (783,218)
Total other financing sources and uses 814,630 300,000 483,218 1,597,848
Net change in fund balances 1,478,660 26,706 {5,011) 1,500,355
Fund balances - beginning 25,712,009 203,308 159,724 26,075,039
Prior period adjustment {176,085) - - {176,095)
Fund balances - ending 27,014,574 3 230,012 154,713 g 27,399,200

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activilies are
different because:

Net change in fund balances--total governmental funds

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the
government-wide financial statements, capital asset additions are reported

as additions to capital assets.

In the government-wide financial statements, certain capital assets are
depreciated. in the governmental basis financial statements, capital assets
are charged to expenditures, therefore, depreciation is not taken.

Issuance of long-term debt

The payment of iong-term debt is reported as an expenditure in the
governmental funds financial statements, but is considered as a reduction
in debt in the city-wide financial statements.

The payment of bond issue expense is considered an expenditure in the
governmental financial statements, whereas, in the cily-wide financial
statements, it is considered an asset and is amorlized.

Compensated absences are considered expenditures when paid on the
governmental fund basis, but in the government-wide financial statements
are considered expenses as incurred.

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
actlvities, such as insurance, to individual funds. The net revenue (expense)

of the internal service fund is reported with governmental activities.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to financial statements are an integratl pari of this statement.

$ 1,500,355

2,795,318

{3,058,979)

1,173,496

(36,674)

(415,307)

1,474,814

$ 3,433,023
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Revenues;
Local taxes:
Property taxes-current $ 8,650,000 $ 8650000 $ 9319187 $ 669,187
Property taxes-prior 220,000 220,000 244,040 24,040
Penalty and interest 85,000 85,000 127,695 42,695
Property taxes-delinquent 120,000 120,000 160,554 40,554
In lieuftax equivalent 1,148,743 1,548,743 64,722 (1,484,021}
Cable franchise tax 200,000 200,000 332,266 132,256
Gas franchise tax 400,000 400,000 303,918 (6,082}
Local option sales tax 10,086,701 16,086,701 10,793,388 706,697
Wholesale beer fax 976,809 976,899 966,986 (9,913)
Wholesale liquor tax - 240,000 240,000 340,287 108,287
Business and gross receipts tax 921,027 921,027 958,785 37,768
Hotel and motel tax 500,000 500,000 565,490 65,490
City litigation tax - - 12,906 12,906
Total local taxes 23,548,370 23,948,370 24,289,234 340,864
Licenses and permits;
Beer permits 15,000 15,000 15,580 580
Building permits 85,000 129,000 206,388 77,388
Electrical permits 15,000 15,000 19,134 4,134
Plumbing permits 11,000 11,000 16,663 5,663
Gas permits 3,500 3,500 5,587 2,087
Bevelopment fees 5,000 5,000 15,198 10,198
Sidewalks 4,000 4,000 - {4,000}
Sign permits - - 8,737 8,737
Server permits 8,000 8,000 - (8,000)
Farmers market permits 1,000 1,000 - {1,000}
Total licenses and permils 147 500 191,500 287,287 95,787
Intergovernmental revenue:
USDA summer feeding program 90,000 80,000 41,948 {48,052)
ARRA grants - - - -
TVA gross receipts tax 300,000 300,000 337,702 37,702
State sales tax 1,947,726 1,947,726 2,387,650 439,924
Telecommunication sales tax 2,300 2,300 3,488 1,188
State income tax 135,000 135,000 349,118 214,118
State beer tax 12,000 12,000 13,835 1,935
Mixed drink tax - - 41,645 41,645
Slate gasoline tax 740,001 740,091 832,416 092,325
State PTS tax 55,400 55,400 68,379 13,979
Dept. of transportation proj. revenue 3,854,400 3,854,400 31,720 (3,542,680)
Dept. of transportation airport grants 1,749,500 1,749,500 773,926 (975,574)
Other state revenue 500,000 500,000 8,516 {491,484)
C.O.P.S. grant 187,434 187,434 - {187.434)
State excise tax 10,000 10,000 10,247 247
Airport maintenance grant 20,000 20,000 8,462 {11,538)
C.0.P.S, more grant 100,000 100,000 - {100,000)
Public safety in-service - 49,000 149,385 100,385
Dept. of justice grants - - 20,787 20,787
Police department grants and reimb - - 5,662 5,662
Public works reimbursements - - 1,740 1,740
Parks & rec granis & reimbursement - - 2,603 2,503
Governor highway safety grant - 20,000 12,040 {7,960)
Greenway grant and reimbursement - 282,000 1,110,958 828,958
State of TN farmers market 22,000 143,900 4,320 (142,580)
TML grants 2,000 2,000 2,000 -
Other county revenue 280,600 280,000 369,742 89,742
Total intergovernmental revenue 10,007,851 10,480,751 6,866,289 (3,614,462)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 28



City of Mormistown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Finat
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Fines and users fees:
Recreation fees 145,000 145,000 122,880 {22,120)
City court fines and costs 800,600 800,000 531,417 {368,583)
Redflex citations - 46,000 438,941 392,941
Sex offender reglstry 3,000 3,000 3,600 600
DU fines 84,000 84,000 86,810 2,810
Total fines and users fees 1,132,000 1,178,000 1,183,648 5,648
Other revenue:
Other reimbursemeants and refunds 1,780,000 2,550,600 - {2.550,600)
Donations fo parks and recreation 50,000 76,000 560 (75,440)
Donations-police - - 1,622 1,622
Fire department donations - - 229 229
Police reports 2,000 2,000 3,101 1,101
Dacview reporis 1,000 1,000 270 {730}
Fees & commissions - - 21,571 21,571
Fire depariment charge for services - - 3,600 3,600
Interest on investments 5,000 5,000 22,641 17,641
Rental of city property 130,000 130,000 160,591 30,591
Rental income-airport 20,000 20,000 148,101 129,101
Sale of land - 73,803 43,023 (30,780}
Gain on sale of property - - 43,803 43,803
Judgments and restitution - - 245 245
Special assessments - charges - 10,000 - (10.000)
Driver license verification - - 66 66
Insurance reimbursements - - 9,742 9,742
Workers comp reimbursements & refunds - - 5,167 5,167
Miscellaneous 38,000 88,000 37,665 {50,345}
Total other revenue 2,026,000 2,956,403 502,987 {2,453,418)
Total revenue 36,861,721 38,755,024 33,129,445 (5,625,579}
Expenditures:
General government:
Mayor and city counci:
Wages & salaries permanent emp.. 37,200 37,200 36,650 (550}
Christmas bonus & longevity 667 967 947 (20}
F..CA. 2,348 2,348 1,979 {369)
Medicare 549 549 463 (86)
Employee health insurance 68,952 68,952 54,155 (14,797)
Employee life insurance 132 132 - {132)
Postal service 175 175 €5 (110}
Printing services 1,200 2,200 1,672 (528}
Legal notices 2,100 2,100 2,290 190
Electricity 1,633 1,633 1,695 {38}
Water & sewer 248 248 182 {66}
Natural gas & propane - - 98 98
Telephone services 1,250 1,350 1,360 10
Subscriptions & books 400 400 258 {142}
Memberships & dues 17,000 17,000 15,193 (1,807)
Education seminars & {raining 1,800 1,800 1,590 {210)
Travel business expenses 12,000 16,000 16,590 590
Other contracled services - 1,600 1,600 -
Cffice supplies & materials 750 750 559 {191)
Cffice equipment - 625 617 &)
General operating supplies - - 93 93
Other supplies & materials 800 800 408 (392)
Insurance 3,102 3,767 3,767 -

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Qriginal Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Property {contents) insurance 709 709 508 {201)
Equipment rentaliease - 1,800 1,713 (87
Counclf contingency 90,000 68,195 5,718 {62,477)
Total mayor and clty council 243.015 231,300 150,070 {81,230)
Council elections:
Other contracted services 16,000 16,815 16,814 {H)
City administrator:
Wages and salaries 333,423 333,423 328,367 (5,056)
Overtime 1,056 1,056 348 {708)
Christmas bonus & longevity 1,056 1,481 1,473 (8)
FILC.A. 20,803 20,803 17,350 (3,453)
Medicare 4,865 4,865 4,467 (398)
TCRS contribution 49,861 43,861 49,066 (795}
Employse health insurance 36,291 42,291 41,343 {948)
Employee life insurance 1,154 1,154 - {1,154)
Warkers compensation insurance 4,202 5,302 5,300 2}
Postal service 200 200 67 {133}
Office supplies 1,500 1,500 - {1,500}
Legal notices - - 1,497 1,497
Electricity 5717 5,717 5,582 {135)
Waler & sewer 866 866 636 {230)
Natural gas & propane - 345 345 -
Telephone services 2,000 3,500 3,435 {65)
Subscriptions & books 2,000 2,000 822 {1,178)
Memberships & dues 4,500 4,500 3,679 {821)
Education seminars & training 1,600 1,75G 2,357 607
Travel business expenses 15,000 15,000 4,602 (10,398)
Other contracted services 4,000 10,000 9,940 (60)
Office supplies & materials 500 500 444 (56}
General operating supplies 500 500 67 {433)
Other supplies & materials 100 100 23 (7N
Insurance general liability 331 401 395 {6}
Properly {contents) insurance 76 76 53 (23)
Equipment rentalflease 3,000 3,000 1,809 {1,091)
Granis & other subsidies 25,000 9,810 - {9,810)
Total city administrator 519,001 520,001 483,567 (36,434)
Finance department:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 263,668 294,668 294,702 34
Overtime 500 500 442 {58)
Christmas bonus & longevity 1,740 1,740 1,658 {82)
F.1.CA. 16,486 17,986 17,939 {47}
Medicare 3,856 4,256 4,195 {61)
TCRS contribution 39,514 44,214 44,105 {109}
Employee health insurance 75,483 60,483 54,743 (5,740)
Employee life insurance 1,138 1,138 - (1,138)
Workers compensation insurance 9,105 9,105 8,613 (492}

The notles to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Criginal Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Postal service 10,000 15,000 13,109 (1,891)
Printing services 500 500 16 {484)
Legal notices 1,200 1,200 502 (698)
Electricity 12,251 12,251 11,961 {(290)
Water & sewer 800 1,700 1,363 {337)
Natural gas & propane - 750 738 (12)
Telephone services - 5,300 5,100 (200
Medical services - 30 28 2}
Accounting & audit services 48,000 46,000 50,035 4,035
Computer/data service 45,000 49,600 49,557 (43)
Other professional services 70,097 70,097 87,366 17,269
Repair & maint, office equip. 400 400 - {400)
Subscriptions & books 250 250 48 {202)
Memberships & dues 1,750 1,750 1,037 {713)
Education seminars & training 3,000 3,500 4,629 1,029
Travel business expenses 6,000 6,600 5,746 (254)
Other contracted services 20,500 20,600 15,772 {4,728}
Office supplies & materials 5,002 7,502 8,124 622
Office equipment 1,500 2,700 - (2,700}
Educational & training supplies 30 30 - {30}
General operating supplies 200 200 2 {198}
Insurance a72 1,162 1,168 (4}
OPEB funding 23,281 23,281 - {23,281}
Property taxes - 46,000 45,519 {481)
Property {contents) insurance 223 223 157 (66}
Equipment rental/lease 7,000 14,500 11,525 {2,975}
Bank services & charges 5,000 5,000 2,351 {2,649)
Cash variances - - 3t 31
Reimbursable expenses - - 15,542 15,5642
Total finance department 672,446 769,516 757,713 (11,803)
Purchasing depariment:
Wages and salaries 47,754 46,686 46,077 (609)
Overtime 280 250 48 (202)
Christmas bonus and longevity 288 288 289 1
FICA 2,994 2,994 2,784 (210)
Medicare 760 700 651 (49)
TCRS contribution 7178 7,176 6,509 (667}
Employee health insurance 11,628 11,628 11,127 (501)
Employee life insurance 186 186 - (186)
Workers compensation insurance 1,401 1,401 1,325 (76)
Postal service 400 400 1 {399}
Other professional services 200 200 - {200}
Membership and dues 80 80 108 28
Education seminars and training 400 400 50 {350}
Travel business expenses 600 600 580 {20}
Office supplies and materials 400 1,050 1,024 (26}
Office equipment 250 500 489 {11}
Other supplies & materials 50 50 - (50}
Insurance 839 1,004 1,000 (4}
Property {contents) insurance 193 193 135 (58)
Other miscellaneous expenses - - 48 48
Total purchasing department 75,786 75,786 72,245 {3,541}

The notes {o financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Bafance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Varjance
Retiree benefits-general fund:

Health insurancelretirees 500,000 450,530 382,916 (67,614)
Total retiree benelits-general fund 500,000 450,530 382,916 (67.614)
Computer operations:

Wages and salaries 61,872 62,372 62,121 {251)

Christmas bonus and longevity 1,131 631 289 (342}

FICA 3,906 3,806 3,720 (186)

Medicare 914 914 870 (44)

TCRS contribution 9,362 9,362 9,274 (88)

Employee health insurance 12,566 12,566 11,593 {973)

Employee life insurance 242 242 - {242)

Workers compensation insurance 1,401 1,401 1,325 (76)

Clothingfuniforms/shoes 100 100 - {100)

Postal service - - 8 8

Legal notices - 730 726 (4}

Electriclty 1,633 1,633 1,595 {(38)

Water & sewer 48 298 182 (116}

Natural gas & propane 100 100 98 (2)

Telephone services 3,000 4,000 3,615 (385}

Computer/data service 31,600 31,800 24,252 {7.348)

Other professional services 750 750 - (750)

Repair & maint. office equip. 500 500 - (500)

Repair & maint. bldg./grounds - - - -

Subscriptions & books 200 200 154 (46)

Memberships & dues 400 400 - (400)

Education seminars & training 3,000 3,000 775 (2,225)

Trave! business expenses 2,500 2,500 953 {1,547)

Other contracted services 31,600 41,600 39,299 (2,301)

Office supplies & materials 200 200 19 (181}

ADP parts & components 5,000 5,000 4,381 (619)

General operating supplies 600 600 - (600}

Gasoline & diese! fuet 200 200 73 (127}

Veh partsjoilfluidftires - 1,500 - (1,500}

Insurance 3,710 4,480 4,423 {37)

Property {contents) insurance 851 851 599 {252)

Equipment rentalflease - - - -

Office equipment 308,200 304,220 337,217 32,997
Total computer operations 485,586 495,836 507,561 11,725
Human resources:

Wages & salaries permanent emp. 166,375 147,375 146,754 (621)

Overtime 500 500 - (500)

Christmas bornus & longevity 1,164 1,164 1,131 (33)

FACA. 9,798 8,798 8,882 {916)

Medicare 2,292 2,292 2,077 {215)

TCRS contribution 23,312 23,312 20,545 {2,767)

Employee health insurance 29,127 29,127 27,844 {1,283)

Employee life insurance 556 556 - {556)

Workers compensation insurance 3,502 6,852 6,828 (24)

Tuition reimbursement 4,000 - - -

Postal senvice 300 550 459 (91)

Printing services 600 600 - {600)

L.egal notices 775 8,775 7,343 {1,432)

Electricity 4,000 4,000 3,087 {13}

The notes o financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Water & sewer 260 610 454 (156)
Natural gas & propane - 200 246 46
Telephone services 1,100 2,200 2,492 202
Medical services 100 100 - (100}
Subscriptions & books 420 2,420 2,317 (103)
Memberships & dues 750 750 782 32
Education seminars & fraining 11,500 5,500 3,842 {1,658}
Travel business expenses 4,000 6,500 7,781 1,281
Cthar contracted services 30,750 30,750 25,380 {5,370)
Office supplies & materials 1,500 2,700 2,805 105
Office equipment 500 500 338 {162)
Educationa! & training supplies 100 100 - (100)
General operating supplies 600 600 287 (313)
Other supplies & materials 500 1,700 1,701 1
Insurance 3,240 3,240 3,436 196
Property {contents} insurance 750 750 528 (222)
Equipment rental/lease 3,000 3,500 3,227 {273}
Penatties for late filing - - 20 20
Total human resources 285 371 297,021 281,486 {15,535}
Legal services:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 11,403 11,403 10,1456 {1,258)
Christmas bonus & longevity 2,937 2,937 406 (2,531)
Health and life insurance - - - -
F.1C.A. 889 889 . 541 (348)
Medicare 208 208 127 (81)
TCRS conliibution 2,131 2,131 - (2,131}
Employee health insurance 22,279 22,279 11,824 {10,455)
Employee life insurance 49 49 - (49)
Workers compensation insurance 1,401 2,651 2,650 (1)
Altorney consult fees - - - -
Legal services 79,000 154,000 160,105 6,105
Subscriptions & books 4,000 4,000 3,757 {243)
Other confracted services - 25,000 11,652 {13,448)
Insurance 883 883 1,053 170
Property (contents) insurance 203 203 143 {60}
Total legal services 125,383 226,633 202,303 {24,330
Community and economic affairs:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 219,304 219,304 210,565 (8,739)
Overlime 134 134 - {134}
Christmas bonus & longevity 1,128 1,128 791 {337)
F.LC.A. 13,675 13,675 12,736 {939}
Madicare 3,198 3,198 2,979 {219)
TCRS contribution 32,776 32,776 31,407 {1,369}
Employee heaith insurance 28,679 39,679 39,429 {250)
Employee life insurance 701 701 - (701}
Workers compensation insurance 4,519 4,639 4,638 (1)
Postal service 250 1,250 875 {375)
Printing services 500 500 218 (282)
Legal notices 5,000 5,000 1,105 {3,895)
Medical services 100 100 28 {72)
Computerfdata processing - 2,100 2,069 {31)
Other professional services 250 250 - (250)
Repair & maint, office equip. 2,000 2,000 - {2,000}
Subscriptions & books 200 200 157 (43)
Memberships & dues 2,000 2,000 1,069 (931}

The notes o financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessea
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Finai
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Education seminars & training 2,500 2,500 451 (2,049)
Travel business expenses 3,000 3,000 4,127 1,127
Other contracted services 837,215 684,145 33,610 {650,535}
Office supplies & materials 1,500 2,250 2,161 (89}
General operating supplies 200 200 165 {35)
Gasoline & diesel fue} 1,000 1,000 287 (713}
Veh. parisfoitfluidftires 1,000 1,000 - {1,000}
Other supplies & materials 1,500 1,500 1,445 (55)
Insurance 839 839 1,000 161
Property (contents) insurance 193 193 135 (58)
Equipment rentalflease 2,000 2,000 852 {1,048)
LAMTPO local match 45,130 45,130 45,130 -
Grants & other subsidies - 1,010,000 1,115,448 105,448
Total community and economic affairs 1,210,491 2,082,391 1,512,877 {569,414}
Codes enforcement:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 78,501 73,001 74,460 1,459
QOvertime “ 5,500 4,018 (1,481)
Christmas bonus & longevity 582 582 562 (20}
F.LC.A. 4,903 4,803 4,688 {215)
Medicare 1,147 1,147 1,092 {55)
TCRS contribution 11,762 11,752 11,345 (407)
Employee heaith insurance 23,041 23,041 23,169 128
Employee life insurance 292 292 - (292}
Workers compensation insurance 2,801 2,801 2,650 (151}
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 1,000 1,000 726 (274)
Postal service 600 600 1,053 453
Legal notices 200 200 - (200}
Electricity - 1,500 1,585 95
Water & sewer - 300 182 (118}
Natural gas & propane - 200 98 (102)
Telephone services 720 720 1,341 621
Computer/data processing 250 250 - (250)
Repair & maintenance - vehicle 1,000 1,000 825 (175)
Education seminars & training 1,000 1,000 198 {801)
Travel business expanses 800 BOO - {800)
Other contracted services 30,000 40,000 41,337 1,337
Office supplies & materials 100 100 83 (17)
Small tools & equipment 500 500 100 {400)
General operating supplies 250 250 179 (71)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 7,000 7,000 4,680 {2,320)
Veh. parisfoilffluiditires 3,000 3,000 2,029 {971)
Insurance 442 442 527 85
Property (contents) insurance 101 101 71 {30)
Equipment rentalllease 100 100 1,196 1,086
Total codes enforcemant 170,082 182,082 178,206 (3,876)
Engineering:
Whages & salaries permanent emp. 119,720 116,220 108,870 {7,350}
Overtime 1,000 4,500 4,248 {252)
Christmas bonus & longevity 813 813 81 {732}
F.ILC.A. 7,535 7,535 6,830 {705}

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Meorristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Criginal Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Medicare 1,762 1,762 1,597 {165)
TCRS contribution 18,060 18,060 16,701 (1,359)
Employee health insurance 27,798 27,798 27,200 {5689)
Employee life Insurance 725 725 - {725)
Workers compensation insurance 4,342 4,342 3,048 {1,294)
Unemployment insurance - - - -
Clothingfuniforms/shoes 250 250 799 549
Postal service 200 200 26 (174)
Legat notices 250 250 675 425
Electricity 4,084 - - -
Water & sewer 450 450 - (450}
Natural gas & propane 450 450 - (450)
Telephone services 2,000 2,600 1,843 {157}
Medical services - - - -
Computer/data processing - 2,100 2,069 (31)
Subscriptions & books 250 250 - {250}
Memberships & dues 2,500 2,500 1,441 {(1,059)
Education seminars & training 1,500 1,500 1,100 {400)
Travel business expenses 1,250 1,250 812 {438)
Other contracted services 30,000 30,000 41,865 11,865
Office supplies & materials 2,500 2,500 748 (1,752)
Office equipment 500 3,100 2,529 (571)
Computers software 900 900 136 (764)
General operating supplies 2,500 2,500 684 (1,816)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 2,500 3,250 2,854 {396)
Veh. parts/oilffluiditires 1,000 1,000 363 {637}
Other supplies & materials 900 900 50 {850}
insurance 1,630 1,630 1,843 33
Property {contents) insurance 374 374 263 {111}
Equipment rental/lease 12,840 9,990 876 (9,114}
Total engineering 250,583 249,099 229,660 (19,439}
GlIS:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 100,797 115,797 116,101 (696)
Christmas bonus & longevity - 165 162 (3}
F.L.C.A. 6,249 7,049 6,999 (50}
Medicare 1,462 1,662 1,637 (25)
TCRS contribution 14,978 17,178 17,128 (50)
Employee health insurance 21,169 23,169 23,026 (143)
Employee fife insurance 22,242 2 - {2)
Workers compensation insurance - 2,650 2,650 -
Electricity - 4,084 3,087 (97)
Water & sewer - 600 454 {146)
Natural gas & propane - - 246 246
Telephone services - 2,800 2,606 {194)
Medical services - - - -
Memberships & dues 1,500 1,500 - (1,500)
Education seminars & training 2,000 2,000 625 (1,375)
Travel business expenses 750 750 2,566 1,816
Cther coniracted services 50,000 66,000 63,762 (2,238)
Office supplies & materials 500 1,000 901 (99)
Office equipment - “ 12 12
Computer/software - 5,800 5,742 (58)
General operating supplies 1,500 1,600 - {1,500}
Gasoline & diesel fuel 1,500 1,500 - {1,500)
Other supplies & materials 2,500 2,500 - {2,500)
Insurance general liability - - 706 706
Equipment rental/fease. - 3,000 2,631 {368}
Total GIS 227,147 260,706 250,941 {9,765)

Police supervision:

The notes fo financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budge! Actual Variance
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 252,831 277,831 275,288 {2,543)
Overtime 1,000 1,000 26 (974)
Supplemental training pay - 3,856 3,856 - {3,856)
Christmas bonus & longevity 2,486 2,486 2,632 146
F..C.A. 16,131 16,881 16,771 (110}
Medicare 3,773 3,023 3,922 {1)
TCRS contribution 38,662 41,162 41,124 (38)
Employee health insurance 68,754 68,754 65,820 {2,934)
Employee life insurance 1,103 1,103 - {1,103)
Workers compensation insurance 8,405 8,405 7,950 {455)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 950 950 700 (250)
Postal service 1,200 1,200 612 {588)
Printing services 300 300 299 (1t
Legal notices 100 100 18 (82)
Eleciricity - 50,000 45,450 {4,650)
Water & sewer - 7,000 5,181 {1,819}
Naturat gas & propane - 2,000 2,806 806
Telephone services 4,200 34,200 19,277 {14,923}
Medical services - - 84 84
Computer/data processing 32,740 32,740 34,284 1,554
Other professional services 1,000 1,000 930 {70)
Repair & maint. vehicles 150 150 - {150)
Repair & maint. bidg./grounds - - - -
Subscriptions & books 850 850 640 {210)
Memberships & dues 2,650 2,650 2,575 (75)
Education seminars & training 2,300 2,300 945 (1,355)
Travel business expenses 7,500 7,500 6,621 (879)
Other contracted services - - 250 250
Office supplies & materials 1,200 1,200 1,090 {110}
Office equipment 5,800 6,719 6,719 -
Gasoline & diesel fuel 6,000 6,000 3,723 (2,277}
Veh. partsfofiffluiditires 500 500 491 )]
Other supplies & materials - - - -
Insurance 4,770 4,770 5,687 917
Property {contents} insurance 1,005 1,095 770 {325)
Equipment rentalflease 4,000 4,000 3,128 (872)
Sex offenders administration - - 1,200 1,200
Other miscellaneous expenses - - 530 530
DOJ JAG grant - 16,150 16,146 {4)
Total police supervision 474,306 608,775 573,609 {35,076)
Patrol and traffic:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 2,689,805 2,789,805 2,819,656 29,851
Overtime 85,000 105,000 82,772 {12,228}
Wages & salaries temp. emp. 10,600 18,100 17,989 (111}
Holiday pay 77,684 112,684 112,554 (130}
Christmas bonus & longevily 24,065 25,365 25,362 {3)
FILCA. 179,004 186,504 186,316 (188)
Medicare 31,264 43,764 43,574 (190)
TCRS contribution 429,031 454,031 444,990 {9,041)
Employee health insurance 741,141 756,141 750,939 {5,202)
Employee life insurance 10,692 10,592 - {10,592)
Workers compensation insurance 103,721 103,721 92,124 {11,597)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 62,450 62,450 67,980 5,530

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Postal service 500 500 198 (302}
Printing services 2,500 2,500 2,530 30
Telephone services 16,800 29,300 25,185 (4,105)
Medical services 7,500 7.500 10,892 3,392
Other professional services 5,000 5,000 4,294 (706}
Repairs & maint. communications 1,500 1,500 1,307 (193}
Repair & maint. vehicles 10,000 16,000 10,270 270
Repair & maint. bldg./grounds 5,000 5,000 7,672 2,672
Memberships & dues 2,000 2,000 1,146 (854)
Education seminars & training 24,000 24,000 17,693 (6,307)
Travel business expenses 25,000 21,350 21,130 (220)
Other contracted services 8,500 7,581 6,978 (603)
Office supplies & materials 10,000 10,000 9,433 (567)
Munitions 24,000 24,000 23,349 (651)
Small tools & equipment 52,080 55,730 56,779 1,049
General operating supplles 300 300 468 168
Gasoline & diesel fuel 260,000 180,000 192,079 12,079
Veh. parts/oil/fluiditires 65,000 65,000 62,895 {2,105)
Insurance 80,849 80,849 . 96,293 15,444
Property {contents) insurance 18,445 18,445 12,975 {5,470}
Equipment rentaiffease 4,143 4,143 2,622 {1.521)
Other misceliansous expenses - - 572 572
Motor equipment 359,000 359,000 341,146 (17,854}
Other capital outiay 71,450 71,450 70,858 (592}
Tota! patrol and traffic 5,497,924 5,653,305 5,633,030 {(20,275)
Police investigation:
Wages & salaries permaneni emp. 836,647 781,647 794,600 12,953
Overtime 28,000 28,000 25,407 (2,593)
Christmas bonus & longevity 10,760 10,760 10,236 (524)
F.LC.A. 54,275 54,275 50,243 (4,032)
Medicare 12,693 12,693 11,750 (943)
TCRS contribution 130,086 130,086 120,789 {9,297}
Employee health insurance 174,664 174,664 162,225 (12,439}
Employee life insurance 3,153 3,153 - {3,153)
Workers compensation insurance 21,832 21,832 22,286 454
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 10,450 10,450 10,381 (59)
Postal service 5G0 500 657 157
Printing services 200 200 70 (130}
Telephone services 7,800 7,800 6,413 (1,387)
Medical services 180 150 3,656 3506
Other professionat services 300 300 150 {150}
Repair & maint. vehicles 700 700 676 {24)
Subscriptions & bocks 50 50 - (50)
Memberships & dues 500 500 170 {330}
Education seminars & training 3,000 3,000 1,900 {1,100)
Travel business expenses 5,000 5,000 3,371 {1,629)
Other contracted services - - 219 219
Office supplies & materials 6,100 6,100 4,766 (1,334}
Office equipment - - 563 563
General operating supplies 2,000 2,000 1,932 (68)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 23,000 23,000 15,059 (7.941)
Veh. parisfoilfluiditires 6,000 6,000 5,753 (247)
Insurance 18,551 18,551 22,115 3,564

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 37



City of Morrisfown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expanditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Property (contents) insurance 4,256 4,256 2,994 {1,262}
Equipment rentalflease 10,000 10,000 5,725 {4,275}
Motor equipment 50,000 50,000 52,393 2,393
Total police investigation 1,420,667 1,365,667 1,336,509 {29,158)
Fire supervision:
Wages & salaries permanent emp, 415,804 414,154 414,221 67
Supplemental tralning pay 1,600 1,800 - {1,900}
Christmas bonus & longevity 5,420 5,970 5,948 (22}
F.ILCA, 26,234 26,234 25,344 (890)
Medicare 6,135 6,135 5,927 {208)
TCRS contribution 62,876 62,876 62,080 (796}
Employee health insurance 70,074 70,074 69,183 (891}
Employee life insurance 1,560 1,560 - (1,560}
Workers compensation insurance 1,031 8,031 7,850 {81}
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 500 500 59 {441)
Postal service &0 50 13 (37}
Electricity - - 254 254
Natural gas & propane - 2,000 1,013 {987)
Telephone services 4,000 4,000 2,781 (1,219)
Medical services - - 28 28
Subscriptions & books 300 300 352 52
Memberships & dues 700 700 484 (2186)
Education seminars & training 5,500 1,500 1,388 (112)
Travel business expenses 700 700 347 (353)
Office supplies & materials 1,000 1,600 1,579 (21)
General operating supplies 300 300 - (3009
Gasoline & diesel fusl 6,500 4,000 3,367 (633)
Veh. paris/oil/fluidftires 1,500 1,500 1,335 (165)
Fire and medical response 14,950 14,950 16,262 1,312
Insurance 3,710 3,710 4,144 434
Property (contents) insurance 852 852 561 (291)
Equipment rentalfiease 6,500 6,500 4,338 (2,162)
Total Fire supervision 638,096 640,096 628,958 (11,138}
Fire inspection:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 69,984 70,484 70,677 (407}
Supplemental training pay 1,900 - - -
Christmas bonus & longevity 846 1,016 1,012 (4}
F.L.C.A. 4,509 4,509 4,274 (235)
Medicare 1,055 1,056 1,000 (55)
TCRS contribution 10,808 10,808 10,474 (334)
Employee health insurance 11,673 11,673 11,527 (146)
Employee life insurance 266 266 - {266)
Workers compensation insurance 1,237 1,337 1,325 {12)
Clothingfuniformsfshoes 300 300 - (300)
Postal service 100 100 22 (78)
Telephone services 1,000 1,000 595 (408)
Comptiter/data processing - 2,070 2,069 {1)
Subscriplions & books 500 - - -
Memberships & dues 500 500 195 {305)
Education seminars & training 2,000 1,200 1,190 (10}
Travel business expenses 5,500 5,500 4,726 {774)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Staternent of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Origina! Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Pubfic refations expenses 3,560 3,500 2,722 (778)
Other contracted services 300 300 - {300)
Office supplies & materials 300 300 69 (231)
General operating supplies 300 300 - {300}
Gasoline & diesel fuel 6,000 6,000 4,883 {1,117}
Veh. parts/oiifflulditires 1,000 1,000 512 {488)
Insurance 1,855 4,425 4,423 (2}
Property (contents) insurance 426 426 599 173
Equipment rental/lease - - 185 195
Other miscellaneous expenses - - 18 i8
Motor equipment 35,000 32,790 35,657 2,767
Total fire inspection 160,859 160,859 157,464 {3,395)
Fire stations:
Postal service - - i2 12
Legal notices - - 114 114
Electricity 35,000 35,000 35,312 312
Water & sewer 7,600 7,600 8,421 821
Naturat gas & propane 16,000 16,000 14,183 (1,817}
Telephone services 9,000 9,000 9,819 819
Repairfmaint. operations equip. 3,000 3,000 4,595 1,595
Repair & maint. bidg./grounds 40,000 40,000 41,312 1,312
Repair & maint, other 3,500 3,500 1,367 {(2,133)
Other contracted services 13,600 13,600 10,143 (3,457)
Office supplies & materials 300 300 48 (252)
Janitorial supplies 20,600 20,000 18,281 (1,719}
General operating supplies 6,500 6,500 5,813 (687}
Gasoline & diesel fuel 100 100 - {100)
Veh. partsfoil/fiuidftires 400 400 - {400}
Insurance 6,625 6,625 7,898 1,273
Property (contents) insurance 1,620 1,520 1,069 (451)
Total fire stations 163,145 163,145 158,387 {4,758)
Fire fighting:

Wages & salaries permanent emp. 3,443,274 3,443,274 3,436,231 (7,043)
Overtime 219,500 235,500 233,241 (2,259}
Holiday pay 67,798 151,798 151,266 {642}
Christmas bonus & longevily 36,853 40,353 40,330 (23)
F.I.C.A. 233,580 233,580 229,406 (4,174}
Medicare 54,628 54,628 53,707 (921}
TCRS contribulion 559,839 571,839 565,686 (6,153}
Employee health insurance 905,288 885,288 879,464 (5,824)
Employee life insurance 13,172 13,172 24,046 10,874
Workers compensation insurance 112,271 112,271 111,096 {1,175)
Clothingfuniforms/shoes 55,000 55,000 51,750 {3,250}
Postal service 300 300 180 (120)
Electricity - - 3,010 3,010
Waler & sewer 36,500 36,500 36,117 (383)
Medical services . - - 769 769
Other professional services 25,000 25,000 23,650 (1,350)
Repair & maint. Communications - - 1,423 1,423
Repair & maint. vehicles 500 500 30 (470)
Repair/maint. operations equip. 8,000 23,000 17,250 (5,750)
Subscriptions & books 2,500 2,500 497 (2,003)

Memberships & dues 8,500 8,500 10,051 1,551

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Education seminars & training 8,000 8,000 3,454 (4,546)
Travel business expenses 40,000 10,000 4,504 (5,496)
Other contracted services 700 700 56 {644}
Office supplies & materials 600 600 354 {246}
Small tools & equipment - 2,300 2,299 (1}
General operating supplies 15,000 15,000 6,329 (8,671}
Gasoline & diesel fuel 50,000 50,000 50,337 337
Veh. parts/oilffluidftires 75,000 75,000 78,585 3,595
Insurance 88,339 105,339 105,952 613
Property (contents) insurance 20,269 20,269 14,258 (6,011)
Equipment rental/lease 4,000 4,000 2,248 (1,752)
Other miscellansous expenses - - 18 18
Federal grant - 71,450 71,431 (19
Motor equipment 425,000 425,000 425,444 444
Totat fire fighting 5,479,411 6,680,661 6,634,469 {46,192}
Inspections;
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 287,122 231,527 211,231 {20,296)
Christmas bonus & longevity 4,022 4,022 3,781 (241)
FAC.A. 18,051 18,051 13,016 (5,035)
Medicare 4,222 4,222 3,044 {1,178)
TCRS contribution 43,264 43,264 29,744 {13,520}
Employee health insurance 58,263 58,263 39,302 (18,961}
Employee life insurance . 1,106 1,105 - {1,105)
Workers compensation insurance 5,604 6,629 6,625 {4}
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 1,000 4,000 829 (171}
Postal service 400 400 161 (239}
Printing services 300 300 - {300)
Legal notices 400 400 - (400)
Electricity - 3,500 3,987 487
Water & sewer - 600 454 (146)
Natural gas & propane - 200 246 46
Telephone services 1,700 1,700 3,249 1,648
Computer/data processing - 2,070 2,069 {1)
Other professional services 2,000 2,000 - (2,000}
Subscriptions & books 200 200 231 3
Memberships & dues 400 400 265 {135}
Education seminars & training 1,500 1,500 1,659 159
Travel business expenses 1,400 1,400 1,490 80
Other contracted services 42 500 92,500 88,133 {4,367)
Office supplies & materials 250 250 203 (47)
Office equipment - - - -
Gasoline & diesel fuel 4,000 4,000 2,866 (1,134}
Veh. parts/oilffluidftires 1,200 1,200 184 {1,016}
Other supplies & materials 400 400 357 {43}
Insurance 1,678 1,678 2,001 323
Property {contents) insurance 385 385 27 {114}
Equipment rentallease 2,500 5,000 4,725 {275}
Total inspections 483,866 488,166 420,123 {68,043}
Public works supervision:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 131,365 137,365 137,613 248
Overtime - - 203 203
Wages & salaries temp. emp. - - 58 58
Christmas bonus & longevity 1,602 1,602 1,290 {312)
F.IL.C.A. 8,244 8,244 8,291 47
Medicare 1,928 1,928 1,939 11

The notes to financial statlements are an integral part of this statement,
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
TCRS contribution 19,758 20,769 20,781 22
Employee health insurance 28,578 29,578 28,823 {755)
Employee life insurance 504 504 - {504)
Workers compensation insurance 2,563 3,663 3,313 (250)
Clothingfuniforms/shoes 3,500 3,600 2,003 {1,497)
Postal service 25 25 4 {21}
Printing services 100 100 - {100)
Legal notices 1,000 1,000 - (1,000}
Telephone services 1,500 1,500 2,005 505
Medical services 200 200 84 (116}
Repair & maint. office equip. 100 100 - {100}
Subscriptions & books 100 100 - {100}
Memberships & dues 550 550 545 (5)
Education seminars & lraining 2,500 2,500 1,615 {885)
Travel business expenses 2,500 2,500 3,101 601
Other contracted services 350 350 206 {145}
Office supplies & materials 1,600 1,500 1,048 (452)
Office equipment 9,000 - - -
Janitorial supplies 100 100 - (100}
General operating supplies 300 300 4 (296)
Gasoline & diesel fusl 3,000 3,000 2,435 (965)
Veh. parts/oilfiuiditires 1,700 1,700 738 (962)
Insurance 2,783 2,783 3,317 534
Property (contents) insurance 638 638 449 {189}
Equipment rental/lease 3,700 3,700 3,328 (371)
Other miscelianeous expenses 200 200 64 {136)
Total public works supervision: 229,889 229,889 222 857 {7,032
Buildings and grounds:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 115,779 115,779 114,738 {1,041)
Overiime 6,000 6,000 2,635 (3,465)
Wages & salaries temp. emp. - 14,650 15,837 1,187
Christras bonus & fongevity 1,533 1,633 648 (885)
F.LC.A. 7,645 7,985 7,989 (8)
Medicare 1,788 1,888 1,860 {28)
TCRS contribution 18,324 18,324 17,523 {801)
Employece health Insurance 34,771 34,771 34,422 (349)
Employee life insurance 438 438 - {438}
Workers compensation insurance 2,801 3,876 6,068 2,092
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 30,000 2,000 2,242 242
Postal service 25 25 16 {15)
Legal notices 2,000 2,000 - {2,000}
Electricity 40,000 32,000 32,925 925
Water & sewer 45,000 47,000 49,851 2,851
Natural gas & propane 40,000 31,000 21,611 {9,389)
Telephone services 40,000 5,000 5,414 414
Medical services 300 300 363 63
Repair & maint. vehicles 2,000 2,000 - {2,600}
Repair/maint, operations equip. 5,000 3,000 6,786 (2,214)
Repair & maint. bldg./grounds 80,000 80,000 76,866 {3,134}
Subscriptions & books 25 25 - (25}
Memberships & dues 500 500 - {500}
Education seminars & fraining 2,000 2,000 - (2,000}
Travel business expenses 1,000 1,000 - {1,000}
Other contracted services 59,537 84,537 74,148 (10,389}
Office supplies & materials 100 100 288 188

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 41
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Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Vartance
Small tools & equipment 4,000 4,000 3,449 {651}
Janitorial supplies 12,500 12,600 12,428 {72}
General operating supplies 20,600 25,600 15,872 {9,028)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 4,500 4,500 4,394 (106)
Veh. parts/oil/fluiditires 3,000 3,000 2,535 (465)
Insurance 8,834 8,834 10,531 1,697
Property (contents) insurance 2,027 2,027 1,426 (601)
Equipment rentalfiease 1,000 1,000 360 (640}
Other miscellaneous expenses 2,000 2,000 - (2,000)
Other capital outlay 80,000 54,725 45,264 (9,461)
Total buildings and grounds 674,427 621,427 568,483 (52,944)
Equipment shop:
Whages & salaries permanent emp. 284,618 299,618 300,197 579
Overtime 10,000 12,500 11,406 {1,094}
Christmas bonus & longevity 3,621 3,871 3,829 (42}
F.L.C.A. 18,491 19,191 18,914 (277}
Medicare 4,324 4,424 4,423 {1
TCRS centribution 44,318 46,918 46,879 (39)
Employee health insurance 81,238 81,238 77,891 {3,247)
Employee life insurance 1,098 1,098 - (1,098)
Workers compensation insurance 10,664 10,664 0,423 {(1,241)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 9,000 8,000 4,242 (4,758)
Postal service - - 8 8
Natural gas & propane 300 300 174 (126)
Telephone services 1.000 1,000 725 (275}
Medical services 500 500 274 (226}
Other professional services 500 500 - (500)
Repair & maint. vehicles 500 500 - (500)
Memberships & dues - - 40 40
Education seminars & training 1,600 1,500 897 {603)
Trave! business expenses 300 300 - {300}
Other contracted services 2,800 2,800 1,754 (1,046}
Office supplies & materals 500 500 a8 {412}
Smali tocls & equipment 12,000 12,000 9,498 (2,502}
Janitorial supplies 3,000 3,600 1,882 {1,118}
General operating supplies 1,000 1,000 1,335 335
Gasoline & diesel fuel 4,500 4,500 3,063 (1,437}
Veh. parts/oll/fluiditires 2,000 2,000 515 (1,485)
Insurance 1,855 1,855 2,212 357
Property {contenis} insurance 426 426 299 {127)
Equipment rentalfiease 1,200 1,200 802 (398)
Landfill fee/disposition chgs.. - - 438 438
Tofal equipment shop 501,263 522,403 501,308 {21,085)
Street repairs and maintenance:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 611,745 411,745 399,830 (11,915)
Overtime 9,000 13,000 11,798 (1,202)
Christmas bonus & longevity 7,586 7,586 7,364 {222)
F.LC.A. 38,957 38,957 24,800 (14,157}
Medicare 9,111 9,111 5,800 (3,311)
TCRS contribution 93,370 93,370 62,262 {31,108)
Employes health insurance 161,586 151,586 117,262 (34,334}
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Yarlance
Employea life insurance 1,829 1,829 - {1,829}
Workers compensation insurance 12,705 18,705 18,651 {154}
Clothingfuniforms/shoes 7,400 7,400 7,680 280
Postal service - - 12 12
Legal notices - - 154 154
Telephone services 1,100 2,600 2,174 (4286)
Medical services 2,000 2,000 1,227 (773}
Repalr & maint. vehicles 1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
Repair/maint. operations equip. 22,000 67,000 61,665 {5,335)
Education seminars & training 2,000 2,000 2,270 270
Travel business expenses 400 400 - (400)
Other contracted services 2,000 2,000 - (2,000)
Office supplies & materials 300 300 55 (245)
Office equipment 300 300 - (300}
Small tools & equipment 6,000 10,000 8,090 {1,910}
Janitortal supplies 200 200 129 (71)
General operating supplies 10,000 10,000 9,862 (138}
Gasoline & dlese] fuel 40,000 40,600 50,964 10,964
Veh, partsioilffiuiditires 22,000 32,000 32,027 27
Concrete products 3,000 4,500 4,415 (85}
Crushed stone & sand 15,000 30,000 22,805 {7,195}
Asphalt 160,000 160,000 62,135 (97,865)
insurance 9,276 11,276 11,058 (218)
Property {contents) insurance 2,128 2,128 1,497 (631)
Equipment rental/lease 11,650 14,650 - {11,850)
Other miscellaneous expenses - - 53 53
Motor equipment 273,500 273,500 261,875 {11,625)
Total street repairs and maintenance 1,527,143 1,416,143 1,187,804 (228,339)
Street lighting and signs:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 37,516 80,516 79,694 (822)
Overime 2,000 2,000 779 {1,221)
Christmas bonus & longevity 288 448 443 {5)
F.LCA. 2,468 4,968 4,795 {173)
Medicare 577 1,177 1,121 {56)
TCRS contribution 5,815 12,115 12,024 (91)
Employee heatth insurance 11,619 25,619 24,656 (963)
Employee life insurance 144 144 - {144)
Workers compensation insurance 1,401 1,401 1,325 {76)
Clothing/uniforms/shoes 700 700 537 (163)
Electricity 600,000 600,000 589,591 {409)
Natural gas & propane 150 150 141 %)
Telephone services 500 500 362 {138}
Medical services - 1,200 1,184 (18}
Repair & maint. vehicles 500 500 - {500)
Repair & maint. operations equipment 500 500 64 {436)
R&M st lightsftraffic signals - 3,000 4,555 1,665
Subscriptions & books 350 350 - (350}
Education seminars & training 400 400 285 (118)
Travel business expenses 400 400 - (400)
Office supplies & materials 100 100 80 (20)
Smalt tools & equipment 3,000 3,000 2,339 (661)
Janitorial supplies 100 100 - (100)
General operating suppfies 35,000 35,000 33,780 {1,220)
Gasoline & diesel fuel 1,000 7,000 5,527 (1,473)

The notes to financial statements are an integraf part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expanditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Orlginal Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Veh. parisfoilifluidftires 5,000 5,000 3,645 (1,355)
Insurance 353 353 421 68
Properly (conlents) insurance 81 81 57 (24}
Equipment rental/lease 500 500 - {500)
Totat street lighting and signs 716,562 787,222 777,405 {9,817}
Brush pick-up and snow removat
Wages & salaries permanent emp, 379,524 429,524 432,362 2,838
Overtime 17,500 27,500 27,075 {(425)
Wages & salaries temp. emp. 40,000 40,000 27,518 (12,481}
Christmas bonus & longevity 4,703 4,703 3,766 {237)
F.I.CA. 27,387 30,387 - 29,300 (1,087}
Medicare 6,405 7,005 6,853 {152}
TCRS contribution 59,697 66,697 67,369 672
Employee health insurance 126,144 136,144 134,472 {1,672}
Employee life insurance 1,464 1,464 - {1,464}
Workers compensation insurance 13,688 18,588 18,551 (37}
Unemployment insurance - 1,726 1,705 (20}
Clothingfuniformsfshoes 7,350 7,350 6,634 {716)
Postal service 50 50 2 (48)
Legatl notices 400 400 143 (257)
Telephone services 500 500 531 31
Medical services 1,000 1,000 952 (48)
Other professional services 700 700 550 (150)
Repair/maint. operations equip. 18,000 30,000 27,385 (2,615)
Education seminars & training 400 400 330 (70}
Trave! business expenses 500 500 - (500)
Other confracted services - - 425 425
Office supplies & materials 100 100 100 -
Small tools & equipment 6,500 6,500 6,277 (223)
Janitorial supplies 150 150 102 {48}
General operating supplies 1,500 1,600 1,697 197
Gasoline & diese! fuel 85,000 85,000 83,283 {1,717}
Veh. parts/oil/fiuidftires 82,000 99,500 96,098 (3,404}
Salt/sodium chioride 45,000 45,000 43,596 (1,404}
Insurance 8,083 10,683 10,603 (80}
Property (contents} insurance 1,856 1,855 1,732 {123}
Landfil fee/disposition chgs. 225,000 225,000 202,938 (22,062}
Motor equipment - - 83 83
Other capital outtay 25,000 25,000 26,637 1,637
Total brush pick-up and snow removal 1,185,500 1,304,925 1,259,068 {45,857)
Sidewalks:
Concrete products 20,000 20,000 12,798 {7,202)
Crushed stone & sand 3,000 3,000 2,954 (46}
Total sidewalks 23,000 23,000 15,752 (7,248)
Traffic devices:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 2,200 2,200 - {2,200)
Overtime 8,000 8,000 7,508 (495)
F.LCA, 632 632 449 (183)
Medicare 148 148 105 {43)
TCRS contribution 1,516 1,518 1,115 (401)
Employee health insurance - - 1,880 1,880
Postal service ) - - 49 49
Electricity 28,000 16,000 15,204 (796)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 44



City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actuat
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Originat Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Natural gas & propane 500 500 - {500}
Telephone services - - 554 554
Other professional senvices 1,500 1,500 - (1,500}
Repairs & main. communications 4,000 4,000 - (4,000)
Repair & maint. vehicles 1,600 1,500 801 {599}
Repair & maint, traffic signals 50,000 50,000 33,888 {16,112)
Subscriptions & books 250 250 - {250)
Memberships & dues 650 650 170 {480}
Education seminars & training 2,000 2,000 1,200 (800)
Travel business expenses 400 400 - {400)
Office supplies & materials 200 200 128 (71)
Small tools & equipment 4,000 4,000 2,037 (1,963}
General operating supplies 3,000 3,000 1,019 {1,981}
Gasoline & diesel fuel 2,000 2,000 213 (1,787)
Veh. parts/oil/fluidiires 2,500 2,500 - (2,500}
Parts, traffic signals 20,000 20,000 17,075 (2,925}
Other supplies & materials 1,500 1,600 - {1,500}
Total traffic devices: 134,496 122,496 83,493 (39,003)
Communication shop:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 87,843 89,343 89,296 47
Overtime 2,500 5,000 5,209 209
Christmas bonus & longevity 741 741 753 12
F.LC.A. 5,647 5,647 5,700 53
Medicare 1,324 1,321 1,333 12
TCRS contribution 13,535 14,285 14,1585 (130}
Employee health insurance 23,215 23,215 21,243 {1,872)
Employee life insurance 340 340 - (340)
Workers compensation insurance 2,801 2,801 2,650 (151)
Clothingfuniforms/shoes - - 1,069 1,069
Electricity - 3,000 2,918 (81)
Telephone services 1,300 1,300 990 (310)
Medical services - “ 84 84
Other professional services 2Q0 200 - {200)
Repairs & maint. communications 350 350 290 {60)
Repair & maint. vehicles 1,000 1,000 171 {829)
Repair/maint. operations equip. 1,000 1,000 441 {559}
Repair & maint. office equip. 1,500 1,500 - {1.500)
Repair & maint. bidg./grounds 1,000 1,000 99 {901)
Subscriptions & books 300 300 - {300)
Education seminars & training 1,500 1,500 - (1,500}
Travel business expenses 500 500 - (500)
Other contracted services 500 500 - (500)
Office supplies & materials 300 300 “ (300)
Office equipment 300 300 - (300)
Janitorial supplies 50 50 . (60)
General operating supplies 100 100 422 322
Gasoline & diesel fuel 2,500 2,500 2,589 89
Veh. parts/oilffluiditires 2,500 2,500 213 {2,287)
Insurance - general liability 1,943 1,943 2,317 374
Property (contents) insurance 446 446 314 {132}
Other miscellaneous expenses - - 18 18
Motor equipment 33,000 33,000 33,425 425
Total communication shop 188,232 195,982 185,700 (10,282}

Pavement management system:

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement,




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Originat Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Legal notices - - 141 141
Street infrastructure imp. 3,814,000 3,814,000 1,404,278 (2,409,722}
Total pavement management system 3,814,000 3,814,000 1,404,419 (2,409,581}
Health inspection and welfare:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. - - az7 327
Overtime 5,000 5,000 1,514 (3,486}
F.I.C.A. 310 310 108 (202)
Medicare 73 73 25 {48)
TCRS contribution 743 743 274 (469)
Employee heaith insurance - - 901 901
Education seminars & training 500 500 - (500)
Trave! business expenses 250 250 - (250)
Small tools & equipment 500 500 - {500}
Janitorial supplies 250 250 - {250}
General operating supplies 3,000 3,000 3,383 383
Gasoline & diesel fuel 5,000 5,000 2,680 {2,420}
Veh. partsicil/fiuiditires 500 500 235 {265}
Insurance generat liability 883 883 1,053 170
Property {contents) insurance 203 203 143 (60}
Tolal health inspections and welfare 17,212 17,212 10,543 (6,669}
Parks and recreation supervision:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 269,241 269,241 262,252 {6,989)
Overtime 2,000 2,600 219 {(1,781)
Christras bonus & longevity 2,721 2,721 2,305 (416)
F.I.C.A. 16,986 16,986 16,122 (864)
Medicare 3,972 3,972 3,770 (202)
TCRS cantribution 40,711 40,711 38,428 (2,283)
Employee health insurance 58,189 58,189 54,288 {3,901)
Employee life insurance 899 999 - {999)
Workers compensation insurance 4,202 4,202 6,625 2,423
Postal service 3,600 3,600 1,763 {1.837)
Printing services 400 400 “ {400}
Legal notices - - 300 300
Electricity - 6,000 5,833 {167}
Water & sewer - 1,000 976 24
Natural gas & propane - 2,000 4,321 {2,321)
Telephone services - 2,500 2,644 {144}
Medical services - - 73 (73)
Other professional services 900 900 - 900
Repair & maint. vehicles 1,200 1,200 - 1,200
Subscriptions & books - - 234 {234)
Memberships & dues 1,400 1,400 770 630
Education seminars & training 1,000 1,000 - 1,000
Trave! business expenses 2,600 2,500 3,807 (1,307}
Other contracted senvices 10,450 10,450 160,000 450
Office supplies & materials 4,000 4,000 4,210 (210)
Office equipment - - 765 {765}
Insurance a72 972 1,158 {186}
Buildings - insurance 972 972 - 972
Property {contents) insurance 223 223 157 66
Equipment rental/lease 7,450 7,450 5,766 1,684
Other miscellanequs expenses - - 25 {25}
Tree board - - 110 {110}

The notes fo financial statements are an integrat part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Total parks and recreation supervision 434,088 445 588 426,921 18,667
Playground and programs;
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 127,401 119,901 117,248 2,653
Overtime 200 200 179 21
Wages & salaries temp. emp. 77,000 84,500 90,790 {6,280)
Christmas bonus & longevity 838 838 1,127 (289)
F.ICA. 12,737 12,737 12,719 18
Medicare 2,979 2,979 2,975 4
TCRS contribution 18,962 18,962 17,503 1,459
Employee health insurance 34,763 34,763 34,416 347
Employee life insurance 443 443 - 443
Workers compensation insurance 12,800 12,800 4,980 7,820
Unemployment insurance - - 1,880 {1,880}
Postal servica - - 14 (14)
Legal notices 150 150 211 (61)
Electricity - 13,000 13,116 {116)
Water & sewer - 10,000 7,461 2,539
Natural gas & propane - 2,000 2,292 {292)
Telephone services - 500 337 163
Medical services 200 200 29 501
Other professional services 1,500 1,500 224 1,276
Repair & maint. bidg.fgrounds 1,500 1,500 240 1,260
Memberships & dues 15,000 15,000 4,282 10,718
Education seminars & training 250 250 - 250
Other contracted senvices 93,500 88,750 80,658 8,092
Small tools & equipment 4,000 4,000 1,731 2,269
General operating supplies 58,200 68,200 67,136 1,064
Insurance 10,601 14,601 14,593 8
Property {conients) insurance 2,432 2,432 1,711 721
Equipment rentalfiease 8,000 8,000 4,485 3,615
Machinery & equipment - 4,750 4,746 4
Machinery & equipment 90,000 112,000 41,322 70,678
Total playgrounds and programs 573,456 634,956 528,475 106,481
Parks and maintenance:
Wages & salaries permanent emp. 334,111 336,611 339,303 2,692
Overtime 5,000 5,000 2,284 {2,716)
Wages & salaries temp. emp. 145,000 137,500 90,837 {46,663}
Christmas bonus & longevity 3,747 4172 4,161 {11)
F.LCA. 30,247 30,247 26,219 {4,028)
Medicare 7,074 7,074 6,132 (942)
TCRS contribution 50,949 50,949 47,005 {3,854)
Employee health insurance 105,353 97,853 95,421 {2,432)
Employee iife insurance 1,304 1,304 - {1,304}
Woaorkers compensation Insurance 167 21,942 21,925 (17}
Unemployment insurance 14,000 26,500 22,719 (3,781}
Postal service - - 14 14
Legal notices - - 218 218
Eleciricity - 60,000 66,136 6,136
Water & sewer - 40,000 38,248 (1,752)
Natural gas & propane - - 58 58
Telephena services 2,600 2,500 3,202 192

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement,




Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

Medical services

Other professional services
Repair & maint. vehicles
Repair/maint. operations equip.
Repair & maint. bidg./grounds
Memberships & dues

Other contracted services
Small tools & equipment
Janitorial supplies

General operating supplies
Gasoline & digsel fuel

Veh. partsfoilffluiditires
Splash pad supplies
Concrete products

Crushed stone & sand
Asphalt

Insurance

Property (contents) insurance
Equipment rentalfiease
Landfill feefdisposition chgs.
Other miscellaneous expenses
Bullding structures
Machinery & equipment
Mator equipment

Total parks and maintenance

Soclal services:
ALPS
Boys & Girls Club, Inc.
CEASE
Child Advocacy
Girls, Inc.
Helping Hands
Keep America Beautiful
M-H Child Care Centers
New Hope Recovery
Rose Center
Senlor Citizens Center
Senior Citizen Hope Assistance
Stepping Out
Youth Emergency Shelter
Boys & Girls Club Swim Team
Tennessee Achleves
Crockett Tavern Association
Workforce Development
Diversity Task Force
HCExcell Imagination Library
Project Graduation

Total social services

Fixed based operations:
Clothing/uniforms/shoes
Postal service
Printing services
Legal notices

The notes to financial statements are an integral pari of this statement.

City of Morristown, Tennessee

General Fund

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budgst Budget Actual Variance
1,000 1,000 532 (468)
1,000 1,000 760 (240)
- - 30 30
11,000 11,000 11,529 529
30,000 30,000 15,317 {14,683)
- - 3,288 3,288
41,210 41,210 31,155 {10,055)
8,000 3,000 1,672 (1.328)
9,000 9,000 9,247 247
33,500 33,500 27,659 {5,841}
30,000 30,000 22,858 {7,142)
6,500 6,500 3,940 {2,560)
2,500 2,500 1,011 {1,489)
4,000 4,000 a4 (3,696)
6,000 6,000 3,758 {2,242)
1,500 1,500 - (1,500)
13,958 16,658 16,639 (19)
3,202 3,202 2,253 (249)
2,500 2,500 1,468 (1,032}
500 500 196 {304)
- - 35 35
50,600 100,350 68,983 (31,367)
- - 10,347 10,347
37,000 40,200 71,929 31,729
1,031,822 1,165,272 1,068,972 {96,300)
9,500 9,500 9,500 -
15,675 15,675 15,675 -
16,625 16,625 16,625 -
950 950 950 -
11,400 11,400 11,400 -
7,125 7,125 7125 -
19,950 19,950 18,952 2
22,800 22,800 22,800 -
4,750 4,750 4,750 -
11,875 11,875 11,875 -
47,500 47,500 47,500 -
4,750 4,750 4,750 .
1,425 1,425 1,425 -
30,875 30,875 30,875 -
10,000 16,000 10,000 -
5,000 5,000 5,000 -
8,125 8,125 8,125 -
10,000 10,000 10,000 -
7,000 7,000 7,000 -
10,000 10,000 10,000 -
- 1,000 - {1,000}
255,325 256,325 255,327 (998)
- 110 107 3
400 400 114 286
750 750 - 750
- 750 1,023 (273)
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
In Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budget Actuatl Variance
Efectricity 20,000 24,060 23,732 268
Water & sewer 20,000 22,000 22,670 {670}
Natural gas & propane 1,500 8,500 4,579 1,921
Telephone services 1,500 2,000 2,250 (250)
Other professional services 25,000 27,700 5,350 22,350
Repair/maint, operations equip. 2,000 2,000 1,492 508
Repair & maint. bidg./grounds 25,000 25,000 22,916 2,084
Memberships & dues 350 525 455 70
Education seminars & training 1,500 1,600 450 1,050
Travel business expenses 1,000 1,500 1,324 176
Other contracted services 29,000 28,000 26,681 2,319
Office supplies & materials 150 150 - 150
Office equipment - 300 300 -
General operating supplies 4,000 4,000 1,762 2,238
Veh. parts/oilffluidftires 500 500 - 500
Crushed stone & sand - 425 401 24
Other capital outlay 1,749,500 1,733,540 795,022 938,518
Total fixed based operations 1,882,150 1,882,650 810,628 972,022
Bond principal;
Debt principal 1,148,378 1,148,378 1,147,537 841
Bond interest 846,702 619,845 161,713 458,132
Paying agent fees 40,000 100,000 93,262 6,738
Total bond principal 2,035,080 1,868,223 1,402,512 465,711
Special appropriations:
Animal Control 137,880 137,880 137,892 {2)
E-911 District 200,000 232,364 232,364 -
Summer Feeding Program 90,000 20,000 89,192 808
Public Library 257,000 257,000 257,000 -
Economic Development 200,600 260,000 228,040 31,960
Industriat Parks 200,000 107,636 100,000 7,636
Emergency Management Agency 45,000 45,000 17,328 27,672
TIF Payments 35,000 35,000 24,834 10,166
Total special appropriations 1,164,880 1,164,890 1,086,650 78,240
Total expenditures 36,497,680 38,090,993 32,465,415 5,625,578
Excess of revenues over(under) expenditures 364,031 664,031 664,030 (1}
Other financing sources (uses):

Operating transfers in 119,187 119,187 1,607,848 1,478,661
Operaling transfers out {483,218) {783,218) {783,218} -
Total other financing sources-net (364,031 (664,031) 814,630 1,478,661

Excess of revenues and other financing

sources (under) expenditures and other

financing uses - - 1,478,660 1,478,660

Fund balance - July 1, 2014 13,193,136 13,193,136 25,712,008 12,518,873

Prior period adjustment - - (176,095) {176,085)
Fund balance - July 1, 2014 - as adjusted 13,193,136 13,193,136 25,635,914 12,342,778

Fund balance -June 30, 2015 $ 13,193,136 $ 13,193,136 $ 27,014,574 $ 13,821,438

The notes to financial statements are an ntegral part of this statement.
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Revenhues:
Other local revenues:

Non-rev-fund balance appropriated

Solid waste fees
Total other local revenues

Expenditures;
Sanitation department:

Wages & salaries permanent emp.

Overtime

Christmas bonus & longevity

F.L.C.A.

Medicare

TCRS contribution

Employee health insurance

Employee life insurance

Workers compensation insurance

Clothing/uniforms/shoes

Postal service

Legal notices

Telephone services

Medical services

Education seminars & tralning

Travel business expenses

Other contracted services

Office supplies & materials

Janitorial supplies

General operating supplies

Gasoline & diesel fuel

Veh. parts/oilffluid/tires

Solid wastle containers

Insurance

Property {contents) insurance

Landfill fee/dispesition chgs.
Total sanitation depariment

Curbside recycle:

Wages & salaries permanent emp,

Overtime

Christmas bonus & longevity
F.L.CA.

Medicare

TCRS contribution
Employee health insurance
Employee life insurance
Workers compensation insurance
Clothing/uniforms/shoes
Postal service

Legal notices

City of Morristown, Tennessee
Solid Waste Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Acfual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Criginal Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
$ 227,796 $ 227,796  $ - 8 (227,796)
1,392,000 1,392,000 1,356,626 (36,374)
1,619,796 1,619,796 1,356,626 {263,170}
444,816 450,816 447,341 3,475
6,000 6,000 1,679 4,321
5215 5,215 4,871 344
28,274 28,274 26,841 1,433
6,612 6,612 6,277 335
67,766 67,766 66,129 1,637
130,132 140,132 122,562 17,570
1,356 1,356 - 1,356
14,008 15,258 15,238 20
6,000 6,000 5,539 461
50 50 4 46
1,200 1,900 1,555 345
500 1,000 600 400
900 900 498 402
200 200 195 5
- - 5 (5)
132,000 219,400 161,603 67,797
200 200 123 77
- - 116 (116)
1,000 1,000 668 332
70,000 70,000 53,465 16,635
50,000 60,000 54,715 5,285
40,000 40,000 30,939 9,061
9,276 11,076 11,058 18
2,128 2,128 1,497 631
375,000 525,000 401,985 123,015
1,392,633 1,660,283 1,405,603 254,780
69,706 69,706 69,359 347
750 750 231 519
757 907 901 6
4,415 4,415 4,226 189
1,033 1,033 988 45
10,582 10,582 10,475 107
22,165 52,165 35,654 16,511
166 166 - 166
2,807 2,807 2,651 166
1,500 1,500 2,461 (961)
- - 4 (4)
100 100 77 23

The notes fo financial statementis are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Solld Waste Fund

Statement of Revenues. Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Criginal Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Medical services 200 200 56 i44
Travel business expenses 400 400 155 245
Other contracted services 43,000 40,000 30,934 9,066
Office supplies & materials 200 200 - 200
Small tools & equipment 250 250 225 25
Janitorial supplies 100 100 - 100
Gasoline & diesel fuel 12,000 12,000 12,018 (18)
Veh. parts/oil/ffluidftires 9,000 9,000 2,780 6,220
Solid waste containers 15,000 15,000 14,994 6
Insurance 1,634 1,984 1,948 36
Property {contents) insurance 476 476 65 411
Total curbside recycle 193,241 223,741 190,202 33,539
Bond principal:
Debt principal 25,183 26,033 26,023 10
Debt interest 8,239 8,239 8,192 1,047
Paying agent fees 500 500 - 500
Total bond principal 33,922 35,772 34,215 1,557
Total expenditures 1,619,796 1,919,796 1,629,820 289,876
Excess of revenue over {under}
expenditures - {300,000} {273,294) 26,706
Other financing sources (uses);
Operating transfer in - 300,000 300,000 -
Total other financing sources - 300,000 300,000 -
Excess of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and
other financing uses - - 26,706 26,706
Fund balance - July 1, 2014 256,726 256,726 203,308 (53,420
Fund balance - June 30, 2015 $ 256,726 §$ 256,726 230,012 § {26,714}

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Avsels
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivatents
Accounts recotvable:
Trade, net of aflowances
Interiund recalvebles
Bue from others
Otlher accounls recelvable
Other current assels
Materials and supplies nventory
Tolal cumrent assels

HNoncurrent assels:
Restricted cash and cash equivalenta
Total resticted assets

Capital assets:
Plant and equipment In sesvice
Less accumutated depreciation

Construction In progress
Nel capdal assels
Due from cther funds
Plart acquiskion adfustmenta, nel of
accurnutziod depretiation
Cther assels.
Tolaf noncurrent assels
Total assels
Dufarred outflows of rescurcas
Puonslon olher deferrals

Accruai for umblied revenue
Tolsl deferred outfiows of resources

The noles ta financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Clty of Morislown, Tennesses
Statement of Net Poslilon
Propristary Funds
Juns 30, 2015

Govemmental
Business-type Activitles Activilies -
Enterprise Funds Intemat
Yiastewater Storm Watsr Sarvice Fund -
Syetam System Power System  Watar System Broadband Eifminatlons Tolsl Heafth Insurance
$ 4,494,052 $ 3,084,238 $ 10,561,369 $ 3678398 $ 1548839 H - 23,456,696 3 471,678
- 220716 8,513,161 - - . 8,730,868 -
48,207 69,620 - 57.67% - {203,709) - -
20,749 - 933,042 2,340 1,928 - 1,028,658 -
- - . - - - B 56,034
13,228 - - 1,150 118,109 - 142,487 30,678
164,687 105,478 095,642 394,497 - - 1,650,205 -
4,708,923 3,616,262 24,004,004 4,144,064 1,768,976 {203,706} 35,028,513 859,291
13,422,259 - - 2,013,243 215,838 - 16,651,340 -
13,422,259 - - 2,913,243 216,838 - 16,551,340 -
114,439,620 7,638,840 106,363,605 65,638,413 12,637,618 - 305,618,396 -
(45,624,748} 13,250,887} (48,864,002} 126.872,658) (6,458,361} - {128,071,556} -
68,814,881 4,387,953 59,499,084 38,665,765 7.478,167 - 178,546,840 -
13,762,533 041,841 2,417,780 379,624 8,558 - 17,610.234 -
82572414 6,320,704 61,916,674 39,045,279 7,187,713 - 195,057,074 -
- - 5,044,728 - - - 6,044,728 -
- - 309,387 - - . 309,367 -
4,009 111,197 253,854 - . . 269,060 .
85,003,682 65,440,891 65,524,623 41,956,622 7,403,651 - 216,331,669 -
100,802,605 8,857,243 59,528,827 46,102,556 9,172,627 {203,708} 264,360,032 859,281
- 29,132 - - - - 29,132 -
605,338 58,250 1,746,463 212,135 - - 2,622,788 -
605,338 87,392 1,746,463 212,735 - - 2,651,018 -
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City of Moreistown, Tannessee

{at
Proprislary Funds
June 30, 2015
Governmandal
Buelnass-typa Aclivitios Actlvities -
Enlatpriss Funds internal
Wastewater Storm Water Service Fund -
System Systam Fower System Water Syslom Broadband Ellmk Tolal Hualth Insuzance
Liabiiitles
Current Fabifties:
Acoolrts payable:
Trade 2,848,620 49,768 7,075,189 205,446 487,345 - 10,763,358 357,056
Interfund payables 365,008 . 179,485 - £9.620 (203,706} 114,517 -
Customer deposils - - 3798538 - 84,800 . 3,880,338 -
Accrued payTol related Babiliex 156,602 13,356 1,581,655 483,076 144,281 . 2,389,875 -
Other gccruad liabiitles 363,830 35615 223,969 22,508 16,462 - 665,304 -
LCurrend portion of cortraclual obligation 85,382 - 65,145 - - - 160,627 -
Current portion: of caplal lease obfgation - - - . 18,877 - 18,877 -
Curent portion of lang-term: debt 3,661.482 251,400 1,151,812 680,885 231,071 - 6,000,840 -
Total arent Fabities 7,254,824 30.11¢ 14,041,923 1,593,814 1,082,662 {203,706} 24,079,638 357,056
Honcutrent fabitiea:
Accrued post retirernant beneft ebligation 21,778 - 473,633 87,439 174,817 - merr -
Dus lo other funds - - - - 6,044,728 - 6,044,728 -
Capital leasa obfigation, less cuiment portion - - . - 42206 . 42,2688 -
Contractual obligation, less current portion 2,310,869 - 136,202 - - - 2,450,161 -
Long-temn debt - Jess current podion 65,081 437 4,646,359 18,012,386 12,671,802 6,127,358 - 105,633,343 -
Cainpensaled absances . 8,815 . - - - 8,815 -
Net penston Fabiity - 128,112 - - . - 120,112 -
Tolal non-current Fabfies £7,423,084 4,777.288 18,616,311 12.769.242 11,389,259 - 114,975,152 -
Tolal fiabiitles 74,677,908 5,087,405 32,650,234 14,363,056 12,471,921 [203,708) 139,054,818 357,056
Defsrrad Inflows of rescurces
Pansion changes - experienca - 6,326 . - - - 6,325
Pansipn changes - invesbment eamings - 54,530 - - - - 54,530
Othar deferredfunavalable revenye - 68,250 - - 206,082 . 264,342 -
Tolal deferred infiows of resources - 119,105 - - 206,092 - 325,107 -
Het poslticn
Net mvastment in capital assels 24,851,603 477,045 42,697,139 28,405,804 1,883,648 - 8,316,369 -
Restricted . - - - - - - -
Unrestricled net posiion 1,878,532 3,360,170 16,010,917 3545,43% {5,489.434} - 19,315,618 602,235
Total nel position § 26,730,035 § 3838115 $ 58,617,056 $ 34,052,285 $ (3505485} % - § 117,631,885 3 £02.235

Fhe noles %o financial slalements are an integral pari of this statement. 53



Cly of Morristown, Tennessee

Siatement of Revenues, Expenses, and in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2015
EXS Governmental
Business-typa Activities Activitles -
Enlerprise Funds Internal
Waslewater Storm Water Service Fund -
System System Power System Water System Broadband Total Health insurance
Operating revenues:
Metored sales $ 12247129 $ 1276062 § 75151758 $ 6411681 $ - § 95086631 $ -
Broadband sales . - - - 8239118 8,239,118 -
Interfund services provided - - 1,316,523 440519 1,172,800 - -
Charges for services - - - - . - 4,289,857
Other operaling revenues 808,636 - 1,434,066 32,807 311,617 2,588,526 -
Tolaf operating revenues 13,055,765 1,276 062 77,902,348 6,885,007 §,722835 105,912,275 4,299,857
Operating expenses:
Power purchased - - 62,677,604 - - 62,677,604 -
Operalions 3,996,423 637,065 £,398,83% 3,631,335 8,394,851 18,968,613 -
Mainfanance 847,905 12,345 2,482 834 560,833 302,656 4,208,773 -
Interfund services used 442,608 . 1,116,804 319,130 1.057,220 - -
Depreciation and amorlization 3,278,479 217,744 4,789,812 1,609,492 482,532 19,376,059 -
Taxes - - 335,900 - 64,025 399,925 -
Insurance clalms and expenses - - - - - - 4,715,164
Tolal sperating expenses 8,563,415 867,154 76,795,873 6,020,790 8,301,484 67,618,874 4,716,164
Operating Income (foss) 4,492,350 408,908 1,106,475 864,217 1,421,459 8,293,401 {415,307}
Other tacome (expense):
Interest Income 24,397 5,380 23,640 8,189 1772 60,378 .
Financing cost {96,206} - (94,697} {28,620) {213,523} -
Interest expanse (1,174,281} {126,504} {76,112} (415,342} {57,753) (1.850.482) -
Net olher Income (axpensa) (1,243,080 {121,614} {147,164} {407,153} (84,601) (2.003,627) -
Incoma (loss) before contibitions and transfers 3,248,260 287,294 959,306 457,084 1,336,850 6,286,774 (415,367}
Contributions 61,400 . - 49,800 - 151,200 -
Teansfers out (tax aquivalenl payments to
City of Morristown) {375,554} {29,187) {1,156,8687) {36,120} - {1,607,848) =
Changas In nef position 2,925,108 258,107 {197,681} 520,744 1,336,850 4,843,126 (415,307)
Net pesition at bagianing of year,
as praviously staled 20,003,212 3,761,797 58,814,737 31,431,621 (4,842,336} 109,168,931 1,017,542
Prior period adjustment . {181,769} . - - {181,789) -
Net position at beginning of year,
as restated 23,604,929 3,580,608 58,814,737 3t431521 {4.842,336) 112,788,859 1,017,542
Net position - ending $ 28730035 $ 3838115 $ 58617056 $ 31952265 g 53. 505486] $ 117,631,985 § §02,235

The notes to financlal statemenls are an integral part of {his statement. 54



City of Mormistown, Tennesses
Statement of Cash Flows
Propriatary Funds
Year Ended Juna 30, 2015

Gaovernmental
Businass-Type Activitfes Aclivitles -
Enterpiise Funds Internat
Wastowater Storm Watler Power Water Broadband Service Fund -
System System System System System Total Health Insurance
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash recelved frem customers $ 12997772  $ 1286197 3 75540,153  § 6,869,105 § 9,678,067 § 108,380,294 $ 4,242,555
Cash received from Gity of Morzistown 433,753} - 1,458,310 - - 1,424,557 -
Cash pald to suppliers (4,318,254} {428,693} (65,958,810} (2,672,642)  (6,653.474) (80,031,673} .
Claims and pramiums paid - - “ - - - (4,564,292}
Cash pald to empioyees (810,078) {215,698} (5,515,576} {1,514,490) {1,188,301) {0,244,143) -
Net cash provided by operaling activities 7,835,687 641,808 5,533,077 2,661,973 1,836,202 18,528,835 {321,737}
Cash flows from noncaplial financing activities:
Transfers to City of Moristown {tax equivalent
payments) (375,554) (20,187) {1,156,987) (36,120} - (1,597,848} -
l.ong-term portion of compensaled absences - 6,418 - - - 6,418 -
Nel cash flows from noncapital financing activities (375,554) {22,769} (1,156,987) (36.120) - 4,591,439} -
Cash flows from Envesting activitles:
Iaterest received on cash and cash equivalents ! 21,367 5,380 23,640 3,189 1,772 60,378 -
Sale {purchase) of Investments 7,477,503 - - - - 7,177,503 -
Met cash fows from investing activities 7,188,500 5,380 23,649 8,186 1,772 7,237,881 -
Cash flows from capltal and related
financing activities:
Payments on capital [ease obligalions - . {15,310} {15,310) -
Unamortized bond premium - {24,965} - - - (24,965) -
Net additions to capital assets {20,453,438) 1,020,402} (6,396,058) (2,312,964} {501,927} (30,684,789) -
Interfund (repaymants) advances 36,141 - {890,763) 144,353 (96,770} 1 -
Centributions 51,400 - - 99,800 - 161,209 -
Pringipal paymenis on long lerm debt and
contractual cbligation {3,486,621) (211,124} (883,507) {856,783) (124,947} (5,573,072) -
Interest paid on long term debt (1,174,280} {126,064) {76,112) (415,342) {57,753} {1,850,481) -
Financing costs paid on long-term debl {20,206} - {94,697} . (28,620} (213.523) .
Proceads from long term borrowings 14,478,032 - 1,477,707 - - - 15,955,738 -
Net cash fiows from financing activities (10,848,972} (1,383,485} {6,053,520) {3,343,596) {825,327) (22,255,200} .
Increase (decrease) In cash and cash equlvalents 4,010,081 (759,068} {1,653,700) {689,854} 1,012,737 1,020,086 {321,737}
Cash and cash equivalenls, beginning 13,806,250 3,843,306 12,215,159 7,281,495 852,040 38,098,250 1,193,416
Cash and cash equivalenls, ending $ 17916311 $ 3084238 % 10561369 § 6,541,641 $ 1,884,777 % 40,018,336 $ 871,678 j

The rotes lo inancial statements are an Integral part of this staternent. 55



CHy of Maorristown, Tennesses

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Year Ended Juna 30, 2015
Governmental
Busliness-Type Activilles Activities «
Enterprise Funds Internal
Wastewater Storm Water Power ¥atee Broadband Service Fund -
System System System System System Total Health Insurance

Reconchlation of operating Incoma to
net cash provided by operating
activitfes:
Opesaling income {loss) § 4492356 5 408908 § 1106475 0§ 864217 § 1421451 § 8203401 ] {415,307}
Adjusiments to reconcife operating income to
nel cash fiows from operating activiies:

Dapreciation and amortiza%ion 3,354,060 217,744 5,063,361 1,585,800 526,614 10,847,588 -
Changes In cperating zssels and liabilites:
Accounis receivable - (41,927) (61,025} 341 282 {101,528} (57,302}
Accrual of unbitted revenue (46,108} {3,494) (175,586} (18,243) 23,637 (217,797) -
Materials and supplias inventory {14,192} {33.771) (52,845} 63,935 - {36,703} -
Other assels {11,885} (719,814} 1,839 (31,553} {761,710} {30,678}
Frade accounis payable {64,187) 49,758 88,446 60,840 {128,018} 14,838 181,550
Cuslomer deposits and prepayments - - 131,696 - 2,500 134,196 -
Other liabfilies 126,550 43,788 144,469 21,444 21,280 356,631 -
Nat cash provided by operating aclivities $ 7835687 § 641,806 $ 6533077 0§ 2681973 § 1836292 $ 18,528,835 % (324,737}

Noncash disclosua:
Acquisition of capial asssls $ 587,852 $ - $ 261,087 $ 10,348 $ 136594 % 695,851 $ -

The notes to financial statements are an Integral pari of this stalement. 56



City of Morristown, Tennessee
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest and dividends receivable
Grants receivable
Investments at fair value:
Mutual funds - short-term
Mutual funds - equity
Mutuat funds - fixed income

Total assets

Liabilitles
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Payroll deductions payable
Due to others

Total liabilities

Net position held in trust for pension benefits

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Fiduciary Funds

June 30, 2015

Post-Employment LAMTPO
Benefits Trust Agency Fund
$ 346 $ 488,646
- 18,643

9,332 -

133,374 -

85,889 -
228,941 $ 507,289
- $ 943
- 2,677
1,484
- 502,185
- $ 507,289

$ 228,941
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Statement of Changes in Flduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Post-Employment
Benefits Trust

Additions
Employer contributions $ 421,169
Investment earnings:
Dividends ang capital gains 13,595
Net increase in fair value of investments {4,038)
Total additions 430,726
Deductions
Benefits 421,169
Administrative expenses 4,260
Total deductions 425,429
Change in net position 5,297 E
Net position - beginning of the year 223,644
Net position - end of the year 5 228,941

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 58



City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes fo Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Morristown, Tennessee (the City) Is a municipal corporation operating under the Council-Administrator
form of government. The City's major operations include police and fire protection, parks and recreation, public
works, and general administrative services. In addition, the City owns and operates waier, power, wastewater
(Note 5} and broadband systems (the System). The water, power, wastewater and broadband systems are
operated by a separate board (Morristown Ultilities Commission, the Commission, or MUC), which is appointed by
the Mayor and approved by City Council.

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board {GASB) unanimously approved Statement No. 34,
Basic Financial Statemenis-Management's Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments. Certain of
the significant changes in the statement include the following.

+ The financial statements include;

ss A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the City's overall
financial position and results of operations.

»¢ Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the City's acfivities, including
infrastructure (roads, bridges, etc.).

« Achange in the fund financlal statements to focus on major funds.

These and other changes are reflected in the accompanying financial statements (including notes to financial
statementis). The City elected to implement both the general provisions and infrastructure provisions.

A. Reporiing Entity
These financial statements present the City (the primary government). There are no component units.
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net position and the statement of changes in
net position) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the
effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from the government-wide statements. Governmental activities,
which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type aclivities, which are funded to a significant extent by user fees and charges for support.

Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a spacific function or segment. The statement of
aclivities demonstrates the extent to which the direct expenses of each function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Program revenues include 1} charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided or given by the function or segment, and 2} grants
and contributions that are restricted for meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function
or segment.

Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
Although they are excluded from the government-wide financial statements, separate financial statements are
also provided for the fiduciary funds. Each major governmental enterprise fund is reported in a separate
column in the financial statements.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued}

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

C. Measurement, Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are reported when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and other restricted revenues are recognized as revenue when all eligible requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial stalements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collected within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal year.
Simitar to the accrual basis of accounting, expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments, are recorded
only when payment is due. Compensated absences, consisting of unused vacation pay and other
compensated absences, are not included in the governmental basis financial statements, but are shown as a
reconciling item and included in the city-wide financial statements. Inventory costs are reported in the period
when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, intergovernmental revenue, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenue during the
currert fiscal year. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the government.

The governmeant reports the following major governmental funds;

The General Fund is the government's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of
the general government, except for those required to be accounted for in another fund,

The Solid Waste Fund is the fund used to pay for all solid waste expenditures. Solid waste revenues are
provided by monthly charges to customers and additional can purchases. Transfers from the general
fund are made for any remaining deficit. Fund balance of the solid waste fund is assigned for solid waste
operations.

The government reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Power System Fund accounts for the activities of the government's electric distribution activities.
The Water System Fund accounts for the activities of the government's water distribution activities.
The Wastewater System Fund accounts for the activities of the government's sewage treatment

operations.

The Broadband System Fund accounts for the activittes of the government’'s cable and telephone
services.

The Storm Water System Fund accounis for the activities of the government's storm water management
activities.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued}

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:
The Narcofics Fund and Sofid Waste Fund are required by the State of Tennessee.
The CDBG Fund has been established to account for expenditure of COBG grant funds.

Special revenue funds receive revenue from designated sources and transfers from the General Fund
and are expended for designated purposes.

The Fiduciary Fund is an agency fund used to account for the City's role as the fiscal agent for LAMTPO
(Lakeway Area Metropolitan Transportation Planning Organization). Operating expenses of LAMTPO are
covered by federal and state revenue, but a match is required from the City. The City's Other Post
Employment Benefits Trust Fund is also shown as an agency fund. The trust fund is used to account for
the contributions and expenses related to OPEB administration.

The Insurance Fund is an internal service fund used to account for the City's health insurance services.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activily has been eliminated from the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government's enterprise funds and
various other functions of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues raported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and preducing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
enterprise funds are charges to customers for sales and services. The City also recognizes as revenues the
portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating
expenses of the enterprise funds Include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
deprecialion of capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-
operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted sources are available for use, it is the government's policy to use
restricted resources first and unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, Liabiities, and Net Position or Equity
1. Deposits and Investments

The government’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and
short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

2. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements and other activities that
are ouistanding at the end of the year are referred to as either "due toffrom other funds” or “advances
toffrom other funds.” These have been eliminated in the government-wide statement of net position,

All trade receivables were considered collectible at June 30, 2015. Based on experience, an allowance
for uncallected property taxes of 1% of the tax levies for the past ten years is maintained.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Property taxes are levied as of January 1% on property values assessed as of the same date. Biils for
those taxes are usually mailed on July 1%, A 2% discount is offered for payment within thirty days after
the bills are mailed. On December 1%, any unpaid taxes become delinquent and a penaity of 4.5% Is
assessed with an additional 1% per month for additional delinquency. After one year and eleven months,
any unpaid taxes are sent to the County Clerk and Master for collection.

3. Inventories

All inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded
as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased.

4. Reslricted Assels

This represents constraints placed on the use of assets through external restraints imposed by creditors
{such as through debt covenants) or by grants, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments
or constraints imposed by law or enabling legisiation.

5. Income Taxes

The Power and Water Systems, as well as the Wastewaler and Storm Waler funds are exempt from
federal and state income taxes since they are comprised of funds of the City, a nontaxable entity.
Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying financial statements.
The Broadband Syslem is exempt from federal income taxes; however, it is required by TCA 7-52-606 to
pay franchise and excise {ax to the State of Tennessee.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (i.e., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets used in the government-wide
financial statemenis are defined as those having an individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated
life in excess of iwo years. Estimated useful lives for the major classes of equipment are as follows:

Infrastructure (roads and streets) 20 years
Automolive 6 years
Other mobile equipment 1210 15 years
Computer equipment 5to 7 years
Buildings 15 o 50 years
Transmission equipment, fixtures and devices 25 1o 50 years
Distribution transformers, meters, fixtures and devices *> 5to 50 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 to 25 years

Plant acquisition adjustments represent the excess of cost over net book value of utilities properties
acquired from other utilities districts. Such excess is amortized over the estimated useful life of the

related property (periods of up to 20 years).
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

7. Compensafed Absences

It is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but not used sick pay benefits.
There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the government does not have a policy to pay
any amounis when employees separate from service with the government. All vacation pay is accrued
when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements. A liabllity for these
amounts is reported in the governmental funds only if they have maiured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.

Morristown Ulilittes Commission's policy is to recognize the cost of both vacation pay and sick leave
benefits as earned. In the event of termination or retirement, an employee is reimbursed for accumulated
vacation days. In general, accumulated vacation days are limited to 30 days. Employeas are reimbursed
for accumulated sick leave upon retirement or termination at an equivalent salary rate of 100%, 50% or
33-1/3% depending on the date earned. Sick leave accumulation is limited to 90 days.

8. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reporied as liabilities in the applicable governmental
aclivities, business-type activities, or proprietary statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts,
as well as issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds.

in the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premium and discounts, as well
as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reporied as debt service
expenditures.

9. Fund Equity
The City's fund balance is classified into the following categories:

Non-spendable Fund Balance — Fund balances reporied as nen-spendable in the accompanying financial
statements represent amounts for permanent fund principal restrictions, inventory, prepaid expenditures,
advances to other funds, and noncurrent notes receivable,

Restricted Fund Balance — Fund balances reported as restricted are the result of externally imposed
restrictions placed upon current resources by state stalutes, creditors, bond covenants, donors, or

grantors.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are avallable for use, it Is the City's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Commilted Fund Balance — Fund balances reported as commitied are self-imposed restrictions placed
upon certain resources by the City's highest level of decision making authority (City Council) and cannot
be used for any other purpose, modified, or rescinded uniess formal action (ordinance) is approved by the
City Council.

Assigned Fund Balance — FFund balances reported as assigned are intended for certain purposes as
approved by management. City Council has a fund balance policy that allows amounts to be assigned or
re-assigned by management.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Notes to Financial Statements
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10.

11.

12.

Unassigned Fund Balance - In accordance with GAAP, the general fund is the only governmental fund
that reports an unassigned fund balance. The unassigned fund balance has not been restricted,
committed, or assigned {o a specific purpose within the generai fund.

When committed, assigned or unassigned fund balance amounts are available for use, it is the City’s
policy to use the committed fund balance first; the assigned fund balance second; and then the
unassigned fund balance as needed.

Net Position of Marristown Utilities Commission

s Net investment In capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes
or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources at
year-end, the portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources aftributable to the unspent
proceeds is not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Rather, that porlion
of the debt or deferred inflows of resources is included in the same net position component as the
unspent proceeds.

» Restricled — This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources related to those assets.

¢ Unrestricted — This component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows
or resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the
determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted components of net position.

Deferred Quftflows/inflows of Resources

In addition lo assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
oufflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an oufflow of resources (expensefexpendiiure) until then. The City has one item that qualifies for
reporting in this category which is the accrual for unbilled revenue,

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as
an inflow of resources (revenue) untit that time. The City has one item that qualifies for reporting In this
category. These revenues are from current and definquent property taxes. These amounts are deferred
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of
Morristown's participation in the Public Employee Retirement Plan of the Tennessee Consolidated
Retirement System (TCRS), and additions to/deductions from Morristown's fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TCRS for the Public Employee
Retirement Plan. For this purpose, benefits (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms of the Public Employee Retirement Pian of
TCRS. Investments are reported at fair value.
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NOTE 2 — RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net position.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance-total governmental
funds and the government-wide statement of net position.

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balance-total governmental funds and changes in net position
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide slatement of activities.

NOTE 3 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for all
governmental funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

Around the first of March, the budget process begins, with the City Administrator giving direclion to
department heads. Toward the end of March, Department heads submit their proposed budgets, and
these are reviewed by the City Administrator, who makes the final decisions befere submission to City
Council. City Council has work sessions and makes their revisions and publishes the proposed budget in
the local newspaper. Before June 30, City Council adopts the budget ordinance with two readings.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function, and department, but the budget ordinance is on
the fund level. The government's department heads may make fransfers of appropriations within their
department. The legal level of budgetary control is the fund level. Management can transfer amounts
hetween departments. City Council amended the original budget, and the original and final amounts are
presented in the financial statements included in this report.

B. Cash Shortage

On July 8, 2015, the State Comptroller’s Office issued a special investigative report on investigated
allegations of malfeasance related to the City's police depariment. The report disclosed that a former
police officer failed to turn over cash toialing at least $6,000 for deposit. When interviewed by
investigators regarding the missing meney, the officer turned over $5,500 in cash that he claimed to have
baen holding in his police vehicle for as long as 35 days. The remaining $500 was not in the officer's
police vehicle. A receivable for the remaining $500 is reflected as a cash shortage in the financial
statements of this report at June 30, 2015.

This matter was referred 1o the local district attorney general. On July 1, 2015, the Hamblen County

Grand Jury indicted the officer on two counts of Theft over $1,000, one count of Theft under $500, and
one count of Official Misconduct.
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A. Deposits and Investments
Al year-end, deposits and short-term investments were as follows:

Cash and
Equivalents

Government type funds $ 15,520,297
Enterprise type funds 23,466,996

Totals ‘ $ 38,987,293

As of June 30, 2015, all of Morristown Utilities Commission’s deposils were covered by the bank coliateral
pool administered by the State Treasurer. Banks participating in the pool report the aggregate balance of
their public fund accounts {o the State. Collateral to secure these deposits must be pledged to the State
Treasurer on behalf of the bank collateral pool. The securities pledged to protect these accounts are
pledged in aggregate rather than against each individual account. Public fund accounts covered by the
pool are considered entirely insured or collateralized.

As of June 30, 2015, the Water System, Wastewater System, and Broadband System have restricted
cash and cash equivalents totaling $2,913,243, $13,422,259, and $215,838, respectively. The restricted
assets conpsist of construction retalnage in escrow and unspent bond proceeds described in Note 4J.

The City's depdsits in excess of the FDIC insurance limits as of June 30, 2015, were covered by the bank
coliateral pool administered by the Treasurer of the State of Tennessee.

The City has repurchase agreements with First Tennessee Bank whereby City funds are invested
overnight in securities of the U.S. Treasury Department. At June 30, 2015, the City had $3,873,598 at
First Tennessee Bank invested in these securities and has included these in cash and cash equivalents.

B. Receivables and Real Estate — Non-operating

Receivables as of year end for the government's individual major funds and nonmajor in the aggregate,
including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Solid Non-Major and Internal
General Waste Other Funds  Enterprise Service Total

Receivables:
Taxes $ 10,950,232 % - 3 - 3% - % - $ 10,850,232
Accounts 3,650,040 135,052 36,963 8,730,866 56,934 12,627,855
Grants - - “ - - -
Other - - - - - -

Gross receivables 14,609,272 135,052 36,963 8,739,866 56,934 23,578,087
Less: Alowance for bad debt (918,195) - - - - {918,195)
Net receivables $ 13,691,077 $ 135082 § 36063 $ 8,730,866 § 56,934 $ 22659802
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included in taxes receivable of the General Fund is property taxes of $10,950,232 that were assassed as
of January 1, 2015, but will not be billed until after June 30, 2015. There is an offsetiing deferred income

for the above balance.

Real estate — non-operating is an inventory of industrial park land held for re-sale. The balance at June

30, 2015, was $11,668,742.

Capital Assets

Capital assets of the City's primary government were as follows:

Governmental activities:
Capifal assets not being depreciated;
tand
Conslruction in progress
Total capltal assets not being depreciated
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings
improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total capital assets belng depreciated
Less: accumulated depreciation:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total accumulated depreciation
Net capital assets being depreciated

Tolatl capital assets-government aclivities

Balance Balance
July 1, 2014 Increases Decreases June 30, 2015
% 7,838,719 $ 6,700 {60,780} $ 7,785,639
815,278 957,721 - 1,772,999
8,654,807 964,421 (60,780) 9,558,638
19,792,099 - - 19,762,099
12,171,059 259,398 - 12,430,457
12,983,478 1,681,062 {48,783} 14,815,757
48,299,232 - - 48,208,232
93,245,868 1,940,460 (48,783) 95,137,545
{7,500,740) (377,084) - (7.877,824)
{11,076,670) {128,932} - (11,205,602}
{9,656,140) {517,626} 48,138 {10,125,628)
{19,463,901) {2,083,475) - (21,547,376)
(47,697,451) (3,107,117} 48,138 {50,756,430)
45,548,417 {1,166,657) (645) 44,381,115
$ 54,203,414 $  {202,236) (61,425)  § 53,930,753
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Balance Balance
Juty 1, 2014 Increases Decreases June 30, 2015

Business-type activities:
Capltal assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 2,471,776 § 24,494 $ (1,150} $ 2,495,120

Construction in progress 7,843,501 30,400,391 {20,733,658) 17,510,234
Total assets not being depreciated 10,315,277 30,424,885 {20,734,808) 20,005,354
Capital assets being depreciated:

Bullding and improvements 20,256,390 1,272,666 - 21,529,056

Transmissfon and distribution 228,037,273 18,021,537 (835,030} 245,223,780

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 37,089,113 2,615,268 (2,333,841} 37,370,440
Total capital assets being depreciated 285,382,776 21,908,471 (3,168,971) 304,123,276
Less accumulated depreclation:

Bullding and improvements (6,808,353} {469,826} - (7,279,179)

Transmission and distribufion {95,104,828) (7,417 672) 931,972 {101,590,528)

Furniture, fiiures and equipment (18,656,275) (2,863,703} 2,318,129 (19,201,849}
Total accumulated depreciation (120,570,456} {10,751,201) 3,250,101 (128,071,556)
Met capilal assets being depreciated 164,812,320 11,158,270 81,130 176,051,720
Total net capital assets - business

type aclivities 175,127,597 41,683,155 (20,653,678} 196,057,074
Total net capital assets $ 229,331,011 $ (20,715,103} $ 249,006,827

Depreciation expense was charged to government activities as follows:

General govermnment $ 192,870
Public safety 362,605
Public works 2,350,232
Parks and recreation 70,419
Airport 130,91
Total _370717?—
Wastewater $ 3,354,072
Storm waler fund 209,190
Water and electric power 6,661,331
Broadband 526,608
Total $ 10,751,201

The provision for depreciation does nol include depreciation on transportation equipment.

5 41,380,919

Those

amounts are reported as operations expenses in the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in
net position. The cost of malntenance and repairs is charged to expense as incurred. The depreciation
on transportation equipment not included in depreciation expense previously noted was $273,549 for the
Power System, $76,308 for the Water System, $77,590 for the Wastewater System, and $44,082 for the
Broadband System.
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D. Accounts payable and other current liabilities

Governmental Business Type Total

Accounts payable $ 1,068,074 $ 10,763,358 $ 11,831,432
Accrued payroll and other liabilities 914,581 3,055,179 3,969,760
Total g 1,982,655 $ 13,818,537 $ 15,801,192

E. Interfund receivables, advances, payables, and transfers
The inferfund receivabies and payables as of June 30, 2015, are as follows:

The first item represents an interfund loan belween the Broadband System and Power System (see note
4-J).

The next three items represent temporary operating cash advances between the Power System, Water
System, and Wastewater System.

The receivable from the Wastewater System represents in lieu and administrative costs. The receivable
from the Power System represents routine operating costs paid by the City and billed to the Power
System. These are routine receivables and do not consfitute loans.

Recelvable From Payable to Purpose Amount
Broadband System Power System Interfund loan $ 6,044,728
Power System Water System Operating and maint. costs 18,771
Power System Wastewater System Operating and maint. costs 46,207
Wastewater System Water System Operating and maint. costs 38,808
Wastewater System General Fund in lieu of tax 29,187
Power System General Fund Operating costs 214,337

$ 8,392,138
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The interfund transfers were as follows:

Fund Purpose Transfer In Transfer Out
Governmental:
General Fund Operating Transfer $ 1,597,848 $ 783,218
Solid Wasle Operating Transfer 483,218
Narcolics Operating Transfer 300,600
Enterprise Funds:
Power System In fieu of tax 1,156,987
Water System In lieu of tax 36,120
Storm Waler In lieu of tax 14,187
Sewer In lieu of tax 375,554
Storm Water Administrative Expenses 15,000

$ 2,381,066 $ 2,381,066

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statuie or budget requires to collect them to
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in
the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary

authorizations.

All items represent duly appropriated operating transfers. The transfers from the power fund, water fund
and wastewater fund to the general fund are in lieu of tax payments that are required to be accounted for
as lransfers by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Transfers from the storm water fund were
in lieu of tax payments and reimbursement of administrative costs.

F. Post-Retirement Healthcare Benefits

City of Morristown — excluding Power, Water, Wastewater, and Broadband Systems.

RETIREE MEDICAL, DENTAL AND VISION INSURANCE PLAN PROVISIONS:

Type of Coverage:

a. Plan Types:

b. Eligibility:

c. Benefit/Cost Sharing:

d. Spouse Benefit:

e. Surviving Spouse Benefit:
f. Annual Premiums:

Self-funded medical, dental and vision

Age 60 and 10 years of service or 30 years of service
until Medicare eligible.

Employer pays 85% of medical premium and 100% of dental and
vision premiums. For employees retiring after June 30, 2010,
the employer will pay 2.84% of medical premiums for each
year of service up to a maximum of 85%.

Yes, while retiree is eligible.
None
Average Medical: Retiree $5,207; Spouse $5,207
Average Dental: Retiree $241; Spouse $290
Average Vision: Refiree $78; Spouse $35
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1) GASB 45 DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS — ESTIMATED

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

NG

Annual Required Contribution {ARC)
Interest on net OPEB Obligation
Adjustment to ARC
. Annual CPEB Cost (expense) (1 + 2 + 3)
Contributions made (assumed middle of year)
Increase in net OPEB Obligation (4 - 5)
Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year
Net OPEB Obligation - end of year (6 + 7)

*Contribution made was assumed fo equal Expected Benefit Payments

The annual OPEB Cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the Net
OPEB abligation for fiscal years ending June 30, 2011, 2012, 2013, and 2014 are as {follows:

Fiscal
Year

Ending

6/30/2015
6/30/2014
6/30/2013
6/30/2012
6/30/2011

Percentage of

Annual OPEB Net
Annual Cost CPEB
OPEB Cost Contributions Obligation
$ 421,169 100.0% $ -
$ 375,632 100.0% $ -
$ 376,550 100.0% $ -
$ 468,403 100.0% $ -
$ 455,797 100.0% $ -

Funded Status and Funding Progress

6/30/2009
6/30/2010
6/30/2011
6/30/2012
6/30/2013
6/30/2014
6/30/2015

$

518,360
473,774
455,797
468,493
376,650
375,632
421,169

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

71112014 -

_ 63072015

$ 421,169

421,169
(421,169)

s -

Covered
Payroll

$ 12,234,798

$ 11,683,168
$ 11,308,213
$ -
$ -

OPEB
Cost % of

Payroll

3.4%
3.2%
3.3%
0.0%
0.0%
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Methods and Assumptions

Funding Interest Rate

2012 Medical/Rx Trend Rates

Ultimate Medical/Rx Trend Rates

Year Ultimate Trend Rates Reached

Actuarial Cost Method

Annual Payroll Increase

The Remaining Amortization Period at June 30, 2015 (closed)

1. Funding Interest Rate:

An interest rate of 7.00% was used.

7.00%
9.00%
5.00%

2018

Entry Age Normal

2. Mortality: The mortality rates are from the RP-2000 Combined
Fully Genesational Mortality Table with projection scale AA.
3. Retirement Rates:  was assumed that the following percentage of eligible
employees would relire each year:
Age Rate Age Rate
50-54 15.0% * 61 11.5%
55 15.0% 62 21.5%
56-57 3.0% 63 14.5%
58 4.0% 64 16.0%
59 6.5% 65 29.0%
60 9.0% 66+ NA

2.50%
22.66

* 35% assumed for police and firemen with 30 years of service.

4. Disability Rates: None
5, Termination Rates: Based on age and service:
Age Male Female

20 157% 18.7%
25 124% 14.9%
30 91% 1.1%
35 58% 7.3%
40  2.5% 3.5%
45  22% 3.0%
50 1.8% 2.4%
55  1.6% 1.9%
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6. Health Care Trend Rates:

7. Padicipation Rate:

8. Percent Married:

9. Acluarial Value of Assefs:

10. Per Capita Claims Cosf;

11. Administrative Expenses:

12. Participant Salary Increases;

13. Payroll Growth Rate:

1t was assumed that health care costs would increase in accordance
with the trend rates in the following tabfe:

Vision &

Medical Dentat
Year Rales Rates
2014 9.0% 5.0%
2015 8.0% 5.0%
2016 7.0% 5.0%
2017 6.0% 5.0%
2018+ 5.0% 5.0%

It was assumed that 100% of the current aclive employees covered
under the active plan on the day before retirement would enzoll in the
retiree medical plan upon refirement.

It was assumed that 40% of the male and 40% of the female
emptoyees who elect refires heaith care coverage for themselves
would also elect coverage for their spouse upon retirement. it was
assumed that male spouses are three years older than thelr wives
and female spouses are three years younger than the retiree. For
current retirees, actual census Iinformation was used.

NIA

Conventionat insured equivalent premiums were age-graded on the
current pariicipants in the Medical plan. Fusther details of the annual
per capila claims cost are shown befow:

Age Male Female
50 5012 5,782
51 5208 5,894
52 5410 6,004
53 5,624 6,105
54 5,850 6,210
55 6,086 6,315
56 6,330 6,424
57 6582 6,533
58 6,826 6,594
59 7,077 6,863
60 7,340 7,036
61 7611 7.209
62 7.892 7,389
63 8,042 7,532
64 8,196 7.674

Included in premiums used.
4.00% annually
2.50% annually
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Actuarial Cost Method

An Actuarial Cost Method develops an orderly allocation of the actuarial present value of bensfits
payments over the working lifetime of the participants in the plan. The actuarial present vaiue of benefits
allocated {0 a particular fiscal year is called the Normal Cost. The actuarial present value of benefits
allocated to all pericds prior to a valuation date is called the Actuarial Accrued Liability. The Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued Liability is amortized over future years in accordance with the employer's established

accounting policy,

The Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method is used in this valuation. Under this method, the Actuarial Present
Value of Projected Benefits of each individual included in the Actuarial Valuation is allocated on a level
basls over future earnings of the individual between entry age and assumed exit age(s). The portion of
this Actuarial Present Value allocated to a valuation year is called the Normal Cost. The portion of this
Acluarial Present Value not provided for at a valuation date by the Actuarial Present Value of future
Normal Costs is called the Actuarial Accrued Liability.

The amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability has been determined as a level percentage of
the projected payrolt of active plan members. At each valuation, a new amortization base is created
equal to the excess of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over the remaining balances of prior
amortization bases. The new base is amortized over 30 years. The equivalent single amortization period
for alt components combined may not exceed the maximum acceptable period of 30 years.

Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at
the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the employer and plan members
to that point.

Actuarial valuations for the OPEB plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.

Actuarial calculations of the OPEB pian reflect a long-term perspective.

G. Morristown Utilities Commission (Water, Power, Wastewater and Broadband Systems) Post-
Employment Benefits

The Systems provide other post-employment benefits (OPEB), in accordance with its employee benefils
plan, to all eligible retirees.

Current accounting guidance requires the recognition of liabilittes for OPEB over the employment of
participants rather than as premiums are paid. The Power, Water, Wastewater and Broadband Systems
recognized $54,548, $16,493 and $12,732 and $31,534, respectively, for these benefits in 2015.

The Systems' OPEB is a single employer defined bengfit plan and is not required to issue a separate
financial report.
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Plan Description

The Systems provide medical, dental, and life insurance benefits to retirees. Employees who retire at
age 55 with 10 years of service or at age 65 with five years of service are eligible to particlpate. The
Systems pay the same monthly premium amount that is paid for active employees of the reliree’s
medical, dental, and life insurance premiums.

In addition, the Systems pay the same monthly premium amount that is paid for active employaes of the
retiree’s dependent’s medical premiums. The retiree’s spouse is also eligible for medical benefits (same
as retiree) as long as the retiree is eligible {there are no surviving spouse benefits). The life insurance
benefit available to retirees is $5,000. The average annual medical and dental premium is $7,254 and

$407, respectively.
Funding Policy

The Systems fund the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis and do not intend to contribute in excess of the
annual premiums. The annual required confribution (ARC) is an actuarially determined amount that
represents a level of funding which, if paid on an ongeing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each

year and amortize any unfunded actuartal liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years.

Annual OPEB and Net OPEB Obligation

Power Water Wastewater  Broadband
1. Annual Required Coniribution {ARC) $ 110,994 $35608 § 17,508 $ 32515
2. Interest on net OPEB Obligation 16,793 3,238 362 5,734
3. Adjustmentto ARC {19,633) {3,792} {424) (6,715)
4, Annual OPEB Cost (expense) (1+ 2+ 3} 108,154 35,065 17,446 31,534
5. Contributions made (assumed middle of year) (53,378) (18,562) (4,714) -
6. Increase in net OPEB Obligation {4 - 5) 54,778 16,493 12,732 31,534
7. Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year 419,085 80,946 9,046 143,343
8. Net OPEB Obligation - end of year {6 + 7) $ 473863 $97433 § 21778 $ 174,877
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The annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net OPEB
obligation is as follows:

Percentage of

Annual OPEB Net
Annual Cost OPEB
Fund OPEB Cost Contributed Obligations

2015:

Power System $ 108,124 49.6% $ 473,633
Water System 35,055 53.0% 097,439
Wastewater System 17,446 27.0% 21,778
Broadband System 31,634 0.0% 174,877
2014

Power System $ 101,878 38.2% $ 419,085
Water System 33,339 48.8% 80,946
Wastewater System 10,192 11.2% 9,046
Broadband System 29,208 0.0% 143,343
2013:

Power System $ 109,042 19.8% $ 356,098
Water Syslem 31,628 13.1% 63,878
Broadband System 26,595 0.0% 114,135

Funded Status and Funding Progress

UAAL as a
Actuarial Percentage
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded of Covered
Actuarial Value of Liahility AAL Funded Covered Payrofl
Valuation Assels (AAL} {UAAL) Ratio Payroll {(AAL)
System Date {a) {b} {b - a) {a/b) (¢} {(b - a)fc}
Power THI2013 § - $ 930,342 3 939,342 00% § 4,083,600 23%
Water 7HI2013 - 330,210 330,210 0.0% 1,221,906 27%
Wastewater 11172014 - 153,876 153,876 0.0% 583,274 26.4%
Broadband 7112013 - 89,022 89,022 0.0% 1,076,414 8.3%
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Actuariat Methods and Assumptions

The aciuarial methods and assumptions used were applied consistently for the Power, Water,
Wastewater, and Broadband Systems and were as follows:

The reguired schedule of funding progress immediately following the notes to the financial statements
presents mulli-year trend information about the change in actuarial value of plan assets relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Funding Interest Rate 4.00%
2013 Medical Trend Rates 9.00% *
Ultimate Trend Rate 5.00%
Year Ultimate Trend Rate Reached 2017
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal |
Annual Payroll Growth Rate 2.50%
Remaining Amortization Period at June 30, 2014 (closed) 22.99 years

The mortality rates are from the RP-2000 Combined Fully Generational Mortality Table with projection
scale AA. It was assumed that the following percentages of eligible employees would retire each year:

Age Rate
55-59 3%
60-64 20%
65-69 15%
70+ 100%

it was also assumed that employees would terminate employment with the rate in the following table:

Age Male Female
20 6.3% 7.5%
25 5.0% R 6.0%
30 3.6% 4.4%
35 2.3% 2.9%
40 1.0% 1.4%
45 0.9% 1.2%
50 0.8% 1.0%
55 0.6% 0.7%
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It was assumed that health care cost would increase in accordance with the frend rates in the following
table:

Vision and
Medical Dental
Year Rates Rates
2013 9.0% 5.0%
2014 8.0% 5.0%
2015 7.0% 5.0%
2016 6.0% 5.0%

It was assumed that 100% of the current aclive employees covered under the active plan on the day
before retirement would enroll in the retiree medical plan upon retirement. It was also assumed that 10%
of the male and 10% of the female employess who elect retiree health coverage for themselves would
also elect coverage for their spouse upon retirement. It was assumed that male spouses are three years
older than their wives and female spouses are three years younger than the retiree. For current retirees,
actual census information was used.

The preparation of the actuarial liabilities calculated requires management to make assumptions
discussed above. Due to the use of these assumptions, actual results may differ from the estimates. The
discount rate considers inflationary rate adjustments.

Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the substantive plan in effect at
the time of each vaiuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the employer and plan members
{o that point.

Actuarial valuations for the OPEB plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the fulure. Actuarially determined amounts are
subject to continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made

about the future.

Actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long-term perspective.

. Deferred ltems

Deferred items consisled of the following:

Deferred Inflows: Governmental Business-Type Total

Taxes due after June 30, 2015 $ 10,346,945 $ - $ 10,346,945
Pension changes - experience 421,366 6,325 427,691
Pension changes - investiment earnings 3,632,773 54,530 3,687,303
Unavailable revenue - 264,342 264,342
Total $ 14,401,084 3 325,197 $ 14,726,281
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Deferred Outflows: Governmental Business-Type Total
Pension other deferrals $ 1,953,008 $ 29,132 $ 1,982,140
Accrual for unbilled revenue 56,251 2,622,786 2,679,037
Total $ 2009250  § 2,651,918 $ 4,661,177

l.  Other Liabilities

Included in non-current liabilities is a liability for compensated absences in the Storm Water System of
$8,815, and in the governmental activities of $864,970. in addition, the Broadband System of Morristown
Utilities Commission has a capital lease payable of $18,877 which is included in current liabilities.

Governmental Business

Activities Actlvities

Balance-July 1, 2014 $ 1,198,998 $ 4,119
Increases 1,887,701 24,091
Decreases {1,951,027) {15,618)
Batance-June 30, 2015 $ 1,235,672 $ 12,502

As an other fong-term liability, compensated absences for the governmental activities are expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources of the general, narcotics, and solid waste funds.

Self insurance

The City is self-insured for employee medical benefits which are administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield
of Tennessee, Inc. The rate of the premiums pald into the fund is based on prior experience and
insurance company recommendations. Claims in excess of a self-insured aggregate limit of $3,902,454
and specific underlying coverage of $85,000 per employee are covered through a stop loss coverage
agreement with BlueRe of Tennessee, an affiliate of the claims administrator. The stop loss arrangement
provides for 100% reimbursement of claims exceeding $3,902,454, subject {o contract provisions, up to a
maximum aggregate reimbursement of $1,000,000 per policy vear.

Claims Liabilities

Liabilities of the self-insurance fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has cccurred, and the
amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The self-insurance fund establishes claims liabilities
based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims that have been reported but not setled. The process
used to compute claims liabilities doas not necessarily result in an exact amount. Claims incurred prior {o
June 30, 2015, and subsequently settled total approximately $357,056, which is recorded as a payable in
the self-insurance fund. Claims incurred but not reporled are estimated to be insignificant as of June 30,
2018.
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J. Capital Debt
Power System

The Power System has a promissory note (2003 Promissory Note} with the City in the original principal
amount of $2,500,000. The note was issued to the Commission with proceeds from the City's loan
agreement with the Public Building Authority of Sevier County Bonds. Principal is payable in annual
installments of $250,000 through 2018. Interest is payable quarterly at variable rates for 30 day
commercial paper with a AA bond rating as determined by Standard and Poor (0.13% per annum as of
June 30,2015).

The City has an outstanding promissory note (2008 Promissory Note) with the Public Building Authority of
the City of Clarksville, Tennessee, at a variable interest rate as defined in the agreement, payable in
annual instaliments ranging between $535,000 and $1,360,000 through May 2035. The note provides for
a variable interest rate, which is determined by the Remarketing Agent for the securities. In its sole
discretion, the Remarketing Agent resets the minimum rate of interest that is necessary to remarket all of
the outstanding bonds at par plus accrued interest if settled on a non-interest payment date, based on
market conditions. Many factors are considered when determining the interest rates, and there is no
standard formula used to determine them. The City has allocated the responsibility of the 2008
Promissory Note between the Power System and the Broadband System based upon their proportionate
assets acqguired with proceeds from the note.

The City has a loan agreement {2013 Promissory Note) with the Public Building Authority of the City of
Clarksville in a principal amount not to exceed $7,000,000 ($4,628,619 cutstanding as of June 30, 2015).
Interest is payable monthly at variable rates (0.06% as of June 30, 2015) as determined by the Trustee.
Principal is payable annually in varying amounts ranging from $378,000 in 2016 to $605,000 in 2028 (if
fully drawn).

Periodically, the Power System acquires additional service areas from local electric cooperatives
servicing Hamblen County residents. As a result of the acquisitions of service areas, the Power System
pays the cooperatives a calculated fee (Cooperative Notes) over a 10-year period based on lost revenues
of the cooperatives.

During 2015, the Commission entered into an assel purchase agreement for the acquisition of a sofiware
storage system. The agreement is non-interest bearing and provides for quarterly payments of $16,286
through 2018 and is reflected as a contractual obligation in the statement of net position for the

proprietary funds.
Water System

The City has an outstanding loan agreement (2009 Promissory Note) with {he Public Building Authority of
the City of Clarksville in the original principal amount of $7,500,000, Proceeds from the loan agreement
were ysed for various capital projects of the Water System. Interest is payable quarterly at a fixed rate of
3.38%. Principal is payable in varying amounts from $315,000 in December 2015 to $505,000 in

December 2029.

The City has a revolving fund loan agreement (2002 DWSRF Promissory Note) with the State for the
repayment of a principal amount up to $10.5 million for the purpose of expanding an existing water
treatment facility of the Water System. The Water System drew a total of $10,492,582 before closing out
the project during 2007. Interest is payable monthly at an annual percentage rate of 2.61% on the
outstanding balance. Principal is payable monthly in varying amounts from $43,099 in July 2015 fo
$55,815 in April 2026, The note is payable from revenues derived from the operations of the Water

System.
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The City has a $2,000,000 promissory note (2011 DWSRF Promissory Note) between the Tennessee
Department of Environment and Conservation and the Tennessee Local Development Authority to fund a
remote-read water meter project. Of the proceeds, $800,000 was provided as a grant via loan forgiveness
through the State. Interest is payable monthly at an annual percentage rate of 2.83% on the outstanding
balance. Principal is payable monthly in varying amounts from $4,053 in July 2015 to $6,382 in June
2032. The note is payable from revenues derived from operations of the Water System.

Wastewater System

The City has an outstanding loan agreement (2008 - 50518 Promissory Note) with the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville in the original principal amount of $8,000,000 of which 50% is atiributed
to the Wastewater System. Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for the construction and
equipping of extensions and improvements lo the Wastewater System and refunding of prior debt.
Interest is payable monthly at variable rates (0.06% as of June 30, 2015) as determined by the
Remarketing Agent. Principal is payable annually in varying amounts from $170,500 in May 2016 to
$305,500 in May 2028,

The City has an outstanding loan agreement (2008 — 50545 Promissory Note) with the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville in the original principal amount of $3,000,000 of which 57% is attributed
to the Wastewater System. Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for ihe instalfation of energy
conservation measures and related upgrades to reduce energy costs in public facilities. interest is
payable monthly at variable rates (0.06% as of June 30, 2015) as determined by ihe Remarketing Agent.
Principal is payable annually in varying amounts from $68,970in May 2016 to $130,530 in May 2029.

The City has an outstanding loan agreement (2008 — 50532 Promissory Note) with the Public Building
Authority of the County of Montgomery, Tennessee, in the original principal amount of $20,000,000 of
which 53.98% is attributed to the Wastewater System. Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for
the purpose of prepaying outstanding indebtedness. Interest is payable monthly at variable rates (0.06%
as of June 30, 2015) as determined by the Remarketing Agent. Principal is payable annually in varying
amounts from $459,370 in May 2016 to $825,354 in May 2028.

The City has an outstanding loan agreement (2008 — 50536 Promissory Note) with the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville in the original principal amount of $5,035,000 of which 35% is attributed
to the Wastewaler System. Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for the purpose of prepaying
outstanding indebtedness. interest is payable monthly at variable rates (0.06% as of June 30, 2015) as
determined by the Remarketing Agent. Principal is payable annually in varying amounts from $75,250 in
May 2016 to $136,500 in May 2028,

The City has an ouistanding loan agreement {2009 — Promiissory Note) between the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville and First Tennessee Bank in the original principal amount of
$5,000,000 of which 38.15% is altributed to the Wastewater System. Proceeds from the loan agreement
were used for the purpose of prepaying outstanding indebtedness and construction, extension, renovation
and improvement of the Wastewater System, including the acquisition of certain equipment. Interest is
payable quarterly at a fixed rate of 2.91%. Principal is payable annually in varying amounts from $61,040
in December 2015 to $105,676 in December 2034,

The City has a revolving fund loan agreement {2007 - CWSRF Promissory Note) between the Tennessee
Department of Environment and Conservation and the Tennessee Local Development Authority for the
repayment of a principal amount up to $12,500,000 for the purpose of rehabilitation and site work at the
wastewater treatment plant. The City drew a total of $10,016,558 before closing out the project during
2012, Inferest is payable monthly at an annual percentage rate of 2.06% on the outstanding balance.
Principal is payable monthly in varying amounts from $36,276 in July 2015 to $50,476 in January 2032,
The note is payable from revenues derived from the operations of the System.
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The City has a revolving fund loan agreement (2009 — CWSRF Promissory Note} between the Tennessee
Department of Environment and Conservation and the Tennessee Local Development Authority for the
repayment of a principal amount up to $1,600,000 for the purpose of rehabilitation and site work at
various pump stations. The City drew a total of $1,287,983 before closing out the project during 2014.
Interest is payable monthly at an annual percentage rate of 2.73% on the outstanding balance. Principal
is payable monthly in varying amounts from $4,421 in July 2015 to $7,102 in October 2032. The note is
payable from revenues derived from the operations of the Syste\m.

The City has a revolving fund loan agreement (2013 ~ CWSRF Promissory Note) between the Tennessee
Department of Environment and Conservation and the Tennessee Local Development Autherity for the
repayment of a princlipal amount up to $5,000,000 {$2,478,032 outstanding as of June 30, 2015) for the
purpose of rehabllitation and site work at the wastewater treatment plant. Interest is payable monthly at
an annual percentage rate of 1.51% on the outstanding balance. Principal is also payable monthly in
varying amounts from $4,421 in July 2015 to $7,102 in October 2032. The note is payable from revenues
derived from the operations of the System.

During 2012, the City issued $31,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012, $26,000,000 of
which relates to the Wastewater System. The bonds were issued for the purpose of financing the cost of
constructing, improving, and extending the Wastewater System. The bonds consist of serial maturities
that mature in increasing amounts ranging from $1,086,117 in Oclober 2015 to $1,077,730 in October
2036. Interest is payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 3% to 4%. The bonds are subject to
redemption at the direction of the City prior to malurity. The bonds maturing on October 1, 2022 and
thereafter are subject to redemption as a whole or in part at any time at the direction of the City. The
bonds are payable from and secured by income and revenues from the operation of the Wastewater

System.

During 2014, the City entered into a joan agreement (2013 Promissory Note) with the Public Building
Authority of the City of Clarksville in the principal amount not to exceed $20,000,000 ($16,142,587
outstanding as of June 30, 2015). Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for the extension,
construction, improvement, and equipping of the Wastewater System. Interest is payable semi-annually
at a fixed rate of 3.65%. Principal of $1,000,000 is payable annually, maturing September 2033.

Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable premium.

The Wastewater System has agreed to establish and revise rates such that revenues will be sufficient to
pay all costs of maintaining, operating, repairing, and ensuring the Wastewater System and the amounts
necessary for the payment of principal and inlerest on the bonds.

During 2009, the City entered info an asset purchase agreement for the acquisition of a wastewater
treatment plant located in Hamblen County, Tennessee. The agreement provided for an initial down
payment of $750,000 plus ongoing Flow Fees generally ranging between $182,500 (minimum Flow Fee if
annual volume fails to exceed the average of 500,000 gallons per day) and $736,125 annually through
2034 depending on the volume of discharges. The City recorded the acquisition (and related contractual
obligation) at the estimated fair value of the wastewater treatment plant. The obligation ($2,405,251
outstanding as of June 30, 2015) is payable monthly at $15,208, which includes interest at the imputed
rate of $4.10%. Flow Fees in excess of $15,208, if any, will be charged to expense as incurred.
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Broadband System

The Broadband System was allocated a portion of the 2008 Promissory Note (Fower System) based on
the assets acquired from the proceeds of the note. In addition, the Broadband System has an interfund
note payable to the Power System. In accordance with Tennessee Code Annotated 7-52-603(b), a line of
credit was executed allowing the Broadband System to borrow up to $7,000,000 from the Power System
at an interest rate equal to the highest rate earned on Power System investments {(0.25% at June 30,
2015). Interest incurred on the loan amounted to $16,563 in 2015. The agreement was approved by
TVA as required by the power contract and provides for the repayment of all advances along with
accumulated interest by January 2025.

During 2014, the City entered into a loan agreement (2014 - Promissory Note) with First Tennessee Bank
in the principal amount of $1,000,000. Proceeds from the loan agreement were used for the purpose of
purchase, instailation integration, and bringing into operational status a phone switch, Interest is payable
semi-annually at a fixed rate of 2.58%. Principal is payable annually in varying amounts from $100,000 in
June 2016 to $123,000 in June 2024.

Future Debt Maturities

Governmental Business-type
Year Ending Principal Interast Principal interest
2016 $ 1,241,530 $ Bogsle $ 6,096,840 § 2,113,580
2017 1,225,612 761,078 6,798,155 2,153,956
2018 1,270,664 711,265 6,928,937 2,026,930
2019 1,314,317 659,263 6,810,775 1,898,595
2020-2024 7,301,597 2,437,790 36,248,277 7,522,087
2025-2029 5,808,500 855,926 29,829,761 4,110,406
2030-2034 765,409 81,216 17,564,177 1,376,548
2035-2039 166,838 2,427 7.397,989 186,195
Totals $ 19,064,476 $ 6,317,903 $ 117,674,911 $ 21,388,307

The Broadband System leases certain equipment with an original cost of $98,112 under a capital lease
agreement expiring in 2019. Amortizalion of the asset is included with depreciation expense.
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The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2015,

Description and Purmose
Primary Government

General Long-Term Pebt
2008 Public Improvement ($8M)
2008 Public Improvement {S3M)
2008 Public Improvement ($20M}
2008 Public Improvement ($20MYWater}
Local Government Energy Loan
2008 Public improvement ($5M)
2009 Public Improvement and Refunding($5M)
Capital Outiay Note
Total general bonds and notes

Enterprise Funds

Wastewater Systerm

2008 Public Improvernent ($8M)
2008 Public Improvement ($3M)
2008 Public improvement ($20M)
State Revolving Fund 07-203

State Revolving Fund 09-229

2008 Public Improvernent {($5M)

2009 Public Improvement and Refunding($5M}
Generai Obligation Bonds

2013 Public Improvermnent ($20M)
2013 CWSRF Promissory Note {$5M)
Unamortized bond premium

Power Systern
Cooperative Notes
Series V-A-2 Bonds
2008 TML Bonds
2013 Promissory Note

W,

DWSRF Promissory Note

Water System Bonds Series 2010
2011 DWSRF Note

Amount of
Original issue

{Bonds Cnly)

4,000,000
1,290,000
8,193,665
1,011,200

4,000,000
1,710,000
10,785,135
12,500,060
857187
1,762,250
1,207,419
26,000,000
5,142,587
2,478,032

2,500,000
15,186,961
7,000,000

10,492,582
7,500,000

Range of
Final Maturity
Dates

2009-2028
2009-2029
2009-2035
2009-2035
2010-2016
2008-2028
2009-2034
2011-2024

2008-2028
2009-2029
2009-2035
Various
Various
2009-2028
2009-2034
2012-2037
2013-2033
2015-2032

2003-2020
2004-2018
2011-2035
2013-2028

2007-2026
2010-2029

June 30, 2015

Range of
Interest
Ra 9

Variable
Variable
Variable
Variable
Q
Variable
2.91
2.06

Varizble
Variable
Variable
206
2.73
Variable
2.91
2.0-4.0
3.65
1.51

None
Variable
Variable
Variabie

2.61
2.38

Balance Cumrent
July 1, 2014 Agditions Reductions June 30, 2015 Portion

3,177,000 - $ 162,000 $ 3,015,600 § 170,500
1,074,570 - 49,880 1,024,690 52,030
8,511,095 - 332,253 6,178,842 343,642
803,549 - 41,004 762,545 43,026
52,458 - 26,229 26,229 26,229
2,822,750 - 133,250 2,489,500 139,750
2,522,270 - 88,764 2,433,506 91,140
3,121,876 - 314,063 2,807,813 314,800
19,885,568 = 1,147,443 18,738,125 1,186,217
3,177,000 - 162,000 3,015,000 170,500
1,424,430 - 66,120 1,358,310 68,970
8,578,354 - 437,743 8,140,611 459,333
8,944,540 - 426,444 8,518,096 435,312
1,211,467 - 51,624 1,159,843 53,052
1,412,250 - 71,750 1,340,500 75,250
1,689,273 - 59,514 1,629,759 62,848
24,913,883 - 1,086,116 23,827,767 1,086,117
5,142,587 12,000,000 1,000,000 16,142,587 1,000,000
- 2,478,032 - 2,478,032 250,000

1,185,75¢ “ 53,345 1,132,414
394,089 - 79,981 314,108 79,983
1,000,000 - 250,000 750,000 250,000
13,816,624 - 385,053 13,431,571 403,928
3,514,912 1,477,707 364,000 4,628,619 378,000
6,916,318 - 503,880 6,412,439 516,606
6,385,000 - 305,000 6,080,000 315,000
1,108,152 “ 47,903 1,080,249 49,279
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The following is a summary of the changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2015.
Armount of Range of Range of
Qriginat issue Final Maturity Interest Balance Balance Current
Description and Purpese {Bands Only) Dates Rates (9 JSuly 1, 2014 Additions Reductions June 30, 2015 Portion
Breadband System
Telecom Systermn 2008 TML Bonds 20,115,000 2016-2030 Variable 4,483,378 - 124,947 4,358,429 131,07
Interfund Loan from Power System 0.25 6,141,498 - 96,770 £,044,728 611,930
First Tennessee Bank Promissory Note 2014-2024 2.59 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 100,000
Storm Water System
20089 Public Improvement and Refunding($5M} 81,458 2008-2034 291 72,140 - 1,125 71,015 2,606
Linamortized bond premium 224 682 - 24,965 199,717
General Obfigation Bonds 5,000,000 2012-2037 2.0-4.0 4,781,117 - 210,000 4,581,117 208.884
107,527,452 15,955,739 5,808,280 117,674,911 6,708,770
Qther
ig Wi Bon int Vi

2009 Public Improvement and Refunding($5M) 162,819 2008-2034 2.9 144,281 - 5117 139,164 5,213
Capital Qutlay Note 250,000 2011-2024 0.5 208,125 - 20,938 187,187 20,100
Total other 352,408 = 26,055 326,351 25,313

Total $ 127765426 $ 15,955,739 $ 6,981,778 $ 136,739,387 $ 7.820,300
Capital Leases:
Broadband $ 76,483 3 - $ 15.310 3 51,173 3 18,877

Total 3 76,483 $ - $ 15,310 $ £1,173 § 18,877
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Future minimum lease payments under the capital lease, together with the net present value of the

minimum lease payments, is as follows:

Business-type

2016

2017

2018

2019

Total future minimum lease payments

Less amounts representing interest

Present value of fulure minimum lease payments
{including $18,877 classified as current)

K. Prior Period Adjustment

18,877
18,877
18,877
12,584
69,215
(8,042

)

61,173

Prior period adjustments were necessary to reallocate amounts booked in the recording of a lease
agreement. A prior period adjustment was alsc necessary due to the initial pension liability recording due
to implementation of GASB 68. Details of the effects on beginning net position are as follows:

Net Position - June 30, 2014

Prior period adjustment:

Change in prior year lease recording
GASB 68 initial pension recording
Total prior period adjustment

Net Position - June 30, 2014, as adjusted

.. State Street Aid Activities

Government-wide

Fund Statemants

Governmental Business-type General
Activities Activities Fund
$ 59,859,024 $ 112,970,648 $ 25,712,009
(176,085) - (176,095)
{12,110,637) {181,789) -
{12,286,732) {181,789) (176,095)
$ 47,572,292 $ 112,788,859 5 25,635,914

The following is a summary of State Street Aid activity within the Gensral Fund for the year ended June

30, 2015:

Reserve fund halance, July 1, 2014
Add - state gasocline tax revenues
Less ~ state expenditures: paving
Reserve fund balance, June 30, 2015

$1,520,896
901,795
1,472,605

$..950,086
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M. Other Disclosures
1. Commitments and Contingencies
At June 30, 2015, the City had the following commitments:

The City has a month-to-month contract with Morristown Air Service for fixed base operation of the
airport.

Contingent Liabilities

In November 2013, the City enlered into an agreement with Charter Central, LLC, for the lease of an
airport hangar and office space for a term of 25 years. Charter Central, LLC, paid $975,000 at the
beginning of the lease term. Due to the lease cancellation clause, a contingent liability of $800,000 is
being amortized over the life of the lease. The contingency balance is $760,517 as of June 30, 2015.

A suit titled Chuck's Package Sfore et al v. Cily of Morristown was filed in 2014 to recover a refund of
the excess of an inspection fee {o which the City was entitled and colfecied at a higher percentage
than allowed by law when the most recent census was reported. in April 2015, the court found in favor
of the plaintiffs and awarded $541,099 in refund of the excess as well as attorney fees. The case is
on appeal and being vigorously defended. $541,089 has been assigned in fund balance for this suit.

The government is also the defendant in various other lawsuits, Although the outcome of these
lawsuits is not presently determinable, in the opinion of the government’'s counsel the resolution of
these matters will not have a material effect on the financial condition of the government.

2. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Morristown Utilities Commission provides electric power, water, waslewater, and broadband
service to customers in the City of Morristown and Hamblen County, Tennessee. Customers include
residential, commercial, and heavy industrial users. Residential customers for the Power and
Broadband Systems are required to place deposits that approximate one month's account balance.
Loss experience has not been significant to the Systems’ operations.

N. Enterprise Funds
The following Enterprise Funds have been created to provide various services to the general public:

Power Fund — established to account for the operation of MUC Power System.

Water Fund — established to account for the operation of MUC Water System.

Wastewater Fund — established to account for the operation of MUC Wastewater System.

Broadband Fund — established to account for the operation of MUC Broadband System.

Storm Water Fund - established to account for Storm Water mitigation activities of the City of Morristown.

Power Contract

The Power System has a power contract with the Tennessee Valley Authority {TVA) whereby the Power
System purchases all of its electric power from TVA and is subject to certain restrictions and conditions as
provided in the contract.
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Tennessee Valley Authority Home Insulation Program

The Power System participates in the TVA energy right® Residential Program which provides interest-
bearing loans to the Power System’s customers for energy-efficient equipment and other weatherization
measures. Under the program, the Power System collects payments on new and previously existing
loans and forwards payments to a financial institution pursuant to guidelines established by TVA.

0. Net Position

Net position for the Power, Water, Wastewater and Broadband Systems consist of the following as of
June 30, 2015:;

Power Water Wastewater Broadband
System System System System
Net investment in caplial assets consists of the following:
Nel capilel assets $ 61916874 § 39045279 § B2LiT414 & 7187713
Restricted unspent bond funds - 2,913,243 13,422,259 215,838
Less related Habilities:
Current portion of long-term debt and contractual obligation 1,177,057 - 3,746,864 -
Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease cbligation - - - 249,949
Current portion of long-term debt - 880,885 - -
Long-terms debt and contractual obligation, less current portion 18,142,678 - 67,401,306 -
Long-lerm debt and capital lease obiigation, Jess current portion - - - 5,169,654
Long-term: debt, less current portion - 12,671,803 - -
Total related liabilifies 19,319,735 13,552,688 71,148,170 5,418,603
Net invesiment in capiat assels . 5 42587139 $ 28405834 & 24851503 § 1,083,948

Unrestricted net position consists of all other items in the balance sheets not reflected above.

The Broadband System funded a portion of its net capital assets with a line of credit from the Power
System. The Broadband System excludes this component from the calculation of net investment in
capital assels as the liability is not external to the Commission.

P. Joint Ventures

Morristown-Hamblen County Library — The City of Morristown and Hamblen County jointly own the
Morristown-Hamblen Library. Each appoints an equal number of members fo its board of directors. The
City contributed $257,000 for the library operations during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

Hamblen County-Morristown Solid Waste Authority — The City of Morristown and Hamblen County jointly
own the Hamblen County-Morristown Landfill. Each appoints an equal number of members to the board
of direclors. This operation is self-sufficient in thal users are charged for services rendered. During the
year ended June 30, 2015, the Cily was charged $401,985.
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City of Morristown does not have an equity interest in any of the above-noted joint ventures. Complete
financial statements for the Morristown-Hamblen Library and Hamblen County-Morristown Solid Waste
Disposal System can be obtained from their respective adminisirative offices at the following addresses:

Morristown-Hamblen Library
417 West Main Street
Morristown, TN 37814

Hamblen County-Morristown Solid
Waste Disposal System

P.O. Box 2108

Morristown, TN 37816

Q. General Information about the Pension Plan
Plan Description

Employees of Morristown are provided a defined benefit pension plan through the Public Employee
Retirement Plan, an agent muliiple-employer pension plan administered by the TCRS. The TCRS was
created by state slatute under Tennessee Code Annotated Title 8, Chapters 34-37. The TCRS Board of
Trustess Is responsible for the proper operation and administration of the TCRS. The Tennessee
Treasury Department, an agency in the legisiative branch of state government, administers the plans of
the TCRS. The TCRS issues a publically available financial report that can be obtained at
www.treasury.tn.gov/ters,

Benefits Provided

Tennessee Code Annotated Title 8, Chapters 34-37 establishes the benefit terms and can be amended
only by the Tennessee General Assembly. The chief legislative body may adopt the benefit terms
permitted by statute. Members are efigible to retire with an unreduced benefit at age 60 with 5 years of
service credit or after 30 years of service credit regardless of age. Benefits are determined by a formula
using the member's highest five consecutive year average compensation and the member's years of
service credit. Reduced benefits for early retirement are available at age 55 and vested. Members vest
wilh five vears of service credit. Service related disability benefits are provided regardiess of length of
service. Five years of service is required for non-service related disability eligibility. The service related
and non-service related disability benefits are determined in the same manner as a service retirement
benefit but are reduced 10 percent and include projected service credits. A varisty of death benefits are
avallabie under various eligibility criteria.

Member and beneficiary annuitants are entitled to automatic cost of living adjustments (COLAs) aiter
retirement. A COLA is granted each July for annuitants retired prior to the 2™ of July of the previous year.
The COLA is based on the change in the consumer price index (CPI} during the prior calendar year,
capped at 3 percent, and applied to the current benefit. No COLA Is granted if the change in the CPl is
less than one-half percent. A one percent COLA is granted if the CPI change is between one-half percent
and one percent. A member who leaves employment may withdraw their employee contributions, plus
any accumulated inferest.
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Employees Covered By Benefit Terms

At the measurement date of June 30, 2014, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 146
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 75
Active employees 272
Total 493

Contributions

Contributions for employees are established in the statutes governing the TCRS and may only be
changed by the Tennessee General Assembly. Employees contribute 5 percent of salary. Morristown
makes employer contribulions at the rate set by the Board of Trustees as determined by an actuarial
valuation, For the year ended June 30, 2015, employer contributions for Morristown were $1,982,140
based on a rate of 14.86% of covered payroll. By law, employer contributions are required to be paid.
The TCRS may intercept Morristown’s state shared taxes if required employer contributions are not
remitted. The employer's acluarially determined contribution (ADC) and member contributions are
expected to finance the costs of benefits earned by members during the vear, the cost of administration,
as well as an amortized portion of any unfunded liability.

Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Morristown's net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension lability
used to calculate net pension liability (asset} was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability as of June 30, 2014, actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.0%
Salary increases Graded salary ranges from 8.97 to 3.71% based on age,

including inflation, averaging 4.25%

Investment rate of return 7.5%, net of pension plan invesiment expenses,
including inflation

Cost-of-living adjustment 2.5%

Mortality rates were based on actual experlence from the June 30, 2012, actuarial experience study
adjusted for some of the expected future improvement in life expectancy.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014, actuarial valuation were based on the results of an

actuarial experience study performed for the period July 1, 2008, through June 30, 2012. The
demographic assumptions were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and expected future experience.
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board
of Trustees in conjunction with the June 30, 2012, actuarial experience study by considering the following
three techniques: (1) the 25-year historical return of the TCRS at June 30, 2012, (2} the historical market
returns of asset classes from 1926 to 2012 using the TCRS investment policy asset allocation, and (3)
capital market projections that were utilized as a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of
expected future real rates of return (expected refurns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. Four sources of capital market projections were
blended and utitized in the third technique. The blended capital market projection established the long-
term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding inflation of 3 percent. The target allocation and best estimates of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected Real Target
Asset Class Rate of Return Allocation
U, 8. Equity 6.46% 33%
Developed market international equity 5.26% 17%
Emerging market international equity 6.40% 5%
Private equity and sirategic lending 4.61% 8%
U. S. fixed income 0.98% 29%
Real eslate 4.73% 7%
Short-term securities 0.00% 1%

100%

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was established by the TCRS Board
of Trustees as 7.5% based on a blending of the three factors described above.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the {otal pension liability was 7.5%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current rate and
that contributions from Morristown will be made at the actuarially determined contribution rate pursuant to
an actuarial valuation in accordance with the funding policy of the TCRS Board of Truslees and as
required to be paid by state statute. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net
position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Increase {Cecrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position LiabHity (Asset)
(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balance at June 30, 2013 $ 65,450,183 $ 51,230,001 $ 14,220,092
Changes for the year;
Service cost 1,069,809 1,069,809
Inferest 4,856,002 4,856,002
Differences between expected and -
aclual experience {498,973}, {498,973)
Contributions - employer 1,827,666 (1,927,666)
Contributions - employees 654,779 (654,779)
Net investment income 8,414,738 (8,414,739)
Benefit payments, including refunds of -
employee contributions (3,546,607) {3,546,607) -
Administrative expense {13,059) 13,059
Net changes 1,880,231 7,437,518 {(5,6567,287)
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 67,330,414 $ 58,667,609 $ 8662805

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability (Assef) to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability (asset) of Morristown calculated using the discount rate of
7.5%, as well as what the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is 1-percentage-point lower {6.5%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5%) that the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
{6.5%) (7.5%) {8.5%)
Morristown's net pension
liability (asset) $ 17,288,474 $ 8,662,805 $ 1,484,030

Pension Expense (Income) and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

Pension Expense

For the year ended June 30, 2015, Morristown recognized pension expense of $485,372.
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Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources

For the ysar ended June 30, 2015, Morristown reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources

Difference between expected and
actual experience $ - 3 427,691
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan

investments - 3,687,302
Confributions subseguent to the
measurement date of June 30, 2014 1,982,140
Total $ 1,082,140 $ 4,114,993

The amount shown above for "Contributions subsequent to the measurement
date of June 30, 2014," will be recognized as a reduction {increase)} to net
pension liability {(asset) in the following measurement period.

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30:

2016 $ (993,108)
2017 (993,108)
2018 (993,108)
2019 (993,108)
2020 (71,282)
Thereafter (71,282)

in the table shown above, positive amounts will increase pension expense while
negative amounts will decrease pension expense.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2015, Morristown reported a payable of $266,194 for the outstanding amount of contributions
to the pension plan required at the ended June 30, 2015.
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Morristown Utilities Commission’s Retirement Plan

The Systems share in a defined contribution retirement plan, Morristown Ulilities Commission Employee
Retirement Plan (the Plan), covering substaniially ail employees. The Commissicon is the administrator of
the Plan and is responsible for establishing or amending the Plan provisions and contribution
requirements.

Power Systam:
% of % of
Total Covered Employer Covered Employee Covered
Payroll Payroll Contributions Payroll Contributions Payroll
2015 $ 5,600,083 $ 5,199,423 $ 772,938 16% $ 328,484 6%
2014 $ 5,106,363 $ 4,695,584 $ 701,980 15% $ 344,593 %
2013 $ 4,522471 $ 4,249,744 $ 636,363 15% $ 328,198 8%
2012 $ 4,367,221 § 4,207,127 $ 631,069 15% $ 309,463 7%
2011 $ 4,230,281 $ 4,024,818 $ 603622 15% $ 290,525 7%
Water System:
% of % of
Total Covered Employer Covered Employea Covered
Payroll Payroft Contributions Payrall Contributions Payroli
2015 $ 1,535,934 $ 1,508,741 $ 221,570 15% $ 091,384 6%
2014 $ 1,458,497 $ 1,385,506 $ 204,042 15% $ 7229 5%
2013 $ 1,405,880 $ 1,343,576 $ 197,953 15% $ 8184 6%
2012 $ 1,266,713 $ 1,248,179 % 183,889 15% $ 80157 6%
201 $ 1,218,306 $ 1,180,455 $ 173,905 15% $ 78,757 %
Broadband System:
% of % of
Total Covered Employer Covered Employee Covered
Payroll Payroll Contributions Payroll Contributions Payroll
2015 $ 1,170,428 $ 1,061,845 $ 159,277 18% $ 52,168 5%
2014 $ 1,332471 $ 1,164,406 $ 171,279 15% $ 53,534 5%
2013 $ 1,402,398 $ 1,219,296 $ 180,526 15% $ 58,285 5%
2012 $ 1,184,775 $ 915333 $§ 136,152 15% $ 48,741 5%
2011 $ 954,974 $ 749,847 $ 112477 15% $ 44,351 6%
Wastewater System:
% of % of
Total Covered Employer Covered Employee Covered
Payroll Payroll Contributions Payroll Contributions Payroll
2015 $ 829,696 $ 820,879 $ 122,646 16% $ 60,439 7%
2014 $ 438885 $ 361,247 $ 5397 15% $ 25764 7%
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Under the Plan ferms, the Systems will match participant contributions up to 3% of the participant’s salary
and may also coniribute an additional amount to the Plan at its discretion. During 2015, the
discretionary confribution amounted to 12% of the particlpants’ salary. Participants are not required but
may contribute up to a total of 75% of their salary subject to IRS limitations. All employees who have
completed one year of service as defined by the Plan and who have attained the age of 21 are eligible to
participate in the Plan. Participants are 100% vested in the employer contributions when they are made.

R. Risk Management

The City and Morristown Utilities Commission are exposed to various risks of oss related to torts; theft of,
damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and injuries of employees
for which the City and Morristown Utilities Commission carry commercial insurance purchased from
independent third parties. The City and Morristown Utilities Commission have nol experienced an
insurance settlement in excess of insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The City and
Morristown Utilities Commission bear the risk of loss up to the deductible amounts which are disclosed in
the accompanying Statistical Section. During the ordinary course of business, the City and Morristown
Utilities Commission are subject to various other disputes and claims pertaining to contracts, and there
are uncertainties surrounding the ultimate resolution of these matters. Because of these uncertainties, it
is at lease reasonably possible the amounts recorded will change within the near term.

8. Subsequent Events

In August 2015, Morristown Utilities Commission entered into an agreement to purchase an office building
from a third party for approximately $975,000.

Subsequent to June 30, 2015, the City entered into a $10,000,000 loan agreement with the Public
Building Authority of the City of Clarksville. Interest is payable semiannually at a fixed rate of 2.74%.
Principal is payable annually.
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Schedule of Changes in Morristown's Net Pension Liability {Asset) and Related

Ratios Based on Participation in the Public Employee Pension Plan of TCRS
Last Fiscal Year Ending June 30

2014

Total pension liability
Service cost $ 1,069,809
Interest 4,856,002
Changss in benefit terms -
Differences between actual & expected experience (498,973)
Changes of assumptions -
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions (3,546,607)
Net change in total pension liability 1,880,231
Total pension liability - beginning 65,450,183
Total pension liability - ending (a) $ 67,330,414
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer $ 1,927,666
Contributions - employse 654,779
Net investment income 8,414,738
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions {3,546,607)
Administrative expense (13,059)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 7,437,518

51,230,091

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net posifion - ending (b)

Net Pension Liability {asset} - ending (a) - (b)

$ 58,667,609

$ 8,662,806

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability 87.13%
Covered - employee payroll $13,131,242
65.97%

Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of covered - employee payroll

This is a 10-year schedute; however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented relroactively.

Years will be added o this schedule in future fiscal years until 10 years of information is available,
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Schedule of Morristown's Contribufions

Based on Participation in the Public Employee Pension Plan of TCRS

Actuarially determined contribution
Contributions in relation te the actuarially

determined contribution

Contribution deficiency {excess)

Covered - employes payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered -

employee payroll

Last Fiscal Year Ending June 30

2014 2015
$ 1,927,666 $ 1,982,140
1,927,666 1,982,140
$ - $ -

$ 13,131,242 $ 13,338,762

14.68% 14.86%

This is a 10-year schedule; however, the information in this schedule is not required to be presented refroactively.
Years will be added {o this schedule in future fiscal years untit 10 years of information is available.

Notes to Schedule

Valuation date: Actuarially determined contribution rates for 2015 were calculated based on the July 1, 2013,

actuarial valuation.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation

Inftation

Salary increases

Investment rate of return
Retirement age

Mortafity

Cost of Living Adjustmenis

Frozen initial liability

Level dollar, closed (not to exceed 20 years)

13 years

10-year smoothed within a 20% corridor to market value
3.0%

Graded salary ranges from 8.97 to 3.71% based on age,
Including inflation, averaging 4.25%

7.5%, net of investment expense, including inflation
Pattern of retirement determined by experience study

Customized table based on actual experience including an
adjustment for some anticipated improvement

2.5%
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Schedute of Funded Status and Funding Progress for Morristown, Tennessee

City of Morristown, Tennessee
Required Supplementary Information

(Excluding Morristown Utilities Commission)

June 30, 2015

OPEB
UAAL as a
Actuarial Percentage of
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Covered
Actuarial Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Payroll
Valuation Assets {AAL}) {UAAL) Ratio Payroll (AAL)

Date {a) {b) (b-a) {a/b) (c) (b - a)ic)
7/1/2010 $ 212,913 $ 5,083,035 $ 4,880,122 4.2% NIA N/A
07/01/12 180,115 4,215,993 4,035,878 4.3% 11,398,213 35.4%
07/01/14 223,644 4,863,968 4,640,324 4.6% 12,234,798 37.9%

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual
Fiscal Year Required Percentage
Ended Contribution Contributed
6/30/2009 $ 518,360 100%
6/30/2010 473,774 100%
6/30/2011 455,797 100%
6/30/2012 468,493 100%
6/30/2013 376,550 100%
6/30/2014 375,632 100%
6/30/2015 421,169 100%
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Morristown Utilities Commission
Schedule of Funding Progress for Morristown Utilities Retiree Benefit Plan

June 30, 2015
UAAL as a
Actuarial Percentage
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded of Covered
Actuariat Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered Payroll
Valuation Assets {AAL) (UAALY) Ratlo Payroll (AAL)
System Date (a) {b}) (b-a) (a/b) {c) {(b - a)fc}
Power 7HI2013 § - $ 935,342 $ 039,342 0.0% $ 4,089,606 23%
71412011 - 027,036 927,036 0.0% 4,210,185 22%
7/4/2002 . 668,839 688,839 0.0% 3,660,573 19%
Water 7hi2013 - 330,210 330,210 0.0% 1,221,806 27%
7/112014 - 288,818 288,818 0.0% 1,137,002 25%
7/112008 - 234,359 234,359 0.0% 1,065,151 22%
Wastewater 1112014 - 153,876 153,876 0.0% 583,274 26%
Broadband 7/1/2043 - 89,022 89,022 0.0% 1,076,414 8.0%
771/2011 - 64,160 64,160 0.0% 927,632 7.0%
71172009 - 34,298 34,298 0.0% 735,342 5.0%

Note 1: The Commission assumed the assets, liabilities, and operations of the Wastewater System as of December 30, 2013.
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Morristown Utllities Commisslon
Schedule of Employer Contributions for Morristown Utifities Retiree Benefit Plan

June 30, 2015

Annual

Fiscal ' Required Contribution Parcentage

o Year Contribution Made Gontributed
Power 2015 110,994 $ 53,376 48%
2014 105,784 36,891 37%
2013 110,931 5 21,538 18%
Water 2015 35,609 18.562 52%
2014 34,040 16,271 48%
2013 31,884 4,145 13%
Wastewater 2015 17,608 4,714 2%
2014 10,192 1,146 11%
Broadband 2015 32,515 - 0.0%
2014 30,460 - 0.0%
2013 27,210 - 0.0%

Note 1: The Commission assumed the assets, liabllities, and operations of tha Wastewater System as of December 30, 2043,
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash shorlage

Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Total assels

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Payrolt liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned revenue

FUND BALANCE
Committed
Restricted fund balance
Total fund balance

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balance

City of Morristown, Tennessee

Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2015

Tota! Nonmajor

Community Governmentat
Narcotics Development Funds

$ 171,367 $ 68,937 $ 240,304
500 - 500

10,539 25,824 36,463

$ 182,506 3 94 761 $ 277,267
$ 1,154 $ 5,043 $ 6,197
23,313 3,877 27,190

24,467 8,920 33,387

74,744 14,423 89,167

83,295 71,418 154,713

83,295 71,418 154,713

EA
$ 182,506 % 94,761 $ 277,267
101

The noles to financial statements are an Integral part of this statement,




City of Morristown, Tennessee

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2015
Total Nonmajor
Community Governmental
Narcotics Development Funds
Revenues:
Licenses, permits, and fines $ 78,209 $ - $ 78,209
intergovernmental 19,449 454,167 473,616
Total revenues 97,658 454,167 551,825
Expenditures:
Current:
Administration - 96,630 96,630
Programs - 391,378 391,378
Total general governmenit - 488,008 488,008
Pubiic safely:
Police 552,046 - 552,046
Total public safety 552,046 - 552,046
Total expenditures 552,046 488,008 1,040,054
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendiiures {454,388) (33,841) {488,228)
Other financing sources {uses):
Transfers in 483,218 - 483,218
Total other financing sources and uses 483,218 - 483,218
£y
Net change in fund balances 28,830 (33,841) {5,011}
Fund batance - beginning 54,465 105,259 159,724
Fund balance - ending $ 83,285 $ 71,418 $ 154,713
102

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.




City of Morristown, Tennessee
Community Development Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Origlnal Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Revenues:

ESG grant $ 62,508 $ 62,508 40,477 $ {22,031)

CDBG reimbursements 362,239 522,239 413,680 {108,549)

Tolal revenues 424,747 584,747 454,167 {130,580)
Expendilures:

CDBG administration:

Wages and salaries permanent employees 54,970 565,470 55,217 253

Christmas bonus and longevity 283 293 289 4

FICA 3,426 3,426 3,332 94

Madicare 8 801 779 22

TCRS contribution 8,211 8,211 8,144 67

Employee health insurance 11,617 11,617 11,562 65

Employee life insurance 215 215 235 (20}

Workers compensation 1,401 1,40 1,325 76

Postal service 500 500 198 302

Legal notices 1,360 1,300 820 480

Computer/data processing - 2,070 2,069 1

Other professional services 5,000 2,420 - 2,420

Memberships and dues 1,200 1,200 1,335 (135)

Education seminars and training 6,000 6,000 708 5,292

Travel business expenses 8,000 8,000 4,844 3,156

Other contract services 8,000 8,000 - 8,000

Office supplies and materials 1,500 1,500 614 886

Office equipment 2,800 2,800 - 2,800

Eguipment rentalfiease 2,000 2,000 - 2,000

Other miscellaneous expenses 5,000 5,000 116 4,884

CEASE 90,000 90,000 - 90,000

MATS - - 5,043 (5,043)
Total CDBG administration 212,224 212,224 96,630 115,504
CDBG programs and activities:

Grants and subsidies 212,523 372,523 391,378 {18,855)
Total CDBG programs and activities 212,623 372,523 301,378 {18,855)
Total expenditures 424,747 584,747 488,008 96,739
Net change in fund batance - . (33,841) (33,841)
Fund balance, July 1, 2014 206,508 * 206,509 105,259 {101,250)
Fund balance, June 30, 2015 $ 206,508 $ 206,508 71,418 $ {135,091)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Narcotics Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
for the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Original Final
Budget Budget Actual Variance
Revenues;:
QCEDTF reimbursements $ - L 17,000 $ 16,971 3 {29)
Federal reimbursements and refunds - - 2478 2,478
Program income 126,948 126,048 78,209 {48,739}
Total revenues 126,948 143,048 97,658 {46,290}
Narcotles:
Wages and salaries permanent employees 308,028 291,028 278,111 12,917
QOvertime 11,500 28,500 25,519 2,981
Christmas bonus and longevity 3,132 3,132 2,863 269
FICA 20,067 20,067 17,997 2,070
Medicare 4,693 4,693 4,209 484
TCRS contribution 48,096 48,096 41,885 6,211
Employes health insurance 69,610 698,610 59,208 10,402
Empioyee life insurance 1,166 1,166 997 169
Workers compensation 7,004 8,004 7,950 54
Clothing/uniform/shoes 3,700 5,200 4,702 498
Postal service 200 500 297 203
Legal notices 700 700 529 171
Telephone services 4,270 6,270 5,802 378
Repair and maintenance vehicles 250 250 - 250
Repair and maintenance office equipment 465 465 - 455
Memberships and dues 265 265 100 165
Education seminars and training 2,100 2,100 1,400 691
Travel business expenses 3,700 3,700 2,820 880
Other contracted services 8,400 8,400 5,002 3,308
Office supplies and materials 2,200 2,200 2,063 137
General operating supplies 3,000 3,000 1,419 1,581
Gasoline and diesel fuel 19,600 19,600 12,186 7,444
Vehicle parts/oitfluiditires - 4.000 4,179 (179}
Insurance 10,070 12,070 12,005 65
Property (contents) insurance 1,950 1,950 1,625 325
Equipment rentalfiease - 2,700 1,805 795
Undercover expenses 75,000 67,500 52,8086 14,694
K-8 dogs and supplies - 12,000 4,308 7,682
Total expenditures 610,166 627,166 552,046 75,120
Net change in fund balance (483,218) (483,218) (454,388) 28,830
Other sources of funds:

Operaling transfers in 483,218 483,218 483,218 -
Net change in fund balance - - 28,830 28,830
Fund balance, July 1, 2014 3,326 3,326 54,465 51,139
Fund balance, June 30, 20156 $ 3326 §$ 3326 % 83265 ¢ 79,969

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this stalement. 104




City of Morristown, Tennessee

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabllitles - EAMTPO Agency Fund

Assets
Cash in bank
Granls receivable
Due from federal government

Tolal assets

Liabllities
Accounts payable
Accrued payrodl
Payroll deductions payable
Due o others

Total liabilities

Agency Fund
For the year ended June 30, 201

Balance

5

July 1, 2014 Additions Deductions

Balance
June 30, 2015

$ 4556820 § 257,032 $ 224,906 488,646
139,690 - 139,690 -

- 18,643 . 18,643

$ 595310 $ 276,575 364,596 507,289
$ 590 $ 943 590 943
- 2,677 - 2,677

- 1,484 - 1,484

504,720 271,471 364,006 502,185

$ 505310 $ 276,575 364,596 507,289
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City of Morristown, Tennossee

Schedule of Expendifures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2015

CFDA Contract Federat
Number Grantor Agency/Program Number Expendltures
10.559  USDA/

Summer Feeding Program 30-007 3 41,848

158, Department of Housing and Urban
14.218 Davelopment/CDBG B-12-MC-47-0013 980
B-13-MC-47-0013 266,742
B-14-MC-47-0013 155,175
14.231 THDA ESG-13-26 45,683
468,680
15.804  Historical Preservation 7,981

LS, Department of Justice/

16.607 Bulletproof Vest Partnarship Program 4878
20,607  Traffic Safety & Impaired Driving Prevention 154AL-14-87 12,040
16,018

t. 8, Department of Transporiation/

20,106 Land Acquisition 3-47-SBGP-38 2,260
20106  Airport Fusling System 3-47-SBGP-27 302,103
304,353
20,205  Highway Planning Grants STP-M-86(46) 10,886
STP-M-9413(12) 1,877
STP-M-8113(8) 25,616
STP-M-34{79) 10,728
STP-M-g113{11) 2,209
STP-M-34(78) 64,007
STP-M-9113(18) 402,070
STP-M-9113{20) 43,226
HPP-8113(16) 32,227
HPP-2113(0) 145,845
SRTS-9113(19) 38,400
Dawnlown Pedestrian Imp/Corridor Proj 70178 980,457
Transportation Planning & Coordination SPR-PL-1{318) 93,655
1,851,104 (A)
§ 2,690,804
(A) Maljor federal progeam

Basis of Presentation

The schadule of expandifures of fedaral awards (the "scheduie”} includes the federal grant ackivity of the City of Morrstown, Tennesses, under programs

of the federat government for the year ended June 30, 2014. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the reguiraments of tha Office

of Management and Budget {OMB) Circular A-133, Audils of Stales, Lacal Governments, and Non-Frofit Organizalions . Because tha schedule presents only
a selected portion of the operations of the City of Momistown, Tennessee, It is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net
positlon or cash fiows of the City of Mortistown, Tennessee.

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accouniing.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Schedule of State Financial Assistance

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Contract
Grantor Agency/Program Number Expendltures

Airport Rehabilitation 32-555-0743-04 $ 251,415
Alrport Improvements 32-555-0751-04 8,379
Alrporl Improvements 32-555-0750-04 80,277
Airport Improvements 32-555-0152-04 125
Ajrport Maintenance Grant AERM-15-143-00 19,800
2013 Alrport Layout Plan 32-555-0747-04 29,508
Aifrport Securily Upgrades 32-555-0748.04 30,102

$ 419,606
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Statistical Information
June 30, 2015

This part of the City of Morristown’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial sfatements, note disclosures, and required
supplementary information says about the government’s overall financial health.

Einancial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information {o help the reader assess the government's most significant local
revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordabilily of the government's current
levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment
within which the government’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in
the government's financial report relates fo the services the government provides and the aclivities it

performs.
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Governmental activities:
Net investment in capitzl assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net position

Business-type activities:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type net position

Primary government:
Net investment in ¢capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary govermmert

613072006

6/30/2007

6/30/2008

City of Morristown, Tennessee
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(accrual basis of accounting)

6/30/200%

6/30/2010

6/30/2011

6/30/2012 6/30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015
32,367,332 20,829,489 §  41.772,607 § 43,089,778 44,137,100 31,753,875 26,055,799 § 29,647,943 33,965,440 34,876,277
3,461,659 163,828 2,748,754 2,622,266 353,457 644,679 1,369,307 1,607,753 1,680,576 2,420,183
2,407,332 12,742,735 3,210,976 17,803,817 22,204,245 23,431,214 24,213,008 13,709,843
38,236,323 33,726,053 $ 44,519,361 $ 45,712,044 47,701,533 50,302,371 49,628,352 $ 54,686,910 59,858,024 51,005,313
65,965,213 65,604,276 $ 88,057,045 $ 73,440,732 73,214,568 72,398,653 76,792,135 § 79,424,880 88,050,533 98,316,369
531,903 557,111 1,331,951 585,465

13,638,464 12,858,565 13,775,143 11,011,165 15,782,758 22,815,516 23,525,937 26,580,161 24,920,115 19,315,616
80,135,580 79,108,952 $ 81,832,188 $ B5,783.848 89,582,791 95,214,169 100.318.072 $ 106,005,041 112,970,648 117,631,985
98,332,545 86,523,765 3 109,828,652 $ 116,530,510 117,351,668 104,152,528 102,847,934 $ 109,072,823 122,016,973 133,191,646
3,993,562 710,940 5 2341975 3,854,217 938,922 644,679 1,369,307 1,607,753 1,680,576 2,420,193
16,045,796 25,601,300 14,179,922 11,011,168 18,993,734 40,719,333 45,730,183 50,011,375 49.133,123 33,025,459
118,371,903 112,836,005 $ 126,351,549 $ 131,495,802 137,284,324 145,516,540 149,947,424 $ 180,691,951 172,829,672 168,637,298
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

6/30/2008 6/30/2007 6/30/2008 6/30/2009 6/30/2010 6/30/2011 6/30/2012 BI30/2013 6/30/2014 6/30/2015

Revenues;

Taxes $ 19,509,714 & 19,819,587 § 22,261,063 $ 23,229,793  § 21,494,303 § 22480586 § 22,869,163 § 22,535,744 $ 22852719 $ 24,289,234

Licenses, permits and fines 904,318 1,083,488 1,045,551 1,497,081 1,472,826 1,516,750 1,315,840 1,178,045 1,057,791 365,496

Use of money and property 607,576 329,777 470,218 246,632 1,014,717 870,185 636,386 253,683 750,587 502,987

Service charges and fees 155,179 137,584 141,703 132,712 161,393 1,225,730 1,431,315 1,576,001 1,504,729 2,540,274

Intergovernmental 7,664,424 6,141,081 6.269.338 5,340,445 5,820,905 5,204,757 5,478,005 5,856,207 5,831,533 7,339,905

Total revenues 28.841.208 27,521,537 30,187,874 30,446,663 29,954,144 32,292,058 31,734,809 31,400,680 32,097,359 35,037,896

Expenditures:

General government 3,654,202 4,378,805 4,578,048 3,823,180 3,410,399 3,317,502 4,062,142 3,628,042 4,100,871 5,551,674 -

Public safety 42,010,039 14,326,759 14,553,542 13,950,739 13,027,747 43,039,718 13,522,370 13,872,414 15,060,623 15,674,562

Public works 9,055,173 10,381,286 11,036,209 6,931,598 6,353,399 6,619,663 8,862,747 8,798,240 8,199,366 8,723,165

Parks and recreation 1,957,729 3,229,978 2,338,137 2,070,840 1,656,613 1,706,724 1,746,676 1,768,165 2,037,872 2,024,368

Airport 275,700 190,240 132,719 302,588 - - - -

Civic support 532,178 856,174 558,723 1,338,282 490,500 279,966 1,395,326 841,472 750,451 756,937

Library - - - - - 250,000 243,600 257,000 261,490 257,000

Econemic development 4,355,672 2,224,061 1,117,549 464,294 1,167,663 1,868,472 356,373 179,891 201,550 328,040

Transportation - - - 842,427 - - -

Retiree benefits 292,973 - - 384,866 439,304 309,530 401,695 306,363 382,916

Miscellaneous 20,531 - - 133,532 133,632 - -
Debt service:

Principal 1.265,000 1,105,00C 3,150,000 1,586,805 4,058,614 1,501,662 1,574,629 1,675,568 1,136,023 1,173,560

Interest 178,432 449,487 722.876 538,250 341,172 237,224 232,380 239,740 187,384 169,905

Debt expense 299,340 165.077 62,156 53,404 68,620 45,929 57,337 87,324 99,292 93,262
Total expenditures 33,896,969 37,296,867 38,249,959 31,058,950 31,745,552 29,439,696 32,363,110 31,850,551 32,341,385 35,135,389
Deficiency of revenue over expenditures {5,055,760) (9,775,330) (8,062,085) (613,287) (1,791,408) 2,852,362 (628,301} {449,871} (244,026} (97,493)
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in 2,371,219 2,421,324 2,443,018 1,925,865 2,471,905 1,898,007 2,202,954 2,059,154 2,038,024 2,381,088

Transfers out (1,717,920) (1,733,483) {1.712,003) (1,876,147 (1.736,947) {1,538,388) (1,184,908) (391.628) (585,663) (783,218)

Bonds issued 10,0C0,000 4,750,000 5,470,000 1,473,604 3,012,455 4,000,00C - - -
Total other financing sources {uses) 10,653,298 5,437,841 6,701,015 1,523,322 3,747,413 359.619 5,018,048 1,667,528 1,452,361 1,597,848
Net change in fund balance $ 5597538 § {4337489) § (1,361.070) 8 910,035 & 1,956,005 8§ 3,211,981 $ 4389745 $ 1217857 § 1,208,335 $ 1,500,355
Debt service as a percentage of total

governmental expenditures 4.26% 4.17% 10.13% 6.84% 13.86% 5.91% 5.58% 6.01% 4.09% 3.82%
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City of Morristown, Tennesses
Chan Nel Po
LastTen Fiscal Years
{accrual basls of accounting)

BII02006 613012067 6/30/2008 6130/2009 630i2010 81302011 13012012 813012013 302014 61302045
Expenses:
Governmental Activifies:
Generat government $ 3732080 § 4427912 ¢ 4720356 % 3503414 5 3536636 § 3518056 § 4,267.622 § 3503414 § 2,837,464 § 4,726,677
Public safely 12,611,746 14,783,116 14,938,433 14,016,226 13,510,787 13,528,045 13,716,607 14,016,226 14,634,316 14,168,464
Public works 7,884,650 8,938,753 12,760,354 6,665,204 7.208.206 8,372,617 9,933,805 6,665,204 6,831,898 10,492,687
Paris and recreation 1,864,017 3,107,468 2404471 1,773,943 1,767,692 1,805,103 1,763,765 1,773,943 2,056,499 1,807,804
Civic support 532,178 856,948 558,723 1,008,472 553,177 53,498 4,638,926 1,098,472 1,011,841 447,774
Economlc development 3,819,932 126,444 1L.17.549 147,547 624,033 1,904,128 352,784 147,547 295,060 942,834
Retiree benefits 292973 - - - 394,868 439,304 309.53¢ 401,695 306,363 82,416
Alrport 654,398 631,368 513,047 - - - - - -
Transporiation - - - B 167,273 - - - -
Long-term debf expensa 339,238 582,295 185,032 327,064 32543 283,153 289,117 327,064 288,676 263,167
Other . - . - - . - . -
Telal govemmental activities expenst 31,691,823 33,452,305 37,867,765 27,621,870 28,704,613 36,513,911 32,408,080 28,023,565 28,261,217 33,202,723
Buslness-ypa acihities: -
Water 4,241,569 4,486,115 5,056,028 5,689,323 5,305,637 5,840,954 5,854,862 5,669,323 6,287,885 $,117.002
Woastewaler 6,170,188 5,682,688 6,760,588 9,421,138 7,844,245 9.210.878 9,632,657 9,489,262 9,067,056 9,385,284
Power 63,341,801 66,800,708 81,105,276 3,124 556 $3,957,47¢ 73018022 71,977,885 73,724 566 75,270,529 934,148
Broadband syslem 714,677 4,449,833 6,907,546 7,258,652 7,030,319 6,321,905 5,963,208 7,256,652 6,845,100 76,855,798
Storm water . - 438,016 810,198 576,843 592,574 658,713 810,198 832,182 7.330.637
Tolal business-type expenses 63,468,262 71,418,350 80,285,455 96,901,777 84,714,514 94,985,333 95,067,455 $6,969,801 08,402,682 99,682,679
Tota! primary government expenses 94,560,085 104,871,655 118,133,220 124,523,647 113.419,127 125,499,244 127,495,635 124,993,466 126,663,693 132,885,602
Program revenues:
Govemnmental aciivites:
Charges for senvices:
General govermiment 223,537 657,087 409,097 232242 260,238 134,066 130,440 232,242 134,358 1,183,648
Public salely 904,316 414,861 778216 1,140,852 1,343,984 1,516,750 1.319.940 1,178,045 1,057,761 365,436
Public works 268,709 - - - - 1,091,664 1,300,876 1,343,759 1,370,370 -
Parks and recreation 155,179 137,584 . - - - - - - -
Ghvic supporl - - - - - - - - - -
Economic development - - - - - - - - - -
Retiree benefits . - - - - - - - - -
Alrport - - - - - - - - - -
Long-term expense . - . - - - - - - -
Dperating grants and contributions 605,816 445,864 888,336 746,980 975928 4,081,816 700,116 10,166 1,454,535 2,949,422
Capital grants and conlibutions 3,234,328 1,702,885 1,546,886 710,158 650,995 - . - - 1,356,626.00
TFolal governmentsl activiies program revenues 5,281,887 3,261,311 3,622,475 2,830,230 3,261,142 3,828,356 3,451,373 3,484,202 4,017,055 5,855,162
Business-type acthvities:
Chargs for services:
Waler 6,339,104 5,335,578 6,612,994 6,450,217 6,769,468 6,936,384 6,602,966 6,450,217 6,449,509 6,411,68¢
Waslewater 4,743,533 5,556,473 8,766,896 6,601,682 6,601,592 9,308,092 10,649,655 11,227,579 12,656,593 12,247,929
Power 55,821,500 58,631,833 63,351,409 74,850,804 67,681,072 77,167,026 74,675,366 74,850,804 5,425,615 75,151,769
Broadband system 102,690 2,548,550 4,503,672 7,165,234 6,502,002 6,321,808 6,815,605 7,195 234 7,629,190 8,239,118
Storm waler 89,383 1,342,550 663,662 541,053 1,376,723 1,342,550 1,330,147 1,276,062
Operating grants and conbiibutions - - - - 2,667,523 2,219,003 2,680,025 2,586,526
Capital grants and conbributions - - 65,500 84,631 84,631 347,763 165,384 1,602,848 524,280 151,200
Tola! business-type activities program revenue 66,012,624 72072,574 82,339,854 56,595,128 88,202 417 101,122,243 101,652,122 104,888,335 106,695,565 106,063,476
Tolal primary govemment progaarm revenus $ 71204711 § 75333685 5 85062329 83,355358 § 91463550 § 104550599 % 105103,435 § 108352537 § 110512620 § 1119018667
Net (expense) revenus:
Governmental acivitles § (25809 936) $ {30,190.994) § (M.2452980) 5 (24.791640) $ {25443471) § (266855550 § (28956,707) $ (24,550.363) § (24244162} $ (27 3-4? 531)
Buslness-typa activities: 653,224 2,074,358 (376,649) 3,487,503 6.136.910 6,664,667 7918434 8,192,883

Fotal primary government program expensa [] !232853?4! H !29537770! $ [32170831) § (25,168,269) $ (21,935568) % S (20.648845) 3 122.392.040) $ {36,640, 920} § (16051279) £20966935§
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City of Momistown, Tennesses
Chary et Posltion {continuied
Last Ten Fiscal Years
{accrual basts of accounting)

6130/2006 6{30/2007 6/30/2008 6/30/2009 613912010 613012011 613072042 6/30/2013 613012014 613012015

General governmental and other changes
in net pesition;
Governmantal Activitias:
Propeify laxes $ 6859567 $ 6,744,789 § 9,521,787 $ 8,766697 ¢ 09,480,026 § 0,885180 $ 6135643 $ 9083552 $ 9313895 $ 9,016,198
infiou faxes 92,446 65,529 35,536 - - - - - .
Franchise taxes 1.008,837 732,338 826,802 784,365 644,356 400,815 598,668 632,723 692,442 126,174
Local sales tax 9,491,687 9,594,019 9,446,110 10,389,929 9,464,955 9,611,440 10,236,619 9,923,645 10,081,738 19,793,358
Alcohot beverage tax 1,076,180 1,107,005 1,138,908 1,178,368 1,199,044 1,140,739 1,364,148 1,397,959 1,404,875 1,316,273
Buslrass and gross receipls lax 881,441 943,210 866,833 947,659 663,824 882,11 1,000,837 936,835 §37,434 958,795
Hotelimotal tax 384,387 417,120 425,087 367,704 351,096 454,855 533,148 561,830 542,235 565,490
Litigaton {ax 12,906
Use of money and property 807,576 451,307 470,219 246,632 1,014,717 870,185 979,708 253,683 750,587 502,987
Inlergavernmentat 3,405,260 3489312 3,634,117 2,148,264 4,188,982 5.112,921 4,777,887 5,146,051 4,476,998 4,360,483
Transfers 653,209 B4V 841 731,014 1,630,560 734,958 813,163 1,632,378 1,667,528 1,452,361 1,597,848
Tolal governmentat activifies 24,558,730 24,732,471 27,206 413 24,360,166 27,432,960 26,171,448 30,159,138 29,604,006 29,532,665 30,780,552
Business-typo activities:
Use of money and property - - 387,820 161,484 05,302 86,495 304,325 81,739 225,086 60,378
Translers {653,289} {687,841} {731,014) (1,530,560) {734,858} (813,163} {1,632.378) (1,887,528} {$.452,361) (1,597,848)
Total business-type aclivities {653,299} (BB7,841) (343,194) ~ {1,369,076) (636,656} (726,668) {1,228,053) (1585,789) _ (1,227,2/5) (1,637,470}
Total primary government $ 23905431 % 24044630 $ 26,953,218 § 24,991,120 § 26,703,304 5 025,454,760 % 28.931!085 £ 28018217 § 28305390 $ 20,243.082
Changes In net position:
Governmential aclivities $ (1,218,208) § (5458513) § (6948877) $ 2693183 $ 1989488 § 2485893 $ 1202432 $ 5044643 $ 5288502 5 343302
Business-lypa activities 1,891,283 {34,697} 1,731,206 2,236,653 2,848,247 5410242 5,336,614 6,332,545 6,965,607 4,843,126
Tolal prma#y goveinment § 672057 § {5493110) § (5217.671) § 4029836 § 4837736 § 7896035 § 6,539,046 § 11377288 $ 12254108 § 8,276,147
General Fund
Reserved 5 BS61476 5§ 4600443 § - % 2619057 § 353457 % 639,864 § 13028600 & 13228803 $ 13556928 § 100852261
Unreserved 4,060,887 - 2,705,279 - 3,328,040 6,804,115 10,075,983 11,196,401 12,155,081 7.082313
Fotal genaral fund 3 12612463 § 4658443 % 2705270 § 2610087 3§ 3676407 $ 7444070 § 23104583 % 24425304 § 25712000 § 27014574
All other govemmental funds
Unreservad 3 - % - 8 - % - 3 {26,323) § 387277 § 541585 % 388617 ¢ - % -
Reserved 0,883 183,657 41,475 3,199 25423 73,843 106,353 158,171 363.030 384,726
Total afi other govemmentai funds _$ 9,883 § 163,657 § 49476 § 3199 § {850) % 461,92¢  § 647,638 3§ 557,788 % 363,030 § 384,725 i
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2006 2007 2008

City of Morristown, Tennessee
Eund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2011 (3)

2009 2010 2012 2013 2014 2015
General Fund
Resarved $ B,551,476 $ 4,669,443 $ 3,431,536 $ 2,619,067 353,457 $ - $ - % - $ - -
Nenspendable (1) - - - - - - 11,765,646 11,780,321 11,822,098 11,716,611
Restricted (1) - - - - - - 1,262,954 1,448,582 1,520,896 2,265,480
Committed (1} - - - - - - 3,072 69,710 57,058 -
Assigned (1) - - - - 1,065,688 1,170,837 3,852 8,500 156,876 5,970,170
Unassigned {2) 4,060,987 - - - 3,159,977 6,656,404 10,069,059 11,118,191 12,155,081 7,062,313
Total generat fund $ 12612463 § 4660443 § 3431538 § 2619,067 4579122 & 7827241 % 23104583 § 24425304 _§ 25712.009 27,014,574
Al other govermmmental funds
Reserved $ 9,883 § 163657 & 41475 § 3,189 25473 % 77858 8 - $ - $ - -
Nenspendable (1) - - - - - - - - - -
Restricted (1) - - - - - - 106,353 158,171 159,680 154,713
Committed (1) - - m - - - - m - -
Assigned {1) - - - - - - 541,585 398.817 203,350 230,012
Unassigned (2) 984 984 984 - (26,323) - - - - -
Total all other governmental funds _§ 10,867 § 164641 3 42459 % 3.189 (850 8 77958 § 847938 § 557,788 § 363.030 384,725

(1) - See Notes to the Financial Statements, Note 1.0 for details of fund balances.
(2) - Prior to Fiscal Year 2011, Unassigned was known as Unreserved.
{2} - GASE No> 54 was implemented in fiscal year 2011.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Governmental Activities Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

{accrual baasis of accounting)

Business
Alcohol and Gross Licenses, Use of
Fiscal Property In-lieu Franchise Locat Sales Beverage Receipts Permits, Hotelf Litigation Money and Inter-

Year Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax Tax and Fines Motel Tax Tax Property Governmental  Transfers Total

2006 6,989,567 92,448 1,006,887 9,491,687 1,076,180 881,441 - 384,387 - 607,576 3,405,260 653,299 24,588,730
2007 6,960,375 65,529 732,339 9,594,019 1,107,005 943,210 - 417,120 - 1,276,070 5,899,091 687,841 27,682,599
2008 9,521,787 33,536 826,802 9,446,110 1,138,908 866,833 - 425,087 - 1,421,389 6,027,338 731,015 30,440,805
2008 8,766,697 - 784,365 10,389,929 1,178,386 947,659 - 367,704 - 1,876,425 5,340,445 795,063 30,446,663
2010 9,180,026 - 644,358 9,454,955 1,190,044 663,824 1,472,826 361,096 - 1,166,110 5,820,905 734,958 30,689,102
201 9,999,606 - 400,815 9,611,440 1,140,739 882,131 1,510,750 454,885 - 2,095,925 6,204,797 848,566 33,148,654
2012 9,135,642 - 598,668 10,236,619 1,364,148 1,000,237 1,319,940 533,149 - 2,067,701 5,478,005 1,018,045 32,752,855
2013 9,064,768 18,784 632,723 9,923,645 1,397,959 936,835 203,788 561,930 - 1,387,479 5,358,672 1,667,528 31,154,221
2014 9,286,317 27678 $92,442 14,061,738 1,404,875 837,434 233,710 542,235 - 1,486,078 5,717,743 1,452,361 31,752,611
2015 9,851,476 64,722 726,174 10,793,398 1,316,273 958,795 365,486 565,490 12,908 3,043,261 7,339,905 2,381,066 37,418,962
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Table of General Bonded Debt with Total Assessment and

Expenditure Ratio
Last Ten Tax Years

Ratio of Bonded Ratio of Bonded

General Total Debt to Total Total Debt to Total

Tax Year Bonded Debt {1) Assessment Assessment Expenditures Expenditures
2006 20,922,286 673,488,281 031to1 27,901,352 750 to 1
2007 22,538,317 704,561,094 032101 33,896,969 665 to 1
2008 24,008,317 693,683,310 0351t 1 37,296,867 B44 1o 1
2009 22,521,414 728,824,170 031to1 38,248,959 589 1o 1
2010 21,676,922 734,794,794 030 to 1 26,991,342 803 to 1
2011 20,395,260 880,290,913 023101 31,320,230 B51 10 1
2012 19,054,360 864,098,668 022 to 1 31,217,154 B610to 1
2013 21,373,096 863,349,937 025t0 1 30,941,516 .691to 1
2014 20,237,974 868,315,105 023t0 1 32,088,324 .830 to 1
2015 19,064,476 851,362,810 022to 1 35,135,389 543 to 1

{1) - This is total bonded debt for governmental activities only.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2042 2013 2014 2015
Assessed valug $ 704867216 F 6936330 0§ TI5127536 0% 734974794 % BBO290513 5 BG658V9073 5 864008668 $ 863,408,190 § 868315105 $ 851,362,810
Rate per $100 1,09 0.97 137 1.22 1.22 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05 1.05
Totat tax levy 6,835,272 9,503,463 8,903,661 8,968,580 9,243,067 9,091,730 9,073,036 9,065,785 9.065786 § 8117321
Collections/reductions:
Initial tax year 6,546,642 8,767,049 8,367,545 8,502,700 8,755,460 8,590,172 8,579,616 8,579,330 8,545,014
Additional through June 30, 2015 268,390 668,702 437,264 405,170 416,052 409,565 303,836 258,108 -
Total cofiections/reductions 6,815,032 9,435,751 8,804,908 8,907,870 9171512 8,988,737 8,983,552 8,837,435 8545014
Taxes receivable, June 30, 2015 F 20240 § Br712 % 58762 % 60710 % 71555 % 91,893 § 99484 § 228,351 5 520,772
Percent of levy coitected initial
tax year 95.78% 92.25% 93.98% 94.81% 94.72% 94.48% 95.66% 54.63% 94.26%
Percent of levy outstanding
June 30, 2015 0.30% 0.71% 1.11% 0.68% 0.77% 1.01% 0.99% 2.52% 5.74%
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City of Morristown &

Principal Employers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2015 2006
Percentage of Percentage of
Total Total

Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment

Hamblen County Dept. of Education 1,284 1 10% 1,225 3 10%

MAHLE, Ing, 1,029 2 8% 1,423 2 11%

Koch Foods 997 3 8% 1,026 4 8%

JTEKT Aulomotive 864 4 7% 612 7 5%

Wal-Mart 757 5 8% 550 10 4%

Walters State Community College 743 6 6% 708 6 6%

Morristown Hamblen Healthcare 716 7 6% 897 5 7%

Howmet 526 8 4% 578 g 5%
Team Technologies 513 9 4%

{.ear Corporation 455 10 4% 605 8 5%

Berkline - - 1,625 1 13%

Total 7,884 63% 9,249 74%
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Total Estimated Assessed
Direct Actual Value as a
Tax Residential Commercial Fublic Utility Industrial Public Utility Total Assessment Tax Taxable Percentage of
Year Property Property Property Other Property Property Value Rate Value Actual Value
2006 208,319,300 320,294,680 577,060 2,554,275 172,813,509 2,770 704,561,594 0.97 2,130,508,894 33.07%
2007 214,131,050 323,243,200 577,060 3,551,000 162,179,019 1,881 693,683,310 1.37 2,257,282,643 30.73%
2008 222,757,250 335,363,800 557,085 4,638,175 165,505,013 2,837 728,824,170 1.22 2,377,490,324 30.66%
2009 224,697,525 340,950,480 557,095 4,567,200 164,020,624 1,870 734,794,794 1.22 2,429,789,052 30.24%
2010 266,744,425 405,874,600 707,025 5,657,800 201,304,793 2,270 880,290,913 1.05 2,776,600,762 31.70%
2011 266,864,625 404,414,480 707,025 5,658,932 188,231,174 2,837 865,879,073 1.05 2,729,853,556 31.72%
2012 267,600,800 406,290,680 707,025 5,674,505 183,822,111 3,547 864,098,668 1.05 2,722,855,361 31.74%
2013 266,280,800 302,287,800 707,025 5,663,750 102,758,240 2,270 677,700,885 1.05 2,720,476,644 24.91%
2014 267,100,775 342,794,907 707,025 5,697,950 252,008,861 5,587 868,315,105 1.05 2,736,636,423 31.73%
2015 241,973,025 346,673,196 695,695 4,832,500 257,178,659 9,735 851,362,810 1.05 2,665,051,328 31.95%
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Function

Police:
Physical arrests
Parking violations

Fire:
Number of calls answered
inspections

Highway and streets:

Street
maintenance/resurfacing
{miles)

Sanitation:
Brush collected (annual)
Refuse collected

City of Morristown, Tennessee
Operating Indicators by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

June 30, 2015
Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
5,266 7.572 6,48?{ 5,620 2,097 4,844 4872 3,061 3,661 5,071
8,652 7,179 14,809 15,211 10,071 357 288 17 167 102
3,211 3,390 3,337 3,232 4,271 3,914 2,975 3,222 3,884 4,288
1,827 2,376 2,361 948 659 741 2,781 2,562 2,535 2,724
473 04 6.18 2.39 - 209.30 224 .60 45,60 1.33 5.10
27925 3,411.5 2,711.2 3,327.04 3,238.19 2,870.70 6,094.32 6,574.00 2,412.14 212577
15,008.8 9,044.0 8,555.7 9,770.21 9,416.08 4,209.62 9,313.31 9,248.60 9,313.01 9,063.98
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Demographic and Economic Statistics
l.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Education
Level In
Per Capita Years of
Fiscal Personal Personal Median Formal School Unemployement
Year Population Income Income Age Schooling  Enroliment Rate
2008 25,716 674,119,224 26,214 40.00 14.1 10,513 4.680
2007 25,686 673,075,944 26,204 41.02 14.0 10,613 5.70
2008 26,419 695,823,622 26,338 36.00 13.4 10,398 7.20
2009 25,800 696,780,600 27,007 36.80 13.3 10,079 13.48
2010 28,054 896,633,894 31,961 37.30 13.0 9,632 11.20
2011 29,137 548,154,381 18,813 36.20 12.0 10,972 11.80
2012 29,369 579,097,942 19,718 35.88 13.7 9,852 13.53
2013 29,269 961,135,422 32,838 36.20 14.0 13,046 10.20
2014 29,324 955,610,512 32,588 39.80 14.5 13,136 7.70
2015 29,304 973,390,968 33,217 36.00 14.5 12,148 6.90
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Function

Public safety
Police:
Stations
Patrol units
Fire stations

Sanitation
Collection trucks

Highways and sireets
Street {miles)

Culture and recreation
Parks acreage
Parks

Clity of Morristown, Tennessee

Capital Asset Statistics by Function
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
1 1 1 1 1 1 i 1 1 1
48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48
5 6 6 6 6 4] 6 6 6 6
5 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
241 263 263 320 320 320 320 320 320 320
257 258 259 264 264 264 264 264 264 264
15 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Schedule of Wastewater Utility Rates and Number of Customers

Fiscal Years 2015-2006

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Wastewater rate

Inside $ 3.00 $ 3865 $§ 420 $ 459 $ 459 $ 496 $ 811 $ 811 $ 917 $ 947

Qutside 6.00 7.30 8.40 9.18 9.18 8.92 16.22 16.22 18.34 18.34
Customers

Inside 10,230 10,578 10,578 11,523 11,523 11,627 11,618 11,668 10,566 10,572

Qutside 438 : 438 438 109 109 104 105 106 10 9
Commodity charge (per 1,000 gallons

Inside 5.00

Qutside 10.00
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Schedule of Power Rates (Last Ten Years)
Fiscal Years 2015-2006

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Residential:
Customer charge per month $ 1871 $ 1671 $1671 $ 1671 $ 1671 $ 167t $ 1321 § 1150 § 840 $ 840
Energy charge:
First 2,000 kWh 0.09162 0.09515 0.08097 0.09242 0.08934 0.08175 0.07582 0.07943 0.0718% 0.08735
Additional kWh per month 0.09162 0.08915 0.08097 0.08242 0.08934 0.07968 0.07375 0.00736 0.07002 0.08548
Commercial, Industrial, Governmental and Institutional:
GSA - 1 (demand of up to 50 kW)
Customer charge per month $200r$37 $200r337 $200r3 26,00 26.00 26.00 21.50 21.50 15.25 15.25
Energy charge per kWh per month 0.10165 0.10502 0.10076 0.10219 0.09899 0.09137 0.08463 0.08787 0.07902 0.07453
GSA - 2 (demand of 51 to 1,000 kW)
Customer charge per month 133.00 133.00  133.00 133.00 133.00 133.00 127.00 127.00 127.00 127.00
Demand charge:
First 50 kW per month
Excess over 50 kW per month 12.35 12.00 11.86 11.86 13.78 13.78 12.88 12.52 11.48 11.48
Energy charge:
First 15,000 kWh per month 0.09650 0.09988 0.09558¢ 0.00702 0.09381 0.0857 0.07896 0.0822 007404  0.06855
Additional kWh per month 0.06284 0.06695 0.0635 0.064%1 0.06262  0.04861 0.0448 0.04904 0.04378 0.03935
GSA - 3 (demand of 1,001 to 5,000 kW)
Customer charge per month 270.00 270.00 270.00 270.00 270.00 270.00 266.00 266.00 205.00 205.00
Demand charge:
First 1,000 kW per month 12.50 1224  11.98 11.98 11.68 13.88 12.90 12.54 11.48 11.49
Excess over 1,000 kKW per month 14.32 13.99 13.67 13.67 13.31 15.44 14.29 13.87 12.64 12.64
Energy charge:
Per kWh per month 0.06279 0.06691 0.06348 0.06489 0.06262 0.04803 0.04522 0.04946 0.0438 0.03937
TDGSE (Demand > 5,001 kW)
Demand charge:
On peak 17.24 16.84 1645 16.45 - - - - - -
Excess off peak 4.14 4.07 4.00 4.00 - - - - - -
Excess over confract 17.24 16.84 16.45 16.45 - - - - - -
Energy charge:
On peak 0.09815 0.10127 0.09683 0.09694 0 0 0 0 o] 0
Off peak (first 425 kWh) 0.06163 0.06568 0.06215 0.06226 0 0 0 0 0 0
Off peak (next 195 kWh} 0.04198 0.04653 0.04349 0.0436 0 0 0 0 0 0
Off peak (additional kwh) 0.02529 0.03026 0.02764 0.02775 0 0 4 0 G 0
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GSB (demand of 5,001 to 15,000 kW)
Customer charge per month
Demand charge:
Per kWh per month
Energy charge:
First 620 kWh per Kw per month
Additional kWh per month

GSB (non-manufacturing)

(demand of 15,001 to 25,000 kW)
Customer charge per month
Demand charge:

Per kWh per month
Energy charge:

First 620 kWh per Kw per month

Additional kWh per month

Part F {demand greater than 25,000 kW)
Customer charge per month
Demand charge:
Per KWh per month
Energy charge:
Per kWh per month

Active Service (number of customers):
Residential
Commercial
ndustrial
Street and athletic
Cutdoor lighting
Total active service

City of Morristown, Tennessee

Schedule of Power Rates (I ast Ten Years)

Fiscal Years 2015-2006

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

- - - - 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.0¢ 1,500.00 4,500.00 1,500.00
- - - - 19.02 13.27 11.63 11.89 10.61 10.61

- - - - 010427 0.0374  0.03899 0.0307 003216 0.02774

- - - - 002771 0.03074 0.03337 0.03113 0.02707 0.02262
- - - - 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00¢ 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.C0
- - - - 18.92 14.89 14.21 13.78 12.95 12.95

- - - - 0.10427 0.04132 0.04625 0.04234 0.03872 0.03427

- - - - 0.02771 0.03372 0.03928 0.0355¢ 0.03241 0.0279¢
11,826 1M,721 11,764 11,752 11,683 11,819 11,545 11,687 11,191 11,088
2,141 2,120 2421 2,105 2,085 2,109 2,166 2,210 2,707 2,619
438 458 449 447 467 464 465 465 462 464
76 73 70 7 69 €9 69 70 69 67

33 34 34 31 32 35 35 37 36 37
14,515 14,406 14,438 14,406 14,336 14,496 14,270 14,469 14,465 14,285
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City of Morristown Tennessee
Schedule of Water Rates and Number of Customers,
Fiscat Years 2015-2008

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2008 2008 2007 2006
Inskde Clty Rate:
Customer charge per month § 465 § 4865 5 465 § 465 § 465 $ 465 § 465 § 465 § 4865 § 465
Commodity charge (per 1,000 gallons)
Flrst 25,000 galfons - - - - - - - - -
Over 25,000 galions - - - - - - - - - -

First 50,000 gallons 2.05 2,05 205 2,05 2.05 2.05 1.80 1.85 1.55 1.55
Next 50,000 galions 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.80 1.65 1.30 1.30 1.30
Over 100,000 1.60 1.80 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.60 1.45 1.10 1.10 1.10
Mintmum bili;

5/8" meter 8.75 8.75 B.75 8.75 8.75 8.75 8.45 7.75 775 7.75
314" meter 9.25 9.25 0.25 9.25 9.25 9.25 8.95 8.25 825 8.25
1" meter 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 8.7 9.25 8.25 0.25
112" meter 11.50 11.50 11.50 11.50 11.50 11.50 11.20 10.75 10.75 10.75
2" mefer 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 16.00 15,70 15.25 15.25 15.25
3" meter 61.00 61.00 61.00 61.00 61.00 61.00 60.70 52.00 52.00 52.00
4" meter 71.00 71.00 71.00 71.00 71.00 71.00 70.70 70.00 70.00 70.00
8" meter 101.60 101.00 101.00 101.00 101.00 101.00 100.70 100.00 100.00 100.00
8" meter 114.30 114.30 114,30 114.30 114.30 114.30 - - - -

Quiside City rates:
Customer charge per month 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.65 4.85 4.65 4.65 4,65 4.65
Commaodity charge (per 1,000 gallons}
First 25,000 galions - - - - - - - - - -
Over 25,000 galions - - - - - - - - - -

Flrst 53,000 gallons 4,10 410 4,10 4.10 4,10 410 3.80 3.10 3.10 310
Next 50,000 gallons 3.60 3.60 3.60 3.60 3.60 3.60 .30 260 2.60 2.60
Over 160,000 gallons 3.20 3.20 3.2 3.20 3.20 3.20 2.90 2.20 2.20 2.20
Minimum bili:
5/8" meter 12.85 12.85 12.85 12.85 12.85 12.85 12.25 10.85 10.85 10.85
3/4" meter 13.35 13.35 13.35 13.35 13.35 13.35 12.76 11.35 11.35 $1.36
1" meter 14,10 14.10 14.10 14.10 14.10 14.10 13.80 12,10 12.10 12,10
1 112" meter 15.60 1580 16.60 15.60 15.60 156.60 156.00 13.60 13.60 13.60
2" meter 20.10 20,10 20.10 20.10 20,10 20,10 19.50 18.10 18.10 18.10
3" meter 65.10 65.10 £5.10 65.10 65.10 65.10 64.50 63.10 63.10 63.10
4" meter 75.10 7510 75.10 7510 75.10 75.10 74.50 73.10 73.10 73.10
6" meter 105.10 105.10 105.10 105.10 105.10 105.10 104.50 103.10 103.10 103.10
8" mater 118.40 118.40 118.40 118.40 118.40 118.40 - - - -
Monthly fire protection service charge:
4" 26,00 25,00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25.00 25,00
6" 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.60 40.00
a" 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00 50.00
i0" 100.60 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100,00
2" 125.00 125.00 125.00 126.00 125,00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00 125.00
Number of Customers:
Total active service 12,549 12,549 12,569 2,551 12,504 12,667 12,506 12,937 12,684 12,589
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Standard Cablae;
Expanded basic
Digital baslc
Digital baslc + 1
Digital basic + 2
DigHal baslc + 4
Premlum channels

Intarnat:
Reslidentlal:
Tler1
Tiar 2
Tier 3
Ter 4
Tier 5

Commercial:
Tler
Tler 2
Ter3
Tier 4
Tiers
Tler 6

Telephone:
Resldentiat
Basic Pack
Preferred Pack
Additlonal services
Long distance per minute

Commerclal:
Access line
Business local ielephone senvice
Additional sarvices
Long distance rate per minute

2015

$ 56.95

68.05
78.75
86.95
99.65
8.95-12.05

34.85
39.05
74.95

44.95

74.95

90.95
149,90

22,85

25.00
3.75-11.95
0.05

25.95
36.95
7.95-27.95
0.05

City of Morristown Tennessee

Schedule of Monthly Broadband Rates {Last Ten Years)

2014

$ 5095 §
60.95
69.95
77.95
£0.95

8.95-12.95

34.95
39.95
74.95

4495

74.95

99.95
149.90

22.95

25.00
3,75-11.95
0.05

25.95
36.95
7.95-27.95
0.05

Note: The Broadband System began operstions in 2006.

Flscal Years 2015-2006

2013 212 218
4695 § 4605 § 4685
54.85 54.85 54.95
63.95 63.85 63.85
71.95 71.85 7195
84.95 84.95 44.95

9.05-12.85 9.95-12.85 9.95-12,95
34.85 34.95 34.95
39.55 39.95 39.95
74,85 44,85 59,95
99.95 74.95 99.85
- 39.85-199.9! 158.95
44,95 44,95 44,95
74.95 74.95 74.95
59.95 $9.95 99.95
149.95 149.95 148.95
199.95 199.95 199.95
299,85 - -
22.95 2295 2295
25.00 25,00 25.00
3.75-11.95 3.75-11.95 3.758.95
0.05 0.05 0.05
25.05 2505 2595
38.95 38.95 36.95
7.95-27.95 7.95-27.95 86952595
0.05 005 005

2010
$ 4695
54.95
63.95
71.95
84.95
9.95-12.95

34,65
39.95
§9.85
99.95
159.95

4495
74.95
98.95
149,85
199.95

2295
25.00

3.76-8.95
0.05

25.05
36.95

2008

$ 4195
49.95
59.95
67.95
50.05

2008 2007 2008
$ 4185 § 4195 § 4195
49.85 49.95 49.85
59.95 59.95 59.95
67.95 67.95 67.95
80.95 80.85 80.95

9.95-11.95 9.95-11.95 9.95-11.95 9,95-11.95

29.95
39.95
59.95
89.95

39.95
7495
89.95
149.95
199.95

22.85
2500
3.75-8.95
0.05

2595
36.95

29.95 28.95 29.95
39.95 39.95 39.95
59.95 59.85 58.95
£9.95 899.95 99.85
38.85 32.95 38.95
14.95 74.95 74.85
99.95 89.95 99.65
149.95 149.95 149.85
199.95 - -
22.95 22.95 22.95
25.60 25.00 27.95
3.75-8.95 3.75-895 685895
0.05 0.05 0.05
25.95 25.95 26.95
36.95 36.95 39.95

6.95-256.95 6.85-25.85 6.95-25.95 6.95.25.95 0.95.7.95

0.05

0.05

0.05 0.05 0.05
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AWWA Free Water Audit Software: WAS v5.0

American Waler Works Association,
Copyright © 2014, All Riglits Resetved.

Click fo access definition Water Audit Report for:[Morristown Utilities Commission (0000474) ]
Click to add a comment Reporting Year:| 2015 || 7/2014-6/2015 |

Please enter dala in the white cells below, Where available, metered values should be used; if melered values are unavailable please eslimate a value. Indicate your confidence in the accuracy of lhe
input data by grading each component (n/a or 1-10) using the drop-down list to the left of the input cell. Hover the mouse over the cell to obtain a description of the grades

All volumes to be entered as: MILLION GALLONS (US) PER YEAR
To select the correct data grading for each input, determine the highest grade where

the utility meets or exceeds all criteria for that grade and all grades below it. Master Meter and Supply Error Adjustments
WATERSUPPLIED o e Enter grading in column 'E' and 'J" =----s=me> Pent: Value:
Volume from own suurces 3,123.907| MG/Yr 9 |[ 2.00%[® | MGIYr
Water 1mpur|‘.ed 0.000| MG/Yr == ® O | MG/Yr
Water exported: - - 0.000 MG/Yr (555 ® O | MG/
Enter negative % or value for under-registration
WATER SUPPLIED: | 3,062.654| MG/Yr Enter positive % or value for over-registration
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION Click here:
Billed metered: [l 10] 2,786.965| MG/Yr for help using option
Billed unmetered: | na 0.000] MG/Yr buttons below
Unbilled metered: 10 1.529| MG/Yr Pcnt: Value:
Unbilled unmetered: 38.283| MG/Yr 25%l_(.) Ol | My
Default option selected for Unbilled unmetered - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed
Use bultons to select
AUTHORIZED CONSUMPTION: [l | 2,826.777| MGIYr e iise of vieker
supplied
-
WATER LOSSES (Water Supplied - Authorized Consumption) 235.877| MG/Yr e
Apparent Losses Pcnt: v Value:

Unauthorized consumption: MG/Yr I O.'Zﬁ%l (’) t 5 MGIYr
Default option selected for unauthorized consumption - a grading of 5 is applied but not displayed
Customer metering inaccuracies: ll 28.167| MG/Yr 1.00%| @) ( MG/Yr
Systemalic data handling errors: 6.967| MGIYT 0.25% @ ( MG/Yr
Default option selected for Systematic data handling errors - a grading of & is applied but not displayed
Apparent Losses: K3 m MG/Yr

1L Losses or CARL
Real Losses = Water Losses - Apparent Losses: 193.086| MGIYr
WATER LOSSES: [ 235.877| M
NON-REVENUE WATER

NON-REVENUE WATER: 275.689] MG/Yr

= Waler Losses + Unbilled Metered + Unbilled Unmetered
SYSTEM DATA

Length of mains: 275.0 miles
Number of active AND inactive service connections: 13,800
Service connection density: 50| conn./mile main
Are customer melers typically located at the curbstop or property line? Yes (length of service line, beyond the property
Average lenglh of customer service line: EEER boundary, that is the responsibility of the utility)

Average length of customer service line has been set to zero and a data grading score of 10 has been applied

Average operating pressure: I Il 4 | psi

COST DATA
Total annual cost of operating water system: | + 1 7] m $5,915,976| $/Year
Customer retail unit cost (applied to Apparent Losses): |+ ] 7] m $2.05 [$I1 000 gallons (US) |
Variable production cost (applied to Real Losses): IE Il $517.62| $iMilion gallons  [Mse Customer Retall Unit Cost to value real losses
WAT! SCORE:

] * YOUR SCORE IS: 89 out of 100 **
A weighted scale for the components of consumption and waler loss is included in the calculation of the Water Audit Data Validity Score
PRIORITY AREAS FOR ATTENTION:
Based on the information provided, audit accuracy can be improved by addressing the following components:
| 1: Volume from own sources |
| 2: Unauthorized consumption |

| 3: Systematic data handling errors |

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0
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AWWA Free Water Audit Software: WAS v5.0

System Attributes and Performance Indicators . Comytaht ©2074. 2l Rette vt

Water Audit Report for:|Morristown Utilities Commission (0000474) ]
Reporting Year:| 2015 || 7/2014-6/2015 |

** YOUR WATER AUDIT DATA VALIDITY SCORE IS: 89 out of 100 ***
System Attributes:

Apparent Losses: 42.791 IMG/Yr
+ Real Losses: 193.086 [MG/Yr
= Water Losses: | 235.877 |MG/Yr
Unavoidable Annual Real Losses (UARL): | 84.41|MG/Yr
Annual cost of Apparent Losses: | $87,721|
Annual cost of Real Losses: | $99,945| Valued at Variable Production Cost

Return to Reporting Worksheet to change this assumpiton
Performance Indicators:

& = Non-revenue water as percent by volume of Water Supplied: | 9.0%|
Inancial:
Non-revenue water as percent by cost of operating system: | 5.4% | Real Losses valued at Variable Production Cost

8.50|gallons/connection/day
38.33]gallons/connection/day

N/A|

0.59/gallons/connection/day/psi

Apparent Losses per service connection per day:

Real Losses per service connection per day:

Operational Efficiency:

Real Losses per length of main per day™:

Real Losses per service connection per day per psi pressure:

From Above, Real Losses = Current Annual Real Losses (CARL): | 193.09|million gallons/year
Infrastructure Leakage Index (ILI) [CARL/UARL]: | 2.29|

* This performance indicator applies for systems with a low service connection density of less than 32 service connections/mile of pipeline

Perfoermance Indicators 1

AWWA Free Water Audit Software v5.0 128




Clty of Morristown, Tennessee
Principal Property Taxpayers, Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2015 2006
Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City
Taxable Taxable Taxable Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Rank Value
Mahle $ 27,263,627 1 3.20% $ 27,828,472 1 3.95%
Toyoda-TRW 26,699,002 2 3.14% 19,776,089 z2 2.81%
Vifan 18,112,293 3 2.13% 10,900,778 5 1.55%
Colgate 16,205,088 4 1.90%
OTICS 14,559,642 5 1.71% 9,055,345 8 1.29%
Meritor/Rockwelt 12,443,551 8 1.46% 5,455,115 10 0.77%
Tuff Torq Corp 11,135,932 7 1.31% 11,237,192 4 1.59%
CBL Morristown LTD 10,419,240 8 1.22% 9,564,280 7 1.36%
Lear Operation 10,220,112 g 1.20% 8,708,745.00 6 1.38%
Team Technologies 9,800,877 10 1.15%
Berkline 14,022,892 3 1.98%
Bellsouth 7,810,198 9 1.11%
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Debt Capacity Information

Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type, lL.ast Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Business-type

Activitles Activities

General Revenue Total Percentage of
Fiscal Per Capita Obligation Bonded Primary Personal
Year Population Incoma Bonds Debt Government Incoma Per Capita
2006 25,718 26,214 20,922,286 48,548,085 69,470,371 0.04% 2,701
2007 25,686 26,204 22,538,317 48,583,584 71,121,901 0.04% 2,769
2008 26,419 26,338 24,008,317 57,350,826 81,359,143 0.03% 3,080
2009 25,800 27,007 22521 414 62,632,314 85,153,728 0.03% 3,301
2010 28,054 31,961 21,676,922 70,536,488 92,213,410 0.03% 3,287
2011 29,137 18,813 20,395,260 67,736,119 88,131,379 0.02% 3,025
2012 29,369 19,718 19,054,360 66,678,349 85,732,709 0.02% 2,919
2013 29,269 32,838 21,373,996 94,873,935 116,247,931 0.03% 3,972
2014 29,324 32,588 20,237,974 106,117,010 126,354,984 0.03% 4,300
2015 29,304 33,217 19,064,476 116,342,780 135,407,256 0.02% 4,621
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City of Morristown, Tennessee
Debt Capacity Information

Ratlos of General Bonded Debt Outstanding, Last Ten Fiscal Years
June 30, 2015

Percent of Net
Actual Value General General Obligation Bonded

Fiscal of Taxable Bonded Debt to Debt
Year Population Property Debt Actual Value Per Capita
2006 25,716 2,030,459,639 20,922,286 1.03% 814
2007 25,686 2,130,508,8084 22,538,317 1.06% 877
2008 26,419 2,257,282,643 24,008,317 1.06% 809
2009 256,800 2,377,490,324 22,521,414 0.95% 873
2010 25,800 2,776,600,762 21,676,922 0.78% 840
2011 29,137 2,729,853,556 20,395,260 0.75% 700
2012 29,369 2,722,855,361 19,054,360 0.70% 649
2013 29,269 2,720,476,644 21,373,996 0.79% 730
2014 29,324 2,736,636,423 20,237,974 0.74% 690
2015 29,304 2,665,051,328 18,064,476 0.72% 651
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Clity of Morristown, Tennessee

City Government Employees by Function/Program

June 30, 2015
Employees as of June 39,
2015 2014 2013 2042 2041 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Function/Program
General government
Mayor and eouncll 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
City administration & staff 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4
Finance 6.5 6.5 6.5 5.5 6 6 7 7 7 7
Parchasing 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 ]
Information technology t 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Human resources 2.5 25 156 1.5 2 2 2 2 2 2
Legal services 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Planning 5.5 4.3 8.3 6.3 6.3 7.3 6.3 7.4 74 75
Engineering 43 4.1 3.1 3.1 3.1 31 a3 39 34 3.4
Inspectlons 5 5 5 4 4 4 5 5 5 5
Police
Supervision 6 5 5 6 & <] 5 5 5 5
Patrot 64 65 65 64 63 63 67 70 83 62
Investigations 15 15 15 15 16 15 15 13 3 14
Codes enforcement 2 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 t
Vice ] 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 ]
Narcotics 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 4 4 4
Fire
Supervision [ 3] 6 [+ 6 6 6 6 4 4
Firefighting 75 79 79 79 81 81 84 84 87 86
Preveniion & inspection 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 1 1
Public works
Supervision 25 2 1.83 1.83 1.5 1.5 1.5 .5 1.5 1.5
Bulldings & grounds 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 6 6
Equipment shop 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Repales & malntenance 14 g g g 9 9 10 10 10 10
Sireet lights & signs b 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2
Brush & snow 1t 10.7 10.7 10.7 9 9 13 13 14 13
Communication shop 2 2 1.65 1.65 2 2 2 2 2 1
Storms dralns & ways 4] ¢] 0 0 0 0 1] o 4 4
Strest cleaning 0 4] 0 1] ¢ Q 0 1] 2 2
Parks and recreation 17 17 17 17 17 18 20 20 21 20
Sewar 16 16 17.98 17.98 269 269 259 257 27 226
Storm waler 4.2 5.1 544 5.44 7.2 7.2 7 6.5 0 ¢
Solld wasle 13.5 125 12 12 12 13 13 i3 13 13
Total 3068 289.7 302 289 310 314 328 329 325 321
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CRrAINE, THoMPSON & JONES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
225 WEST FIRST NORTH STREET
P.O. BoX 1778
SUITE 300, MILLENNIUM SQUARE
MORRISTOWN, TENNESSEE 37816-1779
A23-5B6-7650

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Morristown, Tennessee

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards Issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial stalements of the governmental activities, the business- -
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Morristown, Tennessee,
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise City of Morristown, Tennessee's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 4, 2015, Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited the financial statements of
Morristown Utilities Commission, as described in our report on City of Morristown, Tennessee's financial
statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors’ testing of internal conirol over financial
reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City of Morristown, Tennessee's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstancas for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Morristown, Tennessee's internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Marristown, Tennessee's internal control,

A deficiency in internal conlfrol exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis, A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements
wili not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by thosse charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal controf that we
consider {o be material weaknesses. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be significant deficiencies. The
finding is identified as 15-1.

JAMES W, CRAINE, CPA
HigAM H. JONES, CPA

GLEMNN B. THOMPSCN, CPA TERRY M. WINSTEAD, CPA
MIRA J. CRAINE, CPA ' !
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Morristown, Tennessee's financial stalements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of iis compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect
on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuits of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

City of Morristown, Tennessee’s Responses to Findings

City of Morristown, Tennessee's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. City of Morristown, Tennessee’s responses were not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internat control and compliance and the
result of that testing, and not to provide an oplnion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report Is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's Internal confrol and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not

suitable for any other purpose.

&W, J/mnpamu o QOW/ 20

Morristown, Tennessee
December 4, 2015
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CrAINE, THomprsoN & JoNEs, P.C.,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
225 WEST FIRST NORTH STREET
P.O. Box {1779
SuUITE 300, MILLENNIUM SQUARE
MORRISTOWN, TENNESSEE 37816-1779
423-5B6-7650

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Morristown, Tennessee

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Cily of Morristown, Tennessee’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB Compliance Supplerment that could have a direct and material effect on City of Morristown,
Tennessee's major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2015. Cily of Morristown, Tennessee's major
federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings

and questioned costs.
Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requiremenis of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable o its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibilily is to express an opinion on compliance for each of City of Morristown, Tennessee’s major
federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted
our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audifs of Stales, Local Governments, and
Non-Prefit Organizalions. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Morristown, Tennessee's compliance with those requirements
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances,

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does nof provide a legal determination of City of Morristown, Tennessee's

compliance.
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, City of Morristown, Tennessee, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the
year ended June 30, 2015.

JAMES W, CRAINE, CPA HiraM H, JONES, CPA
. ¢

GLENN B. THOMPSON, CPA TERRY M. WINGTEAD, CPA
MIRA J. CRAINE, CPA ' '
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of City of Morrisfown, Tennessee, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered City of Morristown, Tennessee's internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program fo determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of
Morristown, Tennessee's Internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal conlrol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal controf over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there Is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal confrol over complflance is a deficlency, or a
cambination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to idenfify all deficiencies in internal conirol over compliance that might be

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal contro! over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not

been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our festing of
internal contro! over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Morristown, Tennessee
December 4, 2015
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

June 30, 2015
Section | — Summary of Auditor’'s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: unmodifted
Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified? yes

Significant deficiency identified? yes
Nencompliance material to financial statements noted? no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:

no

Material weaknesses identified?
Significant deficiency identified?

none reportad

Type of auditer's report issued on compliance for major federal programs: unmedified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in

accordance with Section 510(a} of OMB Circular A-1337 no
Identification of major federal programs:

US Department of Transportation — Transportation Planning 20.205
Dollar threshold used to distinguish betwean Type A and B programs $300,000
Auditee gualified as fow-risk auditee no

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings:

Finding 15-1

Condition: A former police officer altered records, failed to record or receipt cash collected, and made a false
entry in police department records,

Criteria: Collections are to be deposited daily, if possible, but no more than three business days after the initial
collection, as required by state law. Municipal collections should never be taken home by any municipal
employee or official. All cash maintained on hand and collections not yet deposited are kept in a secure location.

Cause of condition: During 2014 and 2015, a former police officer failled to turn over cash totaling at least $6,000
for deposit. The officer was responsible for returning to owners or lien-holders vehicles seized by the police
department. The vehicles were returned in accordance with orders from the Tennassee Department of Safety.
Frequently, vehicle owners were required to pay the department a cash setttement. The officer collected the cash
seftlements as well as amounts to reimburse the police department for towing and storage. When the officer was
interviewed by investigators regarding the missing money for the first time, the officer turned over $5,500 in cash
that was claimed to have been held in the police department vehicle for as fong as 35 days. The remaining $500
in cash was not in the officer's police vehicle. In at least one instance, the officer acknowledged that he
“renegotiated” and reduced the cash seitlement ordered by the Department of Safety from $5,000 down to
$1,500. The officer altered records, failed to record or receipt the majority of the cash, and made a false entry in
police department records in an apparent attempt to conceal his activities,
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
June 30, 2015

Section |l - Financial Statement Findings (Continued):

Effect of condition: $6,000 in cash was not receipted and deposited in a timely manner. $5,500 that was being
held in the officer's police department vehicle was turned in for deposit, $600 remained outstanding. The
remaining $500 was recorded in the financial statements as a cash shortage at June 30, 2015. The matter was
referred to the local district attorney general. On July 1, 2015, the Hamblen County Grand Jury indicted the
officer on two counts of Theft over $1,000, one count of Theft under $500, and one count of Official Misconduct.

Recommendation: The City should strengthen controls within the police department relating to depositing funds
collected for return of seized vehicles or other property.

Management's response: Management concurs with the finding. The Morristown Police Department continuousiy
evaluates its internal conirals related to seizures. Additicnal procedures have been implemented to strengthen

internal controls.

Section It - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs:

None reported.
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City of Morristown, Tennessee

Disposition of Prior Year Findings
June 30, 2015

FYE 6/30/2014

Finding 14-1
Condition: Payment of a travel advance was duplicated.

This condition was resolved at June 30, 2015,
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